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PART |

Explanatory Note

” o

Unless otherwise indicated or the context requitleS),” the “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer aollectively to LGl Homes, Inc.
and its subsidiaries. On November 13, 2013, we deteg an initial public offering (the “IPO”) of 1850,000shares of our common stock.
a result of the reorganization transactions in eation with the IPO, for accounting purposes, datdnical results included herein present
combined assets, liabilities and results of opengtiof LGl Homes, Inc. since the date of its foiioraend LGl Homes Group, LLC, LGI
Homes Corporate, LLC, LGI Homes Il, LLC, LGI Hom8sinrise Meadow, LLC, LGl Homes-Canyon Crossing, LLGI Homes-Deer
Creek, LLC and their direct and indirect subsidiarfcollectively, our “Predecessor”) prior to tROl. Subsequently, the assets, liabilities and
results of operations present the consolidatedtsesiithe Company.

Prior to the completion of the IPO, our Predecessared a 15% equity interest in and managed thaalaiay operations of four joint
venture entities (the “LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures”ozurrent with the IPO, LGl Homes, Inc. acquirddbalthe equity interests in the
LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures that it did not own immetgig prior to the IPO (the "GTIS Acquisitions"). ©financial statements present our
Predecessor’s historical interest in the LGI/GTé$htlVentures using the equity method and our Rresior’s share of the LGI/GTIS Joint
Ventures’ net earnings are included in income froroonsolidated joint ventures. Effective Novemb&r2013, we own all of the equity
interests in the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures and weoaat for them on a consolidated basis after suté. da

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

We are one of the nation’s fastest growing puldgidential homebuilders in terms of percentageceme of home closings. We are
engaged in the design and construction of hom&sxas, Arizona, Florida, Georgia and New Mexico.NXmvember 13, 2013, we completed
an IPO of 10,350,000 shares of our common stockchwrovided us with net proceeds of $102.6 milliddbur management team has been in
the residential land development business sincenfdel 990s. In 2003, we commenced homebuilding atjrs targeting the entry-level
market. Since commencing operations in 2003, we lcanstructed and closed over 6,200 homes antddordar ended December 31, 2013,
on a pro forma basis, we had 1,617 home closiragapared to 1,062 home closings in 2012.

The following is a summary of our history:

2003 - LGl Homes began operations building homakérHouston, Texas market

2006 - We entered the San Antonio, Texas market

2009 - We entered the Dallas/Ft. Worth, Texas ntarke

2010 - We formed our first LGI/GTIS Joint Venture

2011 - We entered the Phoenix, Arizona market antéd our Southwest Division

2011 - We expanded our Texas Division by enteninig the Austin, Texas market

2012 - An LGI/GTIS Joint Venture entered the Tanffarida market and we formed our Florida Division

January 2013 - We expanded our Florida Divisiorbtering into the Orlando, Florida market

April 2013 - We entered the Atlanta, Georgia magd formed our Southeast Division

July 2013 - LGI Homes, Inc. was formed

August 2013 - We expanded our Southwest Divisioeitering the Tucson, Arizona market

November 2013 - We completed our IPO and certairganization transactions in connection with oud I&hd we acquired our joint
venture partners’ interests in the LGI/GTIS Joimntures

December 2013 - We expanded our Southwest Divisyoentering the Albuquerque, New Mexico market
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LGl Homes, Inc. is a Delaware corporation incorpedson July 9, 2013. Our principal executive offiege located at 1450 Lake
Robbins Drive, Suite 430, The Woodlands, Texas @788d our telephone number is (281) 362-8998 rim&bion on or linked to our website
is not incorporated by reference into this AnnuapBrt on Form 10-K unless expressly noted.

Business Opportunities

We believe there continues to be a significant ojymity to grow our share of sales in our existingrkets. Given our familiarity with
each of our existing markets and the favorable dgaphic and economic trends that are forecastedrimarkets, we expect to continue to
see growth in these markets.

We also believe that we will grow our businesstiyréasing the number of price points in our existitarkets. We are seeing
opportunities to develop properties with multipté&p points and product lines in the same commesiti

We intend to expand into new markets where we ifjeopportunities to build homes and develop comities that meet our profit and
return objectives. We have started due diligenctherCharlotte, North Carolina and Denver, Coloragokets and will consider entry into
these markets as we find the right leadership aweéldpment situations. In addition, we will con&nio analyze other potential markets as we
continue our efforts to expand into new geograghitarkets.

We will continue to pursue a flexible land acquésitstrategy of purchasing or optioning finishets)af they can be acquired at
attractive prices, or purchasing raw land for restal development. We generally target land adtjons that are further away from urban
centers than many other suburban communities lug &ecess to major thoroughfares, retail distaois centers of business. These areas tha
are further away from town usually result in bettalue for the homeowner either in a less experiie point or in larger lot sizes. Our
analysis of the development opportunities that maefprofit and return objectives consider manyedént types of possible investment.
These opportunities may involve the sale of hortessis a part of the product mix. We expect thahome closings in communities with
higher price points or that include the sales ahlgites will be less than 10% of our annual hologings.

We intend to target markets that are charactetiyefdvorable housing supply and demand dynamicstypical market has at least
900,000 residents and at least 40,000 rentersméti?i5-mile radius of our targeted land acquisgtioiVe carefully analyze the demand of a
market prior to entry through an extensive testkating program. Once we have confirmed the exigaistrong homeownership demand,
we employ a series of financial and budgetary adstvefore committing resources for land acquisgiolrhese measures include requiren
with respect to anticipated gross margins, cashsfland internal rates of return as well as an ex@n of overall return on investment. In
addition, we evaluate new market expansion oppiitsrbased on our ability to identify and hiredbconstruction and homebuilding expe
with detailed knowledge of the local market coradi. These experts provide knowledge of the lo@aket, such as governmental
processing, land development and land availabladquisitions, as well as relationships with Ideaddowners, brokers and subcontractors.

Unique Operating Model

We developed our unique operating model based pbalief that there is a more effective and effitimethod of constructing and
selling homes. We are focused on maintaining amoggpiate supply of move-in ready homes to fuel dymamic sales force, maximizing our
return on capital through efficient build-timesy@&ven-flow or continuous construction methodolagryd steady inventory turnover. We
believe that the key competitive advantages ofoparational business model include our sales andetiag expertise; recruiting, selection,
training and development of our people; our discgd land acquisition process; and our quality esste and quality control procedures.

Our unique operating model has been refined owelas$t 20 years through the experience of our nemegt team. We believe our
operating model will be effective with respect tinfes across all price points, including in our mearkets and in communities in which we
are the developer, and with respect to sales ofhsitas. We believe that the business model cadapted as needed, for the requiremen
the individual communities.

Sales and Marketing

We utilize a well-defined sales and marketing apphoto identify leads for our communities and taade potential buyers on the
process and benefits of homeownership. For mamyuo€ommunities, our marketing efforts are focuseaonverting renters of apartments
and singlelamily homes into homeowners. With respect to mmmunities with higher price points or that inclutle sales of home sites,
sales and marketing approach with be tailoredegtitential purchasers of such homes and homeasitemay include more involvement by
real estate agents and brokers.
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We use extensive print and digital advertisingttoaat potential homebuyers. We reach beyond icadit real estate advertising by
employing sophisticated marketing techniques ssatlirect mail, display and classified ads, sociatlia and interactive online media as well
as directional signage and billboards to attradtdnive potential homebuyers to our sales centassa our markets. By testing the market
before land acquisition and entering a new maxkatmarketing team is able to assess the leveitefast in the location and amenities,
determine the cost of rent in the area, and assessze of the market opportunity. The amounnérimation that we are able to ascertain
about potential buyers, including renters, allowsaibetter identify the opportunity to sell moveréady homes.

Our print advertising is extensive and effectivelacing potential homebuyers in front of our highthined sales professionals. In
response to market conditions, our advertising ggiyencludes the core message of value and drfedfitment. We have found direct mail
to be very effective in reaching our target maretconnect personally with potential buyers, wedsen average of 12,000 direct mailings a
week per community to selected areas within a 28-radius of our active communities (currently apgmately 300,000 direct mail pieces
per week). These mailings are designed to readdetimthe market for a new home as well as thosemilyht not presently be looking. Our
advertisements focus on monthly payment, afforigbitalue, and the opportunity for renters to bmechomeowners. We invite people to
fulfill their dream of homeownership and to joirgewing group of satisfied LGl homeowners.

Across all price points, our marketing strategysclir a balanced approach of corporate suppori@al expertise to attract potential
homebuyers in a focused, efficient and cost-effeathanner. Our proprietary customer relationshipagament system, developed fully in-
house, provides management with the tools to coaliymonitor and measure the performance levekvefy sales professional in each
particular phase of the sales process. Generatpts weekly and on demand, the ease of operatioourages use. We assess the cost
effectiveness of a particular advertising campaigd the strengths and weaknesses of every member eéles team.

Our marketing efforts are generally designed tamarege the prospective homebuyer to call our s#Hfeses to schedule an appointm
and our primary objective is to establish direahoaunication between the prospective homebuyerlamdalesperson. Our professional
salespeople are well-trained to determine specdads and wants and to provide the potential hoyeglwith all information required to
make a buying decision.

Each of our sales offices is open approximatelydrs per day, 361 days per year and is staffatifey to five sales professionals and
is supported by an independent on-site loan offider commission-based sales professionals prgatential homebuyers with a
comprehensive and thorough understanding of thes segjuired to achieve homeownership. Throughaus#iies process, our sales
professionals learn about the current housing titu®f the potential homebuyers and seek to unaedstheir individual needs while also
educating them on the value we provide through soipguality and affordable prices.

We provide information regarding floor plans anitimg, review credit and income qualifications, ammhduct tours of various homes
based on the potential homebuyer’s budget. In ixigitve provide each potential homebuyer with a pahensive introduction of the
community and the surrounding area by detailingrimfation regarding utilities, schools, homeowneasoaiation dues and restrictions, local
entertainment and nearby dining and shopping optidfe provide our potential homebuyers with a cleaterstanding of who we are by
sharing our history, vision and values. As a restitiur transparent approach, potential homebugsmsive all this information before making
a buying decision, which we believe eliminates asign during the home buying process and sets elggctations. In addition, the poten
home buyers benefit from the availability of mowveréady homes by seeing the completed or near-&taetphome that they will own.

Recruitment, Training and Development

We focus on identifying and attracting the besttaland providing them with world-class traininglatevelopment. We directly invest
in our sales professionals by conducting an inten$00-day introductory training program consistifigg0 days of initial in-depth, in-house
education about our time-proven selling strategreguding a two-week intensive training progranoat headquarters, and an additional 70
days of secondary training at the local divisionr ©ontinued commitment to our sales personnedflsated in the ongoing weekly training
sessions held in each of our sales offices coupltfdthe quarterly regional training events andaanual company-wide conference. We also
work closely with our subcontractors and constarctnanagers, training them using a comprehensivstaation manual that outlines the
most efficient way to build an LGI home. Many ofraubcontractors have worked on our homes sinceowenenced homebuilding
operations in 2003.
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Homebuilding Operations

Our homebuilding operations are organized and nethay divisions:

Texas Southwest Southeast Florida
Houston, TX Phoenix, AZ Atlanta, GA Tampa, FL
Dallas/Ft. Worth, TX Tucson, AZ Orlando, FL
San Antonio, TX Albuquerque, NM
Austin, TX

Our four divisions are aggregated into one repgrsiegment. See Note 1%5&gment Informatiortd our consolidated financial
statements included in Part II. Item 15 of this AahReport on Form 10-K.

Our even-flow, or continuous, construction methodglenables us to build and maintain an inventémave-in ready homes that are
available for immediate sale. We offer a set nuntéloor plans in each community with standardifeatures that commonly include
upgrades such as granite countertops, appliancesamamic tile flooring. Our homes are designenh&et the preferences of our target
potential homebuyers and allow for cost efficiemd &ffective construction processes. We have dpeelaore product lines, which can be
modified for local conditions and market preferen@nd implemented across multiple communitiesagimize efficiency. We maintained
an average home completion time of approximatelyo4®) days during 2013 and 2012; and our homegerflom 1,200 to 3,000 square feet
with prices ranging from the $120,000's to the $280's.

We believe in 2014, we will sell homes in a broa@me of prices, including homes up to 4,000 sgteet with prices ranging from
$300,000 to $450,000. We will continue to utiliaer @ven flow construction methodology in commusitigith homes at these price points
and we will maintain our focus on marketing comglet move-in ready homes with standardized features

We employ experienced construction management gsfieals to perform the tasks of general contradtooughout home
construction in each of our communities. Our eme&sy/provide the purchasing, construction manageamehtjuality assurance for the hoi
we build, while third-party subcontractors provitte material and labor components of our homesath of our markets, we employ
construction managers with local market knowledug expertise. Additionally, our construction managmonitor our compliance with
zoning and production schedules and quality staisdfar their projects.

We endeavor to obtain favorable pricing from sulti@otors through long-term relationships and cdestsworkflow. As we have
expanded into new markets in Arizona, Florida, @@oand New Mexico, the employees that we havalhirehose markets have brought
longterm relationships with several subcontracting §irtWe have expanded upon existing relationships subcontracting firms also loca
in Texas. A number of our trade partners have sutbacted on our projects since we commenced hord#hgioperations in 2003. We use
select centralized purchasing to leverage our @sicly power to achieve volume discounts, a prathigeoften reduces costs and ensures
timely deliveries. We typically do not store sigaént inventories of construction materials, exdeptvork in progress materials for homes
under construction. Consistency of trades is agial part of our homebuilding operations that &sals us to reduced warranty costs. We
believe in building long lasting relationships wahbr trade partners in order to provide consistgmlity and timely deliveries across our
markets. We also work closely with our constructisanagers and subcontractors and train them usingharehensive construction manual
that outlines the most efficient way to build anlll®me. We believe our emphasis on developing a@oudating our employees and
subcontractors is a key differentiator relativetw peers.

Throughout our homebuilding operations, we utibzgaperless purchase order system to conduct lsgsivith our subcontractors. Our
master build schedule allows our trade partnersaeive their specific task from our electronicteys and plan several weeks in advance
before starting their work. This means of commutiicaallows our subcontractors to schedule thesnsr efficiently, thereby allowing for
better pricing and better quality of work. Typigalbur contractors are paid every two weeks, wimfitributes to the strength of our business
relationships with them.

Land Acquisition Policies and Development

We have been an active and opportunistic acqufrkand for residential development in our mark®¥e source land from a wide range
of landowners, brokers, lenders and other landldpweent companies. We generally acquire finishésldmd raw land in affordable locatic
that are further away from urban centers than nodingr suburban communities but have access to ri@ovughfares, retail districts and
centers of business. We conduct thorough due ditig®n each of our
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potential land acquisitions, and we look at numeropportunities before finding one that meets equirements. We test the market and
speak with potential homebuyers before committangurchase land. We also maintain a large pipelfrdesirable land positions. We
increased our active communities from 10 as of bdgsr 31, 2012 to 25 as of December 31, 2013. Weiadseased our lot inventory from
approximately 3,033 owned or controlled lots aBetember 31, 2012 to 14,895 owned or controllesldstof December 31, 2013.

Our allocation of capital for land investment isfpemed at the corporate level with a disciplingg@ach to portfolio management.
Our Acquisitions Committee meets periodically andsists of our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Ficai Officer, and Executive Vice
President of Acquisitions. Annually, our divisiopepare a strategic plan for their respective gaagc areas. Supply and demand are
analyzed to ensure land investment is targetedoapiptely. The long-term plan is compared on anoimgy basis to evolving realities in the
marketplace and is then adjusted to the extentssacg

We expect to continue to purchase finished lothénFlorida and Southeast divisions in 2014. InTtaeas and Southwest divisions, our
operations during 2014 will also include lot dey®ttent, since the availability of finished lots as@table prices is limited in each of these
markets. We have recently expanded into the Albtgues New Mexico market with the acquisition ofigimed lots in three communities.

We also expect to purchase larger tracts of lanasamur markets which may provide us with moreoopmities to build homes with
multiple price points in our communities. We bebdhat our land development expertise will allowtaseet our growth and profit
objectives with respect to opportunities in which are the developer. These opportunities may imvtile sale of home sites as a part of the
development.

We have strong relationships with the land brokeregmmunity in all of our markets. We believe timathe brokerage community, we
have a reputation for knowing our business, hatliegcapital to close deals, and making accuratdiarely decisions that benefit both the
buyer and seller. For these reasons, we belie¥édtbkers routinely notify us when desirable tramttand are available for purchase.

In our land acquisition process, projects of irgesre evaluated at the division level using aermsite due diligence checklist which
includes assessing the permitting and regulataryirements, environmental considerations, localketaconditions, and anticipated floor
plans, pricing, and financial returns. We also datee the number of residents in the market anthtérouseholds that are within driving
distance to the proposed project and conduct tasgteting which includes mailings to prospective lkbunyers to get their feedback on our
potential land acquisition.

The table below shows (i) home closings by divisiora pro forma and historical basis for the yemteel December 31, 2013 and (ii)
our owned or controlled lots by division as of Deteer 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2012, we owneaxbbirolled on a pro forma basis
5,098 lots.

Year Ended
December 31, 2013 As of December 31, 2013
Pro Forma Home
Division Closings(1) Home Closings Owned (2) Controlled Total
Texas 1,358 892 4,474 6,232 10,70¢€
Southwest 170 118 607 859 1,466
Southeast 12 12 1,164 202 1,366
Florida 77 40 436 921 1,357
Total 1,617 1,062 6,681 8,214 14,89¢

(1) Includes the home closings of the LGI/GTIS Joinhiees prior to the IP¢
(2) Of the 6,68bwned lots as of December 31, 2013, 3,250 wereuraetr development lots and 3,431 were finished

Homes in Inventory
When entering a new community, we build a suffitimmmber of move-in ready homes to meet our budyétsbase future home starts

on closings. As homes are closed, we start moreeRdmmaintain our inventory in balance. As of Deber 31, 2013, we had a total of 250
completed homes and 399 homes in progress in iogent
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The following is a summary of our homes in invegtby division as of December 31, 2013:

Inventory to Inventory Value
Division be Sold with Land (1)
Texas 352 % 28,005,96
Southwest 18¢ 15,189,39
Southeast 52 5,957,74
Florida 57 7,039,26!
Total 64 $ 56,192,36

(1) Excludes sales office
Backlog

See discussion included in "Management's DiscussidhAnalysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations-
Backlog."

Raw Materials

When constructing homes, we use various matenmlssamponents. We generally contract for our mal®end labor at a fixed price
for the anticipated construction period of our henikhis allows us to mitigate the risks associatgl increases in building materials and
labor costs between the time construction beging bome and the time it is closed. Typically, the materials and most of the components
used in our business are readily available in thi#dd States. In addition, the majority of our naaterials is supplied to us by our
subcontractors, and is included in the price ofammtract with such contractors. Most of the ravtarials necessary for our subcontractor:
standard items carried by major suppliers. Subisdnall of our construction work is done by thipérty subcontractors, most of whom are
non-unionized. We continue to monitor the supplykats to achieve the best prices available. Tyyictie price changes that most
significantly influence our operations are pricergmses in commodities and lumber.

Seasonality

The homebuilding industry generally exhibits seadion We have historically experienced, and in filneire expect to continue to
experience, variability in our results on a qudyteeasis. See discussion included in “Managemddiggussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of OperatieffSeasonality.”

Government Regulation and Environmental Matters

We are subject to numerous local, state, fedeibémer statutes, ordinances, rules and regulationserning zoning, development,
building design, construction and similar mattersal impose restrictive zoning and density requiats, the result of which is to limit the
number of homes that can be built within the bouiedeof a particular area. Projects that are notleth may be subjected to periodic delays,
changes in use, less intensive development orraditioin of development in certain specific areastdugovernment regulations. We may also
be subject to periodic delays or may be precludeidety from developing in certain communities daebuilding moratoriums or “slow-
growth” or “no-growth” initiatives that could be plemented in the future. Local governments als@Hawead discretion regarding the
imposition of development fees for projects in thefisdiction. Projects for which we have receivadd use and development entitlements or
approvals may still require a variety of other goweental approvals and permits during the developmpecess and can also be impacted
adversely by unforeseen health, safety and weiéarees, which can further delay these projectsergmt their development.

We are also subject to a variety of local, statkefal and other statutes, ordinances, rules andatgons concerning the environment.
The particular environmental laws which apply tg given homebuilding site vary according to mukifctors, including the site’s location,
its environmental conditions and the present anthéo uses of the site, as well as adjoining progerEnvironmental laws and conditions
may result in delays, may cause us to incur subataompliance and other costs, and can prohib#eserely restrict homebuilding activity
environmentally sensitive regions or areas. Int@aldiin those cases where an endangered or thezhpecies is involved, environmental
rules and regulations can result in the restrictioelimination of development in identified enviroentally sensitive areas. From time to ti
the United States Environmental Protection Ageitisg (EPA") and similar federal or state agencieserg homebuilders’ compliance with
environmental laws and may levy fines and penaftegailure to strictly comply with applicable emenmental laws or
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impose additional requirements for future compleas a result of past failures. Any such actiokertavith respect to us may increase our
costs. Further, we expect that increasingly strihgequirements may be imposed on homebuildetsdriuture. Environmental regulations
can also have an adverse impact on the availahititiyprice of certain raw materials such as lumber.

Under various environmental laws, current or formeners of real estate, as well as certain othtegoaies of parties, may be required
to investigate and clean up hazardous or toxictanbes or petroleum product releases, and mayltdidglgle to a governmental entity or to
third parties for related damages, including fodibyoinjury, and for investigation and clean-up togcurred by such parties in connection
with the contamination. A mitigation system mayib&alled during the construction of a home if @clup does not remove all contaminants
of concern or to address a naturally occurring ¢@mdsuch as methane. Some homebuyers may nottavgntrchase a home with a
mitigation system.

Competition

The U.S. homebuilding industry is highly compettiWWe compete in each of our markets with numeothisr national, regional and
local homebuilders for homebuyers, desirable priggerraw materials and skilled labor. We also cetapvith sales of existing homes and
with the rental housing market. Our homes competthe basis of quality, price, design, mortgageriting terms and location. We have
begun to see some consolidation among national boitders in the United States and expect thatttkisd will continue.

In order to maximize our sales volumes, profitépitind product strategy, we strive to understandcompetition and their pricing,
product and sales volume strategies and resultkdtlaonditions in the U.S. have also led to adangmber of foreclosed homes being
offered for sale, which has increased competitmrhbmebuyers and has affected pricing.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we employed 253 peoplehaim 37 were located at our corporate headquattéesyere on-site sales and
support personnel and 47 were involved with corsin. None of our employees are covered by callediargaining agreements. We
believe we have good relations with our employees.

Available Information

We make available, as soon as reasonably praaticablour website, www.lgihomes.com, all of ourarp required to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Thepents can be found on the “Investors” page ofveeisite under “SEC Filings” and
include our annual and quarterly reports on ForaKhd 10-Q (including related filings in XBRL fomt), current reports on Form 8-K,
beneficial ownership reports on Forms 3, 4, angréxy statements and amendments to such reportsSBX filings are also available to the
public on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov, andpthigic may read and copy any document we filéhatSEC’s public reference room
located at 100 F Street NE, Washington, D.C. 2064&her information on the operation of the pubdiference room can be obtained by
calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In additionuo SEC filings, our corporate governance documemttiding our Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics, are available on the “Inve$toagie of our website under “Corporate Governan@eaii' stockholders may also obtain
these documents in paper format free of charge vpmumest made to our Investor Relations department.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information regamgliour executive officers as of March 27, 2014:

Name Age Position
Eric Lipar 43 Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
Michael Snider 42 President and Chief Operating Officer
Charles Merdian 44 Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer
Jack Lipar 45 Executive Vice President of Acquisitions
Margaret Britton 51 Chief Administrative Officer
Rachel Eaton 32 Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Office
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Eric Lipar.  Mr. Lipar is our Chief Executive Officer and sengsChairman of our Board of directors. He haseskas our Chief
Executive Officer since 2009, as a director sinaeel2013 and as Chairman of the Board since Julg.Z®reviously, Mr. Lipar served as our
President from 2003 until 2009. Mr. Lipar has baethe residential land development business dimeenid-1990s and is one of our
founders. He has overseen land acquisition, deweop and the sales of over 6,200 homes since oapiion. Mr. Lipar currently serves on
the Residential Neighborhood Development Councitfie Urban Land Institute.

Michael Snider. Mr. Snider has served as our President since 20@BChief Operating Officer since July 2013 andrsees alll
aspects of our sales, construction, and productldpmnent. Since joining LGl in 2004 as HomebuildMgnager, Mr. Snider also served as
Executive Vice President of Homebuilding (2005-2088d President (2009-June 2013). Prior to joiniagMr. Snider served as a Project
Manager for Tadian Homes, a homebuilder basedagy, ichigan.

Charles Merdian. Mr. Merdian serves as our Chief Financial Officeecretary and Treasurer. He was elected Secreatdryraasure
in 2013. Prior to becoming our Chief Financial ©dfi in 2010, Mr. Merdian was our Controller fron02&hrough 2010. Prior to joining us
2004, Mr. Merdian served as Accounting and Findlaeager for The Woodlands Operating Company wherspiecialized in accounting
and financial analysis of real estate venturesyding primarily on residential and commercial depehents. Prior to The Woodlands
Operating Company, Mr. Merdian served as an acaogimianager working at the Williamson-Dickie Manctfaring Co. and as a senior
auditor for Coopers & Lybrand, L.L.P. Mr. Merdiaasimore than 15 years of experience in residengi@lestate and homebuilding finance.
Mr. Merdian is a Certified Public Accountant andaiismember of the Texas Society of Certified Pultcountants.

Jack Lipar. Mr. Lipar has served as our Executive Vice Pregidéicquisitions since March 2013. He previoustyved as Vice
President of Acquisitions from December 2010 thiokgbruary 2013, and Acquisitions Manager from 2@0Becember 2010. Mr. Lipar
oversees land acquisitions and development for P@abr to joining us, Mr. Lipar worked at HP Pelzan auto parts manufacturing company
based in Germany, as the Vice President of Punchasid Director of Operations. Mr. Lipar was alse General Manager and a member of
the Board of Directors at Alliance Interiors, afilate of HP Pelzer. Prior to HP Pelzer, Mr. Lip&as a worldwide Purchasing Manager for
Cooper Standard, one of the world’s leading martufacs of automotive parts.

Margaret Britton. Mrs. Britton has served as our Chief Administrai®#icer since August 2013. She is responsiblesfoious
corporate areas, including governance, risk andptiance matters. From 2008 to 2012, Mrs. Brittors\waeDirector at Deloitte Financial
Advisory Services, LLP, where she provided advismagvices and was a leader in their national enuiental consulting practice. She
worked as a consultant from 2003 to 2007 and, els, smong other things, assisted two multinati@m&irgy companies with the
implementation and oversight of their Sarbanes-PDAlet requirements. Prior to 2002, Mrs. Britton veasassurance partner at Arthur
Andersen LLP, serving a broad group of clientsudaig public registrants and clients in the emegdinsiness practice during her 15 year
tenure. Mrs. Britton is a Certified Public Accoumtand member of the American Institute of Certifltublic Accountants and The Instituts
Internal Auditors.

Rachel Eaton. Mrs. Eaton serves as our Chief Marketing Offideday, she is responsible for the overall groard direction of our
marketing initiatives, brand image and social meBi#or to becoming our Chief Marketing Officerdane 2013, Mrs. Eaton served as our
Vice President of Marketing and Administration frdsay 2012 through May 2013, Director of MarketingSpecial Events from 2007 to
May 2012, Executive Assistant from 2004 to 2007 Addinistrative Assistant from 2003 to 2004.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Discussion of our business and operations includléisis Annual Report on Form 10-K should be reagether with the risk factors set
forth below. They describe various risks and uraieties we are or may become subject to, many aéwére difficult to predict or beyond
our control. These risks and uncertainties, togailigh other factors described elsewhere in thigrg have the potential to affect our
business, financial condition, results of operatjarash flows, strategies or prospects in a magmghadverse manner.

Risks Related to Our Business

Continued or additional tightening of mortgage lendng standards and mortgage financing requirementsd rising interest rates coulc
adversely affect the availability of mortgage loansor potential purchasers of our homes and therebyeduce our sales.
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Almost all purchasers of our homes finance thejuisition through lenders that provide mortgagariicing. According to the Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“Freddie Mac”), \afar average mortgage rates rose from approximai&® in March 2013 to over
4.25% in March 2014. As mortgage interest ratesese, the ability of prospective homebuyers tarfae home purchases is adversely
affected, and, as a result, our operating resudig loe significantly negatively impacted. Our hormikling activities are dependent upon the
availability of mortgage financing to homebuyerkeTavailability of mortgage financing remains coaisted, due in part to lower mortgage
valuations on properties, various regulatory charayel lower risk appetite by lenders. Lenders atiyeequire increased levels of financial
documentation, larger down payments and more céisgiincome to debt ratios. First-time homebuysesgenerally more affected by the
availability of mortgage financing than other patahhomebuyers. These homebuyers are a key sofidmmand for our new homes. A
limited availability of home mortgage financing magversely affect the volume and sales price ohouane sales.

Due to the recent volatility and uncertainty in timedit markets and in the mortgage lending andgage finance industries, the federal
government has taken on a significant role in sujipmortgage lending through its conservatorgiipederal National Mortgage
Association (“Fannie Mae”) and Freddie Mac, botlwbich purchase or insure mortgage loans and mgetigmn-backed securities, and its
insurance of mortgage loans through or in conneatiith the Federal Housing Administration (“FHAthe Veterans Administration (“VA”)
and the U.S. Department of Agriculture (“"USDA"). Btand USDA backing of mortgage loans has beenqaatily important to the
mortgage finance industry and to our businesstheethe FHA or USDA raised their down paymentuiegments, our business could be
materially affected. The USDA rural developmentgyeon provides for zero down payment and 100% fimanfor homebuyers in qualifying
areas. As of December 31, 2013, the USDA prograawaslable in all our markets and is availablegpraximately 70% of our active
communities. If the USDA program was discontinued éunding was decreased, then our business doelddversely affected. In addition
the USDA changed its determination of areas thaedligible to qualify for the program, it could leean adverse effect on our business. In
addition, changes in governmental regulation wétpect to mortgage lenders could adversely affsttachd for housing. For example, the
FHA significantly reduced the limits on loans élilgi for insurance by the FHA in 2014, which hasécted the availability and cost of
financing in our markets.

The availability and affordability of mortgage l@tincluding interest rates for such loans, coldd e adversely affected by a scaling
back or termination of the federal government’s tg@ge loan-related programs or policies. Becausaiedae-, Freddie Mac-, FHA-,
USDA- and VA-backed mortgage loans have been awitapt factor in marketing and selling many of bomes, any limitations or
restrictions in the availability of, or higher camser costs for, such government-backed financingdceeduce our business, prospects,
liquidity, financial condition and results of opgoms could be materially and adversely affectdue €limination or curtailment of state bonds
utilized by us could materially and adversely affear business, prospects, liquidity, financial dibion and results of operations.

Our long-term growth depends in part upon our ability to acquire land parcels suitable for residentiahomebuilding at reasonable
prices.

Our long-term growth depends in large part on ttieepat which we are able to obtain suitable laarctels for the development of our
homes. Our ability to acquire land parcels for rsévglefamily homes may be adversely affected by chang#sa general availability of lar
parcels, the willingness of land sellers to seibiparcels at reasonable prices, competition failable land parcels, availability of financing
to acquire land parcels, zoning, regulations timat housing density, the ability to obtain buildipermits, environmental requirements and
other market conditions and regulatory requiremdhwiitable lots or land become less availaliie,riumber of homes we may be able to
build and sell could be reduced, and the costraf ould be increased substantially, which couleeaskly impact us. As competition for
suitable land increases, the cost of undevelopsdlad the cost of developing owned land couldars the availability of suitable land at
acceptable prices may decline, which could advgisgbact us. The availability of suitable land @ssmuld also affect the success of our
acquisition strategy, which may impact our abitiyincrease the number of our active communitieswgpur revenue and margins, and
achieve or maintain profitability. Additionally, deloping undeveloped land is capital intensive tim& consuming and we may develop land
based upon forecasts and assumptions that prdeit@accurate, resulting in projects that are sonemically viable.

Risks associated with our land and lot inventoriesould adversely affect our business or financial ults.

Risks inherent in controlling, purchasing, holdantd developing land for new home construction abstntial. The risks inherent in
purchasing and developing land parcels increasermsumer demand for housing decreases. As a resuihay buy and develop land parcels
on which homes cannot be profitably built and stidcertain circumstances, a grant of entittementdevelopment agreement with respect to
a particular parcel of land may include restrictiam the transfer of such entitlements to a bufeuch land, which would negatively impact
the price of such entitled land by restricting ability to sell it for its full entitled value. Iaddition, inventory carrying costs can be signifis
and can result in reduced
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margins or losses in a poorly performing communitynarket. Developing land and constructing horag&eg a significant amount of time
and requires a substantial cash investment. In§[daad development has started to become a bgggeof our operations and we expect to
expand our development activities in our other raerlas well. The time and investment required &wetbpment may adversely impact our
business. We have substantial real estate investaiiich regularly remain on our balance sheesifpificant periods of time, during which
time we are exposed to the risk of adverse marketldpments, prior to their sale. Our business insdesed on building homes before a
sales contract is executed and a customer depasitéived. Because interest and other expenseagitalized during construction but
expensed after completion, we recognize interedtaaintenance expense on unsold completed homestaory. As of December 31, 2013,
we had 250 completed homes in inventory and 399isamprogress in inventory. In the event ther@ d®wnturn in housing sales in our
markets, our inventory of completed homes coulddase, leading to additional financing costs ameelomargins, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial results @perations. In the event of significant changesdonomic or market conditions, we may
have to sell homes at significantly lower marginsiba loss, if we are able to sell them at alldiéidnally, deteriorating market conditions
could cause us to record significant inventory impant charges. The recording of a significant imeey impairment could negatively affect
our reported earnings per share and negativelydttha market perception of our business.

Because real estate investments are relatively dliid, our ability to promptly sell one or more properties for reasonable prices in
response to changing economic, financial and inveséent conditions may be limited and we may be forcetb hold non-income
producing properties for extended periods of time.

Real estate investments are relatively difficulsédl quickly. As a result, our ability to promptell one or more properties in response
to changing economic, financial and investment @@ is limited and we may be forced to hold neceme producing assets for an
extended period of time. We cannot predict whettewill be able to sell any property for the prareon the terms that we set or whether any
price or other terms offered by a prospective paseh would be acceptable to us. We also cannoicpteé length of time needed to find a
willing purchaser and to close the sale of a priyper

Labor and raw material shortages and price fluctuatons could delay or increase the cost of home consttion, which could materially
and adversely affect us.

The residential construction industry experien@r#ss labor and raw material shortages from tionégnte, including shortages in
qualified tradespeople, and supplies of insulatdvgyall, cement, steel and lumber. These laborramdmaterial shortages can be more
severe during periods of strong demand for housirduring periods following natural disasters thate a significant impact on existing
residential and commercial structures. Our markat® recently begun to exhibit a reduced levekilesl labor relative to increased
homebuilding demand in these markets. Labor andmaverial shortages and any resulting price ine®asuld cause delays in and increase
our costs of home construction, which in turn cdud@e a material adverse effect on our businessppcts, liquidity, financial condition and
results of operations.

Our business and results of operations are dependeon the availability and skill of subcontractors.

We engage subcontractors to perform the construcfi@ur homes, and in many cases, to select ataihohe raw materials.
Accordingly, the timing and quality of our consttion depend on the availability and skill of oubsantractors. While we anticipate being
able to obtain sufficient materials and reliablbantractors and believe that our relationships witbcontractors are good, we do not have
long-term contractual commitments with any subcetors, and we can provide no assurance thatalsillbcontractors will continue to be
available at reasonable rates and in our markéts iffability to contract with skilled subcontract@t reasonable rates on a timely basis could
have a material adverse effect on our businessppuats, liquidity, financial condition and resufsoperations.

Despite our quality control efforts, we may discotret our subcontractors have engaged in impropestruction practices or have
installed defective materials in our homes. Wherdigeover these issues, we utilize our subcontra¢torepair the homes in accordance \
our new home warranty and as required by law. These costs of satisfying our warranty and otbgal obligations in these instances may
be significant and we may be unable to recovectsts of warranty-related repairs from subcontra¢tsuppliers and insurers, which could
have a material impact on our business, prosplapisdity, financial condition and results of op&cams.

Any limitation on, or reduction or elimination of, tax benefits associated with homeownership would ka an adverse effect upon the
demand for homes, which could be material to our bsiness.

Changes in federal income tax laws may affect dehfiannew homes. Current tax laws generally pesigitificant expenses associa
with homeownership, primarily mortgage interestenge and real estate taxes, to be deducted for the
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purpose of calculating an individualfederal and, in many cases, state taxable inc@aréous proposals have been publicly discussdidnib
mortgage interest deductions and to limit the esiolu of gain from the sale of a principal residerié® instance, under the American
Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012, which was signed il in January 2013, the federal government enddtgter income tax rates and limits
the value of tax deductions for certain high-incdrmdividuals and households. If the federal govezntror a state government changes or
further changes its income tax laws, as some lawnsdkave proposed, by eliminating, limiting or gahsally reducing these income tax
benefits without offsetting provisions, the aftakxtost of owning a new home would increase foryrarour potential homebuyers.
Enactment of any such proposal may have an adeéfieset on the homebuilding industry in generalthasloss or reduction of homeowner
deductions could decrease the demand for new homes.

The recent growth in the housing market may not cotinue at the same rate, and any decline in the graw rate in our served housing
markets or for the homebuilding industry may materially and adversely affect our business and financizondition.

Although the housing markets in the geographicameavhich we operate are currently stronger thay have been in recent years, we
cannot predict whether and to what extent this edhtinue, particularly if interest rates for m@gg loans continue to rise. Other factors
which might impact growth in the homebuilding inttysnclude uncertainty in domestic and internagibfinancial, credit and consumer
lending markets amid slow growth or recessionand@@mns in various regions around the world; titgntding standards and practices for
mortgage loans that limit consumers’ ability to kifydor mortgage financing to purchase a homeluding increased minimum credit score
requirements, credit risk/mortgage loan insurameenums and/or other fees and required down payam@ounts, more conservative
appraisals, higher loan-to-value ratios and extenisuyer income and asset documentation requiremenEederal Reserve policy changes.
Given these factors, we can provide no assuramtethsent housing market trends will continue,ttwieoverall or in our markets.

If there is limited economic growth or declinesimployment and consumer income and/or continuénd tigprtgage lending standards
and practices in the geographic areas in whichpesate or if interest rates for mortgage loansinanetto rise, there could likely be a
corresponding adverse effect on our business, potspliquidity, financial condition and resultsagerations, including, but not limited to,
the number of homes we sell, our average sellif@pprthe amount of revenues or profits we gengaaie the effect may be material.

If we are unable to develop our communities succdsdly or within expected time-frames, our results & operations could be adversely
affected.

Before a community generates any revenue, timevaatdrial expenditures are required to acquire labthin development approvals
and construct significant portions of project istraicture, amenities and sales facilities. It eetseveral years from the time we acquire
control of an undeveloped property to the time vakenour first home sale on the site. Delays indiéneelopment of communities expose u
the risk of changes in market conditions for homdedecline in our ability to develop and market @i®ur new undeveloped communities
successfully and to generate positive cash flomftioese operations in a timely manner could havaizrial adverse effect on our business
and results of operations and on our ability tziserour debt and to meet our working capital regmients.

Third-party lenders may not complete mortgage loaroriginations for our homebuyers in a timely manneror at all, which can lead to
cancellations and a lower backlog of orders, or teignificant delays in our closing homes sales anécognizing revenues from those
homes.

Our homebuyers may obtain mortgage financing feirthome purchases from any lender or other prowatléheir choice. If, due to
credit or consumer lending market conditions, redu@uidity, increased risk retention or minimuapdal level obligations and/or regulat
restrictions related to the Dodd-Frank Act or otlagvs, or other factors or business decisions ethersders refuse or are unable to provide
mortgage loans to our homebuyers, the number oEkaome close and our business, prospects, liquidigncial condition and results of
operations may be materially adversely affected.

We may be unable to obtain suitable bonding for thelevelopment of our housing projects.

We are often required to provide bonds to goverrialeuthorities and others to ensure the completfarur projects. As a result of
market conditions, surety providers have been tehido issue new bonds and some providers areséiqg credit enhancements (such as
cash deposits or letters of credit) in order tontan existing bonds or to issue new bonds. If reeumable to obtain required bonds in the
future for our projects, or if we are required toyade credit enhancements with
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respect to our current or future bonds, our busin@®spects, liquidity, financial condition andukts of operations could be materially and
adversely affected.

We may incur a variety of costs to engage in futurgrowth or expansion of our operations and the antipated benefits may never be
realized.

We intend to grow our operations in existing maskand we may expand into new markets or acquirer stome builders. We may be
unable to achieve the anticipated benefits of aich growth or expansion, including through acqigsitthe anticipated benefits may take
longer to realize than expected or we may incuatgrecosts than expected in attempting to achiewamticipated benefits. In such cases, we
will likely need to employ additional personnel aswhsult with personnel that are knowledgeablaiohanarkets. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to employ or retain the neaggpersonnel, that we will be able to successiutlgplement a disciplined management
process and culture with local management, ordhaexpansion operations will be successful. Thida disrupt our ongoing operations and
divert management resources that would otherwisesfon developing our existing business, or thaivillde able to successfully integrate
any acquired homebuilder. Accordingly, any suchaggion could expose us to significant risks, beyiede associated with operating our
existing business, and may adversely affect ouinbas, prospects, liquidity, financial conditiordaresults of operations.

The homebuilding industry is highly competitive and if our competitors are more successful or offer étter value to our customers, ou
business could decline.

We operate in a very competitive environment whscbharacterized by competition from a number beohomebuilders and land
developers in each market in which we operate. thaldilly, there are relatively low barriers to gnitnto our business. We compete with le
national and regional homebuilding companies, nanyhich have greater financial and operationapuveses than us, and with smaller local
homebuilders and land developers, some of which ma&g lower administrative costs than us. We magtlzecompetitive disadvantage with
regard to certain of our large national and rediboanebuilding competitors whose operations areengaographically diversified than ours,
as these competitors may be better able to witdstay future regional downturn in the housing markerthermore, we generally have a
lower market share in each of our markets as coadp@r many of our competitors. Many of our competitmay also have longer operating
histories and longstanding relationships with sul@xtors and suppliers in the markets in whichoperate. This may give our competitors
an advantage in marketing their products, securiaterials and labor at lower prices and allowirgjrthomes to be delivered to customers
more quickly and at more favorable prices. We camfar, among other things, homebuyers, desiratrd parcels, financing, raw materials
and skilled management and labor resources. Oupetitors may independently develop land and coostrames that are substantially
similar to our products.

Increased competition could hurt our businesst, esuld prevent us from acquiring attractive lardgels on which to build homes or
make such acquisitions more expensive, hinder @rket share expansion and cause us to increaselling incentives and reduce our
prices. An oversupply of homes available for saldiscounting of home prices could adversely affeating for homes in the markets in
which we operate. Oversupply and price discourtiizige periodically adversely affected certain markand it is possible that our markets
will be adversely affected by these factors inftitare.

If we are unable to compete effectively in our naisk our business could decline disproportiondtetyur competitors, and our results
of operations and financial condition could be adel affected. We can provide no assurance thatiee able to continue to compete
successfully in any of our markets. Our inabiliycbntinue to compete successfully in any of ourkeiz could have a material adverse effect
on our business, prospects, liquidity, financialdition or results of operations.

We cannot make any assurances that our growth or @ansion strategies will be successful or not exposs to additional risks.

We have primarily focused on internal growth ineletyears by increasing our investments in lartcahal home inventories in our
existing homebuilding markets. We have also expdrmde business through selected investments ingemgraphic markets. Investments in
land, lots and home inventories can expose usks nf economic loss and inventory impairment®iiging conditions weaken or we are
unsuccessful in implementing our growth strategies.

In addition to expanding geographically, we areaxng into certain communities in which we willilothigher priced homes. In
addition, we may develop communities in which wédhomes and also sell acreage home sites ad afitae development. We might
acquire a homebuilder in order to accomplish oomgin or expansion strategies. We can give no assarthat we will be able to successft
identify, acquire or implement these new strategighe future. Accordingly, any
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such expansion, including through acquisition, daxpose us to significant risks, beyond thosedistsnl with operating our existing
business, and may materially adversely affect osirtess, prospects, liquidity, financial conditanmd results of operations.

New and existing laws and regulations or other govemental actions, including with respect to zoningand entitlement, may increase
our expenses, limit the number of homes that we cawuild or delay completion of our projects.

We are subject to numerous local, state, fedexhbtimer statutes, ordinances, rules and regulatonserning zoning, development,
building design, construction and similar mattersch impose restrictive zoning and density requeats, the result of which is to limit the
number of homes that can be built within the bouiedeof a particular area. We may encounter isalsentitiement or encounter zoning
changes that impact our operations. Projects tleat@t entitled may be subjected to periodic delalyanges in use, less intensive
development or elimination of development in certgpecific areas due to government regulationsmég also be subject to periodic delays
or may be precluded entirely from developing irnt@i&rcommunities due to building moratoriums oringrchanges. Such moratoriums
generally relate to insufficient water suppliesyage facilities, delays in utility hook-ups, or deguate road capacity within specific market
areas or subdivisions. Local governments also bavad discretion regarding the imposition of depetent fees for projects in their
jurisdiction. Projects for which we have receivadd use and development entitlements or approvaysstill require a variety of othi
governmental approvals and permits during the @gvaént process and can also be impacted advenseiyfbreseen health, safety and
welfare issues, which can further delay these ptsjer prevent their development. As a result, heales could decline and costs could
increase, which could have a material adverse taffeour business, prospects, liquidity, financ@hdition and results of operations.

We are subject to environmental laws and regulatios, which may increase our costs, result in liabilies, limit the areas in which we
can build homes and delay completion of our projest

We are subject to a variety of local, state, feldend other laws, statutes, ordinances, rules agdlations concerning the environment,
hazardous materials, the discharge of pollutardshaman health and safety. The particular envirorieleequirements which apply to any
given site vary according to multiple factors, uaihg the site’s location, its environmental coiudis, the current and former uses of the site,
the presence or absence of endangered plantsmalarir sensitive habitats, and conditions at neprbperties. We may not identify all of
these concerns during any pre-acquisition ordaeelopment review of project sites. Environmengguirements and conditions may resul
delays, may cause us to incur substantial compiand other costs, and can prohibit or severetyicedevelopment and homebuilding
activity in environmentally sensitive regions orareas contaminated by others before we commenetagenent. We are also subject to
third-party challenges, such as by environmental groupgighborhood associations, under environmentes nd regulations to the pern
and other approvals for our projects and operatiSometimes regulators from different governmeaggncies do not concur on developn
remedial standards or property use restrictionsforoject, and the resulting delays or additi@usits can be material for a given project.

From time to time, the EPA and similar federalfestar local agencies review land developers’ amddtauilders’ compliance with
environmental laws and may levy fines and penatte$ailure to strictly comply with applicable emenmental laws, including those
applicable to control of storm water dischargesrduconstruction, or impose additional requiremdatduture compliance as a result of past
failures. Any such actions taken with respect tonay increase our costs and result in project deMie expect that increasingly stringent
requirements will be imposed on land developerstanrdebuilders in the future. We cannot assure atignvironmental, health and safety
laws will not change or become more stringent @ftiiure in a manner that could have a materiates#veffect on our business.

Environmental regulations can also have an adverdgepact on the availability and price of certain rawmaterials, such as lumber.

There is a variety of new legislation being enactedconsidered for enactment at the federal, statelocal level relating to energy
climate change. This legislation relates to itemshsas carbon dioxide emissions control and budldiodes that impose energy efficie
standards. New building code requirements that gairicter energy efficiency standards could §igamtly increase our cost to constt
homes. As climate change concerns continue to giegislation and regulations of this nature areeet@d to continue and become n
costly to comply with. Similarly, energyelated initiatives affect a wide variety of commthroughout the U.S. and the world and bec
our operations are heavily dependent on signifieambunts of raw materials, such as lumber, steel.cancrete, they could have an indi
adverse impact on our operations and profitabititghe extent the manufacturers and suppliers ohuaterials are burdened with expen
cap and trade and similar energy related regulgtion
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Ownership, leasing or occupation of land and the @sof hazardous materials carries potential environrental risks and liabilities.

We are subject to a variety of local, state aneéffeldstatutes, rules and regulations concerning) lese and the protection of health and
the environment, including those governing discharfpollutants to soil, water and air, includirgbastos, the handling of hazardous
materials and the cleanup of contaminated sitesmaiebe liable for the costs of removal, invesigabr remediation of man-made or
natural hazardous or toxic substances locatedraterwor in a property currently or formerly own&gsed or occupied by us, whether or not
we caused or knew of the pollution.

The particular impact and requirements of envirom@ldaws that apply to any given community vargagly according to the
community site, the site’s environmental conditiansl the present and former uses of the site. \Weatthat increasingly stringent
requirements may be imposed on land developersiamebuilders in the future. Environmental laws mesult in delays, cause us to
implement time consuming and expensive compliamograms and prohibit or severely restrict develophire certain environmentally
sensitive regions or areas, such as wetlands. @wceuld arise due to post-acquisition changésws or agency policies, or the
interpretation thereof.

Furthermore, we could incur substantial costspidicig cleanup costs, fines, penalties and othestiganrs and damages from third-party
claims for property damage or personal injury, assalt of our failure to comply with, or liabiks under, applicable environmental laws and
regulations. In addition, we are subject to thiedtp challenges, such as by environmental groupeighborhood associations, under
environmental laws and regulations to the permits@her approvals required for our projects anerafions. These matters could adversely
affect our business, prospects, liquidity, finahc@ndition and results of operations.

As a homebuilding and land development busineds avitide variety of historic ownership, developmémmebuilding and
construction activities, we could be liable forute claims for damages as a result of the pastasept use of hazardous materials, including
building materials or fixtures known or suspectetbé hazardous or to contain hazardous materialseto use of building materials or
fixtures which are associated with elevated moldy Buch claims may adversely affect our businasspgects, financial condition and results
of operations. Insurance coverage for such claimg e limited or nonexistent.

Difficulties with appraisal valuations in relation to the proposed sales price of our homes could faas to reduce the price of our
homes for sale.

Each of our home sales is accompanied by an appddithe home value before closing. These apds#se professional judgments of
the market value of the property and are basedvamiaty of market factors. If our internal valuats of the market and pricing do not line up
with the appraisal valuations and appraisals at@nhor near the agreed upon sales price, we méyrbed to reduce the sales price of the
home to complete the sale. These appraisal issutd bave a material adverse effect on our busiaedgesults of operations.

Because of the seasonal nature of our business, aurarterly operating results fluctuate.

As discussed under “Management’s Discussion andyAisaof Financial Condition and Results of Opemas—Seasonality,” we have
historically experienced, and in the future exgeatontinue to experience, variability in our résun a quarterly basis. We close more homes
in our second, third and fourth quarters. Thus,reuenue may fluctuate on a quarterly basis andase have higher capital requirements in
our second, third and fourth quarters. Accordintiigre is a risk that we will invest significant anmts of capital in the acquisition and
development of land and construction of homeswleatio not sell at anticipated pricing levels orhwitanticipated time frames. If, due to
market conditions, construction delays or otheiseauwe do not complete home sales at anticipaieidglevels or within anticipated time
frames, our business, prospects, liquidity, finahcondition and results of operations would beegisely affected. We expect this seasonal
pattern to continue over the long term but we cakemo assurances as to the degree to which daribé seasonal patterns will occur in
future.

Adverse weather and geological conditions may incase costs, cause project delays and reduce consurdemand for housing, all of
which could materially and adversely affect us.

As a homebuilder and land developer, we are sulpebie risks associated with numerous weathetagland geologic events. These
weather-related and geologic events include buhatdéimited to hurricanes, tornados, droughtspdle, brushfires, wildfires, landslides, soil
subsidence and earthquakes and other naturalelisashe occurrence of any of these events coutthda our land parcels and projects,
cause delays in completion of our projects, reducesumer demand for
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housing, and cause shortages and price increatasoinor raw materials, any of which could affeat sales and profitability. In addition to
directly damaging our land or projects, many oktheatural events could damage roads and highwaygling access to those assets or
affect the desirability of our land or projectsetéby adversely affecting our ability to market tesnor sell land in those areas and possibly
increasing the costs of homebuilding completion.

There are some risks of loss for which we may kablento purchase insurance coverage. For exangskeed associated with hurricat
landslides, earthquakes and other weather-rela@d@ologic events may not be insurable and odssels, such as those arising from
terrorism, may not be economically insurable. Aealale uninsured loss could materially and advetaéct our business, prospects, liquic
financial condition and results of operations.

Our geographic concentration could materially and aversely affect us if the homebuilding industry inour current markets should
experience a decline.

Our business strategy is focused on the acquisificuitable land and the design, constructionsaid of single-family homes in
residential subdivisions, including planned comriggj in Texas, Arizona, Florida, Georgia and NeexMo. Because our operations are
currently concentrated in these areas, a proloegedomic downturn in the future in one or morehafse areas, particularly within Texas,
could have a material adverse effect on our busjmesspects, liquidity, financial condition anduks of operations, and a disproportionately
greater impact on us than other homebuilders withendiversified operations.

Moreover, certain insurance companies doing busiimeBlorida and Texas have restricted, curtailesuspended the issuance of
homeowners’ insurance policies on single-family leenirhis has both reduced the availability of lwame and other types of natural disaster
insurance in Florida and Texas, in general, anceased the cost of such insurance to prospectinghasers of homes in Florida and Texas.
Mortgage financing for a new home is conditionadpag other things, on the availability of adequaieneowners’ insurance. There can be
no assurance that homeowners’ insurance will béadla or affordable to prospective purchaserswfleomes offered for sale in the Florida
and Texas markets. Long-term restrictions on, @vaiability of, homeowners’ insurance in the Filariand Texas markets could have an
adverse effect on the homebuilding industry in thatket in general, and on our business within tieatket in particular. Additionally, the
availability of permits for new homes in new andséirg developments has been adversely affectaddgignificantly limited capacity of the
schools, roads, and other infrastructure in thakata

If adverse conditions in these markets developénfature, it could have a material adverse efbaocbur business, prospects, liquidity,
financial condition and results of operations. Rartore, if buyer demand for new homes in thes&ketaidecreases, home prices could
decline, which would have a material adverse eff@obur business.

Difficulty in obtaining sufficient capital could result in an inability to acquire land for our developments or increased costs and delays
in the completion of development projects.

The homebuilding and land development industnajsital-intensive and requires significant up-frermpenditures to acquire land
parcels and begin development. In addition, if hmysnarkets are not favorable or permitting or depment takes longer than anticipated,
we may be required to hold our investments in fmmeéxtended periods of time. If internally genethfunds are not sufficient, we may seek
additional capital in the form of equity or debtdhcing from a variety of potential sources, inatgdadditional bank financings and/or
securities offerings. The availability of borrowohds, especially for land acquisition and congtaicfinancing, may be greatly reduced
nationally, and the lending community may requiteréased amounts of equity to be invested in a&prdjy borrowers in connection with
both new loans and the extension of existing lod@hse.credit and capital markets have recently é&peed significant volatility. If we are
required to seek additional financing to fund opei@tions, continued volatility in these markets/mestrict our flexibility to access such
financing. If we are not successful in obtaininfisient funding for our planned capital and otlespenditures, we may be unable to acquire
additional land for development and/or to develepmousing. Additionally, if we cannot obtain adiutiial financing to fund the purchase of
land under our purchase or option contracts, we imay contractual penalties and fees. Any diffiguh obtaining sufficient capital for
planned development expenditures could also caugecgp delays and any such delay could result 8t treases. Any one or more of the
foregoing events could have a material adversetedie our business, prospects, liquidity, financiahdition and results of operations.

Our industry is cyclical and adverse changes in gemal and local economic conditions could reduce théemand for homes and, as a
result, could have a material adverse effect on us.

Our business can be substantially affected by aéveltanges in general economic or business comglititat are outside of our control,
including changes in short-term and long-term exdéerates; employment levels and job and persanahie
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growth; housing demand from population growth, letvedd formation and other demographic changes, grotrer factors; availability and
pricing of mortgage financing for homebuyers; consu confidence generally and the confidence ofrg@kehomebuyers in particular;
financial system and credit market stability; ptevaarty and government mortgage loan programsufivey changes in FHA, USDA, VA,
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac conforming mortgage lioaits, credit risk/mortgage loan insurance premsuand/or other fees, down paymr
requirements and underwriting standards), and &aerd state regulation, oversight and legal aggarding lending, appraisal, foreclosure
and short sale practices; federal and state pdrsmane tax rates and provisions, including primris for the deduction of mortgage loan
interest payments, real estate taxes and othensgpesupply of and prices for available new oaleeeomes (including lender-owned homes)
and other housing alternatives, such as apartmsntde-family rentals and other rental housingnkbuyer interest in our current or new
product designs and new home community locatiomd gggneral consumer interest in purchasing a hamgpared to choosing other housing
alternatives; and real estate taxes. Adverse clsanghese conditions may affect our business naliyp or may be more prevalent or
concentrated in particular submarkets in which werate. Inclement weather, natural disasters (sa@arthquakes, hurricanes, tornadoes,
floods, droughts and fires), and other environmesaaditions can delay the delivery of our homed/anincrease our costs. Civil unrest or
acts of terrorism can also have a negative effedw business.

The potential difficulties described above can eadismand and prices for our homes to fall or cagde take longer and incur more
costs to develop the land and build our homes. \& mot be able to recover these increased costiding prices because of market
conditions. The potential difficulties could algall some homebuyers to cancel or refuse to hoarttbme purchase contracts altogether.

Inflation could adversely affect our business andifiancial results.

Inflation could adversely affect our business dndricial results by increasing the costs of land; materials and labor needed to
operate our business. If our markets have an opplgwf homes relative to demand, we may be untb&éfset any such increases in costs
with corresponding higher sales prices for our hmniflation may also accompany higher interedissravhich could adversely impact
potential customers’ ability to obtain financing favorable terms, thereby further decreasing demiémee are unable to raise the prices of
our homes to offset the increasing costs of ouraijmns, our margins could decrease. Furthermbves need to lower the price of our homes
to meet demand, the value of our land inventory degrease. Inflation may also raise our costs pitaisand decrease our purchasing power,
making it more difficult to maintain sufficient fds to operate our business.

Interest rate changes may adversely affect us.

We currently do not hedge against interest raiedltions. We may obtain in the future one or nforms of interest rate protection in
the form of swap agreements, interest rate capacistor similar agreements to hedge against thsiffle negative effects of interest rate
fluctuations. However, we cannot assure you thgtreiging will adequately relieve the adverse affet interest rate increases or that
counterparties under these agreements will horear dibligations thereunder. In addition, we mayshbbject to risks of default by hedging
counterparties. Adverse economic conditions coldd eause the terms on which we borrow to be umédle. We could be required to
liquidate one or more of our assets at times whiely not permit us to receive an attractive returmor assets in order to meet our debt
service obligations.

We are subject to warranty and liability claims arising in the ordinary course of business that can b&ignificant.

As a homebuilder, we are subject to constructideaeproduct liability and home warranty claimsgluding moisture intrusion and
related claims, arising in the ordinary course ugibess. We maintain, and require our subcontrattomaintain, general liability insurance
(including construction defect and bodily injuryvesage) and workers’ compensation insurance anerghy seek to require our
subcontractors to indemnify us for liabilities &g from their work. While these insurance policiesbject to deductibles and other coverage
limits, and indemnities protect us against a partbour risk of loss from claims related to ounfebuilding activities, we cannot provide
assurance that these insurance policies and intieswiill be adequate to address all our home wgyrgroduct liability and construction
defect claims in the future, or that any poteritiadequacies will not have an adverse effect orfinancial statements. Additionally, the
coverage offered by and the availability of genéaddility insurance for construction defects awgrently limited and costly. We cannot
provide assurance that coverage will not be funtbstricted, increasing our risks and financialasype to claims, and/or become more co
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We may suffer uninsured losses or suffer materiablsses in excess of insurance limits.

We could suffer physical damage to property angilliges resulting in losses that may not be fullgoverable by insurance. Insurance
against certain types of risks, such as terroresarthquakes or floods or personal injury claimsy tma unavailable, available in amounts that
are less than the full market value or replacemest of investment or underlying assets or suligeatlarge deductible. In addition, there can
be no assurance certain types of risks which amewtly insurable will continue to be insurableameconomically feasible basis. Should an
uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insureddiottur or be subject to deductibles, we couldasuéinancial loss or lose capital invested in
the affected property as well as anticipated futnceme from that property. Furthermore, we cotddiable to repair damage or meet
liabilities caused by risks that are uninsuredutiject to deductibles. We may be liable for anytaelother financial obligations related to
affected property. Material losses or liabilitieseixcess of insurance proceeds may occur in thegfut

If the market value of our land inventory decreasesour results of operations could be adversely aff¢ed by impairments and write-
downs.

The market value of our land and housing invensodepends on market conditions. We acquire landXpansion into new markets
and for replacement of land inventory and expansiibhin our current markets. There is an inherék that the value of the land owned by
us may decline after purchase. The valuation gbgnty is inherently subjective and based on thesiddal characteristics of each property.
We may have acquired options on or bought and dpeel land at a cost we will not be able to recduiy or on which we cannot build and
sell homes profitably. In addition, our depositslfiis controlled under purchase, option or similantracts may be put at risk.

Factors such as changes in regulatory requirenamatsipplicable laws (including in relation to binlgl regulations, taxation and
planning), political conditions, the condition @fidncial markets, both local and national econaroitditions, the financial condition of
customers, potentially adverse tax consequencddngarest and inflation rate fluctuations subjeaiuations to uncertainty. Moreover, our
valuations are made on the basis of assumptiohsnizwanot prove to reflect economic or demograpéédity.

If housing demand fails to meet our expectationemve acquired our inventory, our profitability mag adversely affected and we
may not be able to recover our costs when we lauittisell houses. We regularly review the valueunfland holdings and continue to review
our holdings on a periodic basis. Further matevigte-downs and impairments in the value of oureimory may be required, and we may in
the future sell land or homes at a loss, which@daadversely affect our results of operations andrfcial condition.

Fluctuations in real estate values may require ustwrite-down the book value of our real estate aste

The homebuilding and land development industriessabject to significant variability and fluctuat®in real estate values. As a result,
we may be required to write-down the book valuewfreal estate assets in accordance with U.S. GAA® some of those write-downs
could be material. Any material write-downs of assmuld have a material adverse effect on oumlegsi prospects, liquidity, financial
condition and results of operations.

Acts of war or terrorism may seriously harm our busness.

Acts of war, any outbreak or escalation of hogt#titbetween the United States and any foreign powacts of terrorism may cause
disruption to the U.S. economy, or the local ecoiesmf the markets in which we operate, cause agestof building materials, increase
costs associated with obtaining building materiasult in building code changes that could inoeeassts of construction, affect job growth
and consumer confidence, or cause economic changese cannot anticipate, all of which could reeldemand for our homes and adver
impact our business, prospects, liquidity, finahc@ndition and results of operations.

A major health and safety incident relating to ourbusiness could be costly in terms of potential lidlities and reputational damage.

Building sites are inherently dangerous, and opegah the homebuilding and land development indugbses certain inherent health
and safety risks. Due to health and safety regilagmuirements and the number of projects we weorkhealth and safety performance is
critical to the success of all areas of our busines

Any failure in health and safety performance maukein penalties for non-compliance with relevesgulatory requirements or
litigation, and a failure that results in a majors@nificant health and safety incident is likédybe costly in
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terms of potential liabilities incurred as a res8lich a failure could generate significant negapiublicity and have a corresponding impact
on our reputation and our relationships with reféwvagulatory agencies, governmental authoritieslacal communities, which in turn could
have a material adverse effect on our businessppuats, liquidity, financial condition and resufsoperations.

We may become subject to litigation, which could mterially and adversely affect us.

In the future, we may become subject to litigatioe|uding claims relating to our operations, sé@s offerings and otherwise in the
ordinary course of business. Some of these claimsnesult in significant defense costs and potéytiggnificant judgments against us, so
of which are not, or cannot be, insured against.céfeot be certain of the ultimate outcomes of@daiyns that may arise in the future.
Resolution of these types of matters against usmesylt in our having to pay significant fines, gmdents, or settlements, which, if uninsured,
or if the fines, judgments and settlements exceedred levels, could adversely impact our earnamgscash flows, thereby materially and
adversely affecting us. Certain litigation or tlesalution of certain litigation may affect the dshility or cost of some of our insurance
coverage, which could materially and adversely ichjp&, expose us to increased risks that wouldhiesured, and materially and adversely
impact our ability to attract directors and offiser

Poor relations with the residents of our communitis could negatively impact sales, which could causer revenue or results of
operations to decline.

Residents of communities we develop rely on ugsolve issues or disputes that may arise in colamestith the operation or
development of their communities. Efforts made byairesolve these issues or disputes could beeteansatisfactory by the affected
residents and subsequent actions by these resictaritsadversely affect our sales or our reputatiomddition, we could be required to m
material expenditures related to the settlemestioh issues or disputes or to modify our commushétyelopment plans, which could
adversely affect our results of operations.

An information systems interruption or breach in sesurity could adversely affect us.

We rely on accounting, financial and operationahagement information systems to conduct our operstiAny disruption in these
systems could adversely affect our ability to carichwr business. Furthermore, any security bre&affarmation systems or data could re:
in a violation of applicable privacy and other lawggnificant legal and financial exposure, dam@geur reputation, and a loss of confidence
in our security measures, which could harm ourress.

Termination of the employment agreement with our Clef Executive Officer could be costly and prevent ahange in control of our
company.

The employment agreement with our Chief Executi¥f#&c€r, Eric Lipar, provides that if his employmenith us terminates under
certain circumstances, we may be required to payahsignificant amount of severance compensati@reby making it costly to terminate
his employment. Furthermore, these provisions cdeldy or prevent a transaction or a change inrobof our company that might involve a
premium paid for shares of our common stock ormttse be in the best interests of our stockhold&héch could adversely affect the mar
price of our common stock.

Any future government shutdowns or slowdowns may mtarially adversely affect our business or financiatesults.

The U.S. federal government shutdown in the fiest pf October 2013 which impacted the FHA andWi$A, among other feder
agencies, and their backing of mortgage loans,tiveijaffected our closings in October 2013. Aoyure government shutdowns or
slowdowns may materially adversely affect our besgor financial results. We can make no assurahaepotential closings affected by ¢
such shutdown or slowdown will occur after the sloutn or slowdown has ended.

The Dodd-Frank Act may affect the availability or mst of mortgages, which could adversely affect ouesults of operations.

Further tightening of mortgage lending standards@actices and/or reduced credit availabilityrffartgages may also result from the
implementation of regulations under the 2010 Dodahk Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection(et “Dodd-Frank Act”). Among
other things, the Dodd-Frank Act established séverpirements (including risk retention obligatsymelating to the origination, securitizing
and servicing of, and consumer disclosures for tgagie loans. These include, among others, minintandards for mortgages and lender
practices in making mortgages, limitations on é¢erl@ees and incentive arrangements, retentioneditrisk and remedies for borrowers in
foreclosure proceedings. These requirements,
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as and when implemented, are expected to reduavtilability of loans to borrowers and/or increétse costs to borrowers to obtain such
loans. Any such reduction could result in a dectiheur home sales, which could materially and asiedy affect our business, prospects,
liquidity, financial condition and results of op&oms.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure

We depend on key management personnel and other eeqienced employees.

Our success depends to a significant degree uocotttributions of certain key management persoime&lding, but not limited to,
Eric Lipar, our Chief Executive Officer and Chainmaef our board. Although we have entered into apleyment agreement with Mr. Lipar,
there is no guarantee that Mr. Lipar will remainpboged by us. If any of our key management persiweee to cease employment with us,
our operating results could suffer. Our abilityrédain our key management personnel or to attratgtde replacements should any members
of our management team leave is dependent on thpetdive nature of the employment market. The lfsservices from key management
personnel or a limitation in their availability ddumaterially and adversely impact our businessspects, liquidity, financial condition and
results of operations. Further, such a loss coealddgatively perceived in the capital markets. \&Bdeemot obtained key man life insurance
that would provide us with proceeds in the everdesdth or disability of any of our key managemearspnnel.

Experienced employees in the homebuilding, landisttepn and construction industries are fundamieiotaur ability to generate,
obtain and manage opportunities. In particularalé@owledge and relationships are critical to ahbitity to source attractive land acquisition
opportunities. Experienced employees working intbimebuilding and construction industries are higldught after. Failure to attract and
retain such personnel or to ensure that their éxpes and knowledge is not lost when they leavéotisgness through retirement, redundancy
or otherwise may adversely affect the standardsipbervice and may have an adverse impact onuminéss, prospects, liquidity, financial
condition and results of operations. The loss gf@our key personnel could adversely impact asitess, prospects, financial condition
and results of operations.

We may change our operational policies, investmemjuidelines and our business and growth strategiesitivout stockholder consent,
which may subject us to different and more signifiant risks in the future.

Our board of directors will determine our operasibpolicies, investment guidelines and our busimegbgrowth strategies. Our board
of directors may make changes to, or approve tcdiose that deviate from, those policies, guidedinad strategies without a vote of, or
notice to, our stockholders. This could resultsnconducting operational matters, making investmenpursuing different business or gro
strategies than those contemplated in this AnnealoR. Under any of these circumstances, we magsxpurselves to different and more
significant risks in the future, which could haveaterial adverse effect on our business, prospégpigdity, financial condition and results
operations.

Changes in accounting rules, assumptions and/or jgpnents could materially and adversely affect us.

Accounting rules and interpretations for certaipesss of our financial reporting, including thoséating to our goodwill and other
intangibles, operations are highly complex and imesignificant assumptions and judgment. Theseptexities could lead to a delay in the
preparation and dissemination of our financialestents. Furthermore, changes in accounting rulésma@rpretations or in our accounting
assumptions and/or judgments, such as asset imgrasnrcould significantly impact our financial statents. In some cases, we could be
required to apply a new or revised standard retively, resulting in restating prior period finaatstatements. Any of these circumstances
could have a material adverse effect on our busjmEespects, liquidity, financial condition andués of operations.

We expect to use leverage in executing our businedtsategy, which may adversely affect the return omur assets.

We expect to employ prudent levels of leveragenarfce the acquisition and development of ourdoid construction of our homes.
Our existing indebtedness is recourse to us andniteipate that future indebtedness will likewigerbcourse. As of December 31, 2013, we
had $ 37.0 million of revolving credit facilities finance our construction and development acéisitAs of December 31, 2013, we had
outstanding borrowings of $35.5 million under otedit facilities and we could borrow an additio#al5 million under our credit facilities
without breaching any of the facilities’ financi@venants. As of December 31, 2013, borrowings wodecredit facilities bore interest at a
rate of 4.0%per annum; interest is payable monthly. During dan2014, our secured credit facility was amendetirastated and the facili
was increased to $50.0 million.

Our board of directors will consider a number aftfas when evaluating our level of indebtednessvaimeih making decisions regardi
the incurrence of new indebtedness, including tirelpase price of assets to be acquired with debt
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financing, if any, the estimated market value of assets and the ability of particular assets,amctcompany as a whole, to generate cash
flow to cover the expected debt service. As a meassistaining our long-term financial health aimiting our exposure to unforeseen
dislocations in the debt and financing marketscweently expect to remain conservatively capitadizHowever, our certificate of
incorporation does not contain a limitation on #imeount of indebtedness we may incur and our bolad@@ctors may change our target debt
levels at any time without the approval of our ktazlders.

Incurring substantial indebtedness could subjetb usany risks that, if realized, would adversdfget us, including the risk that:

< our cash flow from operations may be insuffitiemmake required payments of principal of anériest on the debt which is likely to
result in acceleration of such indebtedness;

e our indebtedness may increase our vulnerahdigdverse economic and industry conditions witlasgurance that our profitability
will increase with higher financing cost;

e we may be required to dedicate a portion ofaash flow from operations to payments on our ineétéss, thereby reducing funds
available for operations and capital expendituisire investment opportunities or other purposest

« the terms of any refinancing may not be as faverablthe terms of the indebtedness being refine

If we do not have sufficient funds to repay ourghtedness at maturity, it may be necessary toamfi® the indebtedness through
additional debt or additional equity financings.df the time of any refinancing, prevailing intreates or other factors result in higher
interest rates on refinancings, increases in iatangpense could adversely affect our cash flowsrasults of operations. If we are unable to
refinance our indebtedness on acceptable termmayebe forced to dispose of our assets on disadgaatis terms, potentially resulting in
losses. To the extent we cannot meet any futuressdebice obligations, we will risk losing someadlrof our assets that may be pledged to
secure our obligations to foreclosure. Unsecurdad dgreements may contain specific cross-defaaitipions with respect to specified other
indebtedness, giving the unsecured lenders thé tagiheclare a default if we are in default undiieo indebtedness in some circumstances.
Defaults under our credit facilities and our otebt agreements, if any, could have a materialradweffect on our business, prospects,
liquidity, financial condition and results of opéoas.

Access to financing sources may not be available devorable terms, or at all, especially in light ofcurrent market conditions, which
could adversely affect our ability to maximize oureturns.

Our access to additional third-party sources driting will depend, in part, on:

e general market conditior

e the markes perception of our growth potent

< with respect to acquisition and/or developmémdricing, the market's perception of the valuehef land parcels to be acquired and/or
developed;

e our current debt level

e our current and expected future earni

e our cash flow; ar

« the market price per share of our common s

Recently, domestic financial markets have expeddnmusual volatility, uncertainty and a tightenaidiquidity in both the high yield
debt and equity capital markets. Credit spreadsnfmjor sources of capital widened significantlyidgrthe U.S. credit crisis as investors
demanded a higher risk premium. Given the curretatiity and weakness in the capital and creditkats, potential lenders may be
unwilling or unable to provide us with financingattis attractive to us or may charge us prohibijiveegh fees in order to obtain financing.
Consequently, there is greater uncertainty reggrdur ability to access the credit market in ortdeattract financing on reasonable terms.
Investment returns on our assets and our abilitpake acquisitions could be adversely affecteduryirmability to secure additional financing
on reasonable terms, if at all.

Depending on market conditions at the relevant tiwveemay have to rely more heavily on additionalisgfinancings or on less
efficient forms of debt financing that require egler portion of our cash flow from operations, gty reducing funds available for our
operations, future business opportunities and gihgsoses. We may not have access to such equitytrcapital on favorable terms at the
desired times, or at all.
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Our current financing arrangements contain, and ourfuture financing arrangements likely will contain, restrictive provisions.

Our current financing arrangements contain, anditf@cing arrangements we enter into in the futiledy will contain, provisions thi
limit our ability to do certain things. In parti@r| our secured revolving credit facility that veasended and restated in January 2014 requires
the borrowers to maintain a net worth of not Iésst$35.0 million and the Company, as guarantandamtain a tangible net worth of not less
than $125.0 million . The amended credit agreeraksut requires the borrowers to maintain a leveratie of not more than 1.25 to 1.0 and
the Company, as guarantor, to maintain a leveratie of not more than 1.0 to 1.0. The Borrowersrarpiired under the amended credit
agreement to maintain liquidity in excess of $1filion and unrestricted cash of not less than $6illon . The amended credit agreement
requires that the borrowers shall not suffer nesds in more than two consecutive calendar quahteasidition, the amended credit
agreement contains various covenants that, amdmy mstrictions, limit the amount of additionabtland related party transactions.

If we fail to meet or satisfy any of these provigpwe would be in default under our credit fagiihd our lender could elect to declare
outstanding amounts due and payable, terminatedbgimitments, require the posting of additiondlateral and enforce their respective
interests against existing collateral. A defawdbatould limit significantly our financing alterias, which could cause us to curtail our
investment activities and/or dispose of assets wwentherwise would not choose to do so. In addjtioture indebtedness may contain
financial covenants limiting our ability to, for @aple, incur additional indebtedness, make centwi@stments, reduce liquidity below certain
levels and pay dividends to our stockholders, ahdravise affect our operating policies. If we défawm one or more of our debt agreements,
it could have a material adverse effect on ourress, prospects, liquidity, financial condition aedults of operations.

Interest expense on debt we incur may limit our cdsavailable to fund our growth strategies.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $ 37 million ofofeing credit facilities. As of December 31, 209& had outstanding borrowings
of $35.5 million under our credit facilities and weuld borrow an additional $1.5 million under euedit facilities without breaching any of
the facilities’ financial covenants. As of DecemBé&r 2013, borrowings under our credit facilitiesdinterest at a rate of 4.0% per annum.
During January 2014, our secured credit facilitysvaenended and restated and the facility was inede@s$50.0 million. If our operations do
not generate sufficient cash from operations aliegurrently anticipated, we may seek additiomgiital in the form of debt financing. Our
current indebtedness has, and any additional iedelkss we subsequently incur may have, a floatitegaf interest. Higher interest rates
could increase debt service requirements on ouewtifioating rate indebtedness and on any floatittg indebtedness we subsequently incur,
and could reduce funds available for operationsiréubusiness opportunities or other purposeselheed to repay existing indebtedness
during periods of rising interest rates, we cowddéquired to refinance our themisting indebtedness on unfavorable terms ordigjigi one ¢
more of our assets to repay such indebtednesses tivhich may not permit realization of the maximmaturn on such assets and could result
in a loss. The occurrence of either such evenbtr bould materially and adversely affect our césivs and results of operations.

We are a holding company, and we are accordingly gendent upon distributions from our subsidiaries topay dividends, if any, taxes
and other expenses.

We are a holding company and will have no mateasakts other than our ownership of membershipeistgior limited partnership
interests in our subsidiaries. We have no indepsinieans of generating revenue. We intend to caussubsidiaries to make distribution:
their members or partners in an amount sufficiertotver all applicable taxes payable and divideiids)y, declared by us. Future financing
arrangements may contain negative covenants, tigiitie ability of our subsidiaries to declare oy gavidends or make distributions. To the
extent that we need funds, and our subsidiariesestected from making such dividends or distribog under applicable law or regulations,
or otherwise unable to provide such funds, for gXarrdue to restrictions in future financing arramgents that limit the ability of our
operating subsidiaries to distribute funds, ouniliity and financial condition could be materiatigrmed.

The obligations associated with being a public congmy will require significant resources and managentd attention.

As a public company with listed equity securitieg, need to comply with new laws, regulations ampliiements, including the
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834amended, or the Exchange Act, certain copg@ternance provisions of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, related regulations of the 8B€requirements of the NASDAQ Global Select Maridth which we were not required
to comply as a private company. The Exchange Agpiires that we file annual, quarterly and currepiorts with respect to our business and
financial condition. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act regsiimong other things, that we establish and miaieféective internal controls and
procedures for financial reporting.
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Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requiresnmamagement and independent auditors to report nmmmathe effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting. Howevesre are an “emerging growth company,” as definethénJOBS Act, and, so for as long as
we continue to be an emerging growth company, wenihto take advantage of certain exemptions frarfous reporting requirements
applicable to other public companies but not to rging growth companies, including, but not limiteg not being required to comply with
the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404

Once we are no longer an emerging growth company jror to such date, we opt to no longer talgantage of the applicable
exemption, we will be required to include an opimfoom our independent auditors on the effectiveredur internal control over financial
reporting.

These reporting and other obligations place sigaift demands on our management, administrativeatipeal and accounting
resources and cause us to incur significant exgeilge may need to upgrade our systems or creatsystems, implement additional
financial and management controls, reporting systend procedures, create or outsource an intemdél fanction, and hire additional
accounting and finance staff. If we are unablecimoanplish these objectives in a timely and effecfashion, our ability to comply with the
financial reporting requirements and other ruleg #pply to reporting companies could be impaifed; failure to maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting could have a miatleadverse effect on our business, prospectsdiiyu financial condition and results of
operations.

We are an “emerging growth company,” and, as a redtof the reduced disclosure and governance requiraents applicable to
emerging growth companies, our common stock may Hbess attractive to investors.

We are an “emerging growth company,” as definethénJOBS Act, and we are eligible to take advantdgertain exemptions from
various reporting requirements applicable to othdylic companies but not to emerging growth comgsrincluding, but not limited to, a
requirement to present only two years of auditadritial statements, an exemption from the auditestation requirement of Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure abadgive compensation arrangements pursuant taitee applicable to smaller reporting
companies and no requirement to seek non-binding@y votes on executive compensation or goldeagiaite arrangements. We have
elected to adopt these reduced disclosure requirsimé@/e could be an emerging growth company umillast day of the fiscal year followi
the fifth anniversary of the completion of our IP&lthough a variety of circumstances could cauge isse that status earlier. We cannot
predict if investors will find our common stock $eattractive as a result of our taking advantagbege exemptions. If some investors find
our common stock less attractive as a result otboices, there may be a less active trading méoketur common stock and our stock price
may be more volatile.

In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act providesttan emerging growth company can take advantiile @xtended transition
period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Setiesi Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities fdctcomplying with new or revised
financial accounting standards. An emerging grovaimpany can therefore delay the adoption of cese@ounting standards until those
standards would otherwise apply to private commatiwever, we have determined to opt out of sutdneled transition period and, as a
result, we will comply with new or revised finank#&counting standards on the relevant dates onhwddoption of such standards is requ
for non-emerging growth companies. Section 10hefXOBS Act provides that our decision to opt duhe extended transition period for
complying with new or revised financial accountstgndards is irrevocable.

If we fail to implement and maintain an effective gstem of internal controls, we may not be able tocurately determine our financial
results or prevent fraud. As a result, our stockhalers could lose confidence in our financial resultsvhich could materially and
adversely affect us.

Effective internal controls are necessary for ugrtavide reliable financial reports and effectivelgvent fraud. We may in the future
discover areas of our internal controls that neggtdvement. We cannot be certain that we will becesasful in implementing or maintaining
adequate internal control over our financial rejpgrand financial processes. Furthermore, as we gror business, our internal controls will
become more complex, and we will require signifttamore resources to ensure our internal contensain effective. Additionally, the
existence of any material weakness or significaficeency would require management to devote sicgnit time and incur significant
expense to remediate any such material weaknesgroficant deficiency and management may not e @hremediate any such material
weakness or significant deficiency in a timely maniThe existence of any material weakness inmermal control over financial reporting
could also result in errors in our financial stadets that could require us to restate our finarstetements, cause us to fail to meet our
reporting obligations and cause stockholders te tmsfidence in our reported financial informatiat ,of which could materially and
adversely affect us.

25




Table of Contents

Any joint venture investments that we make could badversely affected by our lack of sole decision rkang authority, our reliance on
the financial condition of our joint venture partners and disputes between us and our joint venture pters.

We may co-invest in the future with third partibsatugh partnerships, joint ventures or other esgtjtacquiring non-controlling interests
in or sharing responsibility for managing the affaf a land acquisition and/or a developmenthlis ¢vent, we would not be in a position to
exercise sole decision-making authority regardiegacquisition and/or development, and our investmmy be illiquid due to our lack of
control. Investments in partnerships, joint vensum other entities may, under certain circumsanimvolve risks not present were a third
party not involved, including the possibility thair joint venture partners might become bankrwgtté fund their share of required capital
contributions, make poor business decisions orkbtwalelay necessary decisions. Our joint ventamtngrs may have economic or other
business interests or goals which are inconsistéghtour business interests or goals, and may laegasition to take actions contrary to our
policies or objectives. Such investments may aseetthe potential risk of impasses on decisionsh si$ a sale, because neither we nor our
joint venture partners would have full control ottee land acquisition or development. Disputes ketwus and our joint venture partners
result in litigation or arbitration that would irease our expenses and prevent our officers angémtars from focusing their time and effort
on our business. In addition, we may in certaiouwinstances be liable for the actions of our joatture partners.

Cautionary Statement about Forward-Looking Statemeis

From time to time we make statements concerningerpectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, goatategies, future events or
performance and underlying assumptions and oth&raents that are not historical facts. Theserstatts are “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigan Reform Act of 1995. Actual results may diffeaterially from those expressed or
implied by these statements. You can generallytifyeour forward-looking statements by the wordstiaipate,” “believe,” “continue,”
“could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “goal,"intend,” “may,” “objective,” “plan,” “potential,™predict,” “projection,” “should,” “will” or
other similar words.

” o LT ” ” o " ow ” o« ” W 7 ” o«

We have based our forward-looking statements ommamagement’s beliefs and assumptions based omiafimn available to our
management at the time the statements are madeabien you that assumptions, beliefs, expectatimsntions and projections about
future events may and often do vary materially fractual results. Therefore, we cannot assure yatusittual results will not differ materially
from those expressed or implied by our forward-logkstatements.

The following are some of the factors that couldseaactual results to differ materially from thes@ressed or implied in forward-
looking statements:

* adverse economic changes either nationally trérmarkets in which we operate, including incesaa unemployment, volatility of
mortgage interest rates and inflation;

e aslowdown in the homebuilding indus

e continued volatility and uncertainty in the credlidrkets and broader financial mark

e the cyclical and seasonal nature of our busi

< our future operating results and financial condi

e our business operatiol

« changes in our business and investment stre

e our ability to successfully expand into new mar}

* our ability to successfully extend our businesslel to building homes with higher price pointsyeloping larger communities and
sales of acreage home sites;

» our ability to successfully integrate any acquisis with our existing operatiol

* availability of land to acquire and our ability@equire such land on favorable terms or a

e availability, terms and deployment of capi

e decline in the market value of our land portfc

e continued or increased disruption in the termswvailability of mortgage financing or the numberfofeclosures in our marke

« shortages of or increased prices for labor, landwrmaterials used in housing construct

- delays in land development or home constructionltieg from natural disasters, adverse weather itmnd or other events outside ¢
control;

e uninsured losses in excess of insurance li

« the cost and availability of insurance and suretyds

« changes in, or the failure or inability to complithy governmental laws and regulatic

» the timing of receipt of regulatory approvals ahe bpening of project
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e the degree and nature of our competit

e increases in taxes or government f

e aninability to develop our projects successfullymithin expected timeframe

« the success of our operations in recently openedmarkets and our ability to expand into additionelv market:

« poor relations with the residents of our proje

« future litigation, arbitration or other clain

« availability of qualified personnel and third padyntractors and our ability to retain our key parsel

« our leverage and future debt service obligati

« continued volatility and uncertainty in the credirkets and broader financial mark

< the impact on our business of any future governrakuatdown similar to the one that occurred in Oetdt013

» other risks and uncertainties inherent in our bessnan

« other factors we discuss under the sectionledtiManagement's Discussion and Analysis of Fir@r@ondition and Results of
Operations."

You should not place undue reliance on forward-loglstatements. Each forward-looking statementksgpealy as of the date of the
particular statement. We expressly disclaim angrifjtobligation or undertaking to update or rewsg forward-looking statements to reflect
any change in our expectations with regard thesetny change in events, conditions or circumstaocewhich any such statements are
based. All subsequent written and oral forward-ingkstatements attributable to us or persons acimgur behalf are expressly qualified in
their entirety by the cautionary statements coetiim this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease approximately 13,000 square feet in Thedlamds, Texas for our corporate headquarters|ghie expires in 2018. In
addition, we lease divisional offices in Georgia &rizona. We lease approximately 1,900 squareife@eorgia and this lease expires in
2019. We lease approximately 1,800 square feetignAa and this lease expires in 2018. See "Busirésnd Acquisition Policies and
Development” for a summary of the other propertyciviwe owned or controlled as of December 31, 2013.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of doing business, we abgestito claims or proceedings from time to timiatiag to the purchase, developm
and sale of real estate. Management believeshbagétclaims include usual obligations incurreddaf estate developers in the normal course
of business. In the opinion of management, theg&ensawill not have a material effect on our finet@osition, results of operations or cash
flows.

We have provided unsecured environmental indensnitieertain lenders. In each case, we have pegfibdue diligence on the
potential environmental risks including obtainingiadependent environmental review from outsiddremmental consultants. These
indemnities obligate us to reimburse the guaranpeeties for damages related to environmental mgatléhere is no term or damage
limitation on these indemnities; however, if an ieowmental matter arises, we may have recoursengsipaiher previous owners. Management
is not aware of any environmental claims or ocawes and has recorded no reserves for environmeatéérs.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ITEMS5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Stock MafNASDAQ) under the symbol “LGIH.The following table sets forth, for tl
periods indicated, the range of high and low sptes for our common stock, as reported by the DNAQ.

December 31, 2013
High Low
1st Quarter $ — $ —
2nd Quarter — —
3rd Quarter — —
4th Quarter (November 7 - December 31) 18.8¢ 12.01

As of March 28, 2014, the closing price of our coomstock on the NASDAQ was $18.09, and we had 1ekkkolders of record,
including Cede & Co. as nominee of The DepositanysT Company.

Initial Public Offering

On November 13, 2013, we completed an IPO of 1Q08&0shares of our common stock, which was condymtiesuant to our
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 3388B3), as amended, that was declared effectiveaseiber 6, 2013. The IPO provided
us with net proceeds of $102.6 million. During Noweer 2013, we used $36.9 million of the net prosdeam the IPO for the cash portion of
the purchase price to acquire all of the joint veminterests of our joint venture partners inltkd/GTIS Joint Ventures. The remaining
amount of the net proceeds has been availableddkimg capital and general corporate purposesydiat the acquisition of land,
development lots and construction of homes. Atdbawer 31, 2013, we have $54.1 million of cash asth @quivalents which reflects (i) net
cash generated from operations, (ii) approxima$&lyp million of net borrowings under our creditifay since the IPO, (iii) $6.7 million of
cash acquired in the GTIS Acquisitions, and (ivd thmaining net proceeds from the IPO. We intengstothe remaining net proceeds from
our IPO for similar working capital and generalmanate purposes.

Dividends

We currently intend to retain our future earnirigany, to finance the development and expansioounfbusiness and, therefore, do not
intend to pay cash dividends on our common stockhi® foreseeable future. Any future determinatmpay dividends will be at the
discretion of our board of directors and will degem our financial condition, results of operatiorepital requirements, restrictions contai
in any of our financing arrangements and such dtmtors as our board of directors may deem rekeVds have not previously declared or
paid any cash dividends on our common stock.

Equity Compensation Plans

The table below sets forth the information as of@&uwber 31, 2013 for our equity compensation plan:

Number of securities

Number of securities to be Weighted-average remaining available for
issued upon exercise of exercise price of future issuance under
outstanding options, outstanding options, equity compensation
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights plans
Equity compensation plan
approved by security holders 140,372 $ — 1,359,62¢

A total of 1,500,000 of the Compamsy¢tommon shares are reserved for issuance unde6Gthdomes, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plal
December 31, 2013. There are 140,372 restrictatk stoits (RSUs) outstanding at December 31 2018 vilere issued at a $0 exercise price.
See Note 12 in the accompanying consolidated fiahstatements for a description of the plan.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following table presents our selected histdficancial and operating data as of the datesfanthe periods indicated.

The selected historical balance sheet and statemf@pierations information presented as of DecerBiheP013 and 2012 and for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 avedl&om our audited historical consolidated ficial statements. The following tat
should be read together with, and is qualifiedsrentirety by reference to, our historical cordatiéd financial statements and the
accompanying notes included elsewhere in this AhReport. The table should also be read togethtr iManagement’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems.” For discussion of pro forma financial infation for the years ended December
31, 2013 and 2012, please see "Management's Disowsmsd Analysis of Financial Condition and Resoft©perations—Unaudited Pro
Forma Consolidated Financial Information" and "Mgement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Camdiand Results of Operations—
Supplemental Management's Discussion and Analysis".
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Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues:

Home sales

Management and warranty fees
Total revenues
Expenses:

Cost of sales

Selling expenses

General and administrative
Income from unconsolidated joint ventures

Operating income
Interest expense, net
Gain on remeasurement of interests in LGI/GTISt)entures
Other income, net
Net income before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net income

(Income) loss attributable to non-controlling irtsts
Net income attributable to owners
Basic earnings per shai®
Diluted earnings per shaf®
Other Financial and Operating Data:
Active communities during ye&2)
Active communities at end of year
Home closings
Average sales price of homes closed (in whole dg)lla
Gross margirg3)
Gross margin %4)
Adjusted gross margifb)
Adjusted gross margin %)(5)
Adjusted EBITDA(6)
Adjusted EBITDA margin %(4)(6)

30

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(dollars in thousands, except
share data and average home sales price)

$ 160,060 $ 7382( $ 49,27(

2,72¢ 2,401 1,18¢

$ 162,79¢ $ 76,22. $ 50,45t

121,32 54,53 36,70

15,76¢ 7,26¢ 4,88¢

13,60« 6,09¢ 5,12¢

(4,287) (1,526) (715)

$ 16,38: $ 9,851 $ 4,461

(53) (1) (29)

6,44¢ — —

24 172 204

$ 22,80: $ 10,02:  $ 4,63

(1,066) (155) (125)

$ 21737 $ 9,86¢ $ 4,51:

59¢ (169) (1,167)

$ 22327 $ 9,708 $ 3,35(

$ 0.3¢
$ 0.3¢

13. 6.€ 4.

25 10 5

1,06: 53¢ 37¢

$ 150,72; $ 137,72 $ 131,03

$ 38,74. $ 19,28¢  $ 12,57(
24.2% 26.1% 25.5%

$ 4337: $ 20,23¢ $ 14,03:
27.1% 27.0% 28.5%

$ 21,30¢ $ 10,98: $ 6,00¢
13.%% 14.%% 12.2%
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December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Balance Sheet Data (as of end of year):

Cash and cash equivalents
Real estate inventory
Goodwill and intangible, net
Total assets

Notes payable

Total liabilities

Total equity

@)

@)

(©)
4)
®)

(6)

54,06¢
141,98:
12,72¢
221,01(
35,53t
56,63¢
164,37:

7,06¢ 5,10¢
28,48¢ 12,52¢
45,55¢ 23,518
14,96¢ 6,41¢
20,34¢ 8,87¢
25,21 14,63t

I I A < -
@ hHBhH PP PP

Earnings per share is presented for the pdrayzd November 13, 2013 (date of closing of IPOD&cember 31, 2013. See Note 11-"Equity" to our
consolidated financial statements included in Raitem 15 of this Annual Report of this Form 10fét calculation of earnings per share

With respect to the years ended December 31, ZWI?, and 2011, defined as the sum of the numbesramunities in which we were closing
homes as of the first day of the year and thedagtof each quarter during the year divided by.five

Gross margin is home sales revenues less costes!
Calculated as a percentage of home sales rew

Adjusted gross margin is a non-GAAP finanamdasure used by management as a supplemental measvaluating operating performance. We
define adjusted gross margin as gross margin fgsgatized interest and adjustments resulting ftbenapplication of purchase accounting in
connection with the GTIS Acquisitions included fire tcost of sales. Our management believes thisniafiion is useful because it isolates the impact
that capitalized interest and purchase accountijgsaments have on gross margin. However, becaijastad gross margin information excludes
capitalized interest and purchase accounting adprst, which have real economic effects and coufghithour results, the utility of adjusted gross
margin information as a measure of our operatirfpp@ance may be limited. In addition, other corripammay not calculate adjusted gross margin
information in the same manner that we do. Accalginadjusted gross margin information should besidered only as a supplement to gross
margin information as a measure of our performaRtEase see “Management's Discussion and AnaliEimancial Condition and Results of
Operations—Non-GAAP Measures—Adjusted gross marfgina reconciliation of adjusted gross margin tosg margin, which is the GAAP
financial measure that our management believes todst directly comparable.

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measwsed by management as a supplemental measwa&uating operating performance. We define
adjusted EBITDA as net income before (i) interegtemse, (ii) income taxes, (iii) depreciation antbetization, (iv) capitalized interest charged to
the cost of sales, (v) other income, net and @iistments resulting from the application of pusghaccounting in connection with the GTIS
Acquisitions. Our management believes that thegmtasion of adjusted EBITDA provides useful infotioa to investors regarding our results of
operations because it assists both investors andgeaent in analyzing and benchmarking the perfocmand value of our business. Adjusted
EBITDA provides an indicator of general economicfpenance that is not affected by fluctuationsriterest rates or effective tax rates, levels of
depreciation or amortization and items consideodaktnon-recurring. Accordingly, our managemenielek that this measurement is useful for
comparing general operating performance from paogaeriod. Other companies may define adjustedrBRlI differently and, as a result, our
measure of adjusted EBITDA may not be directly caraple to adjusted EBITDA of other companies. Alifjo we use adjusted EBITDA as a
financial measure to assess the performance diuminess, the use of adjusted EBITDA is limitedahese it does not include certain costs, such as
interest and taxes, necessary to operate our lassiAdjusted EBITDA should be considered in additm, and not as a substitute for, net income in
accordance with GAAP as a measure of performangepf@sentation of adjusted EBITDA should not bestaied as an indication that our future
results will be unaffected by unusual or nonreagritems. Our adjusted EBITDA is limited as an gtiedl tool, and you should not consider it in
isolation or as a substitute for analysis of osutes as reported under GAAP. Please see “ManagenmEacussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Non-GAAP MeasurAdjusted EBITDA” for a reconciliation of adjudt€BITDA to net income, which is
the GAAP financial measure that our managemengbedi to be most directly comparable.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For purposes of this Managem’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial ConditiamdeResults of Operation, references to “we,” “our,”
“us” or similar terms when used in a historical dext refer to LGl Homes, Inc. and its subsidiari@ee Note 1 “Organization and Business
— Initial Public Offering and Reorganization Transicts” and Note 2 "Acquisition of LGI/GTIS Joint \tere Partners’ Interests” to our
consolidated financial statements included in Rartem 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K foore information regarding the
reorganization transactions, the initial public efing and our acquisitions of our joint venture paars' interests in the LGI/GTIS Joint
Ventures.

Key Results
Key financial results as of and for the year enBedember 31, 2013, as compared to the same perk@ll2, were as follows:

. Homes closed increased 98.1% to 1,062 homes3R8rhomes with an increase in the average salas @rour homes d3.4%
to $150,722 . On a pro forma basis, homes closg@ased 52.3% to 1,617 homes from 1,062 homesanithcrease in the
average sales price of our homes of 10.4% to $189,0

. Home sales revenues increased 116.8% to $160idmfrom $73.8 million . On a pro forma basigrme sales revenues
increased 68.1% to $ 241.0 million from $143.4 iwnll.

. Gross margin as a percentage of home salesuesatecreased to 24.2% from 26.1% . On a pro fbases, gross margin as a
percentage of home sales revenues decreased 6 26 27.3% .

. Adjusted gross margin as a percentage of hotes savenues decreased to 27.1% from 27.4% . @o fopna basis, adjusted
gross margin as a percentage of home sales revdaoesased to 27.3% from 28.0% .

. Adjusted EBITDA margin as a percentage of hoalesrevenues decreased to 13.3% from 14.9% .o farma basis,
adjusted EBITDA margin as a percentage of homessalenues decreased to 11.8% from 14.0% .

. On a pro forma basis, active communities attid of 2013 increased from 15 to 25 including oyramsion into the Florida
and Southeast divisions.

. Total owned and controlled lots increased 391td%#,895 lots at December 31, 2013 from 3,888 at December 31, 20:
Recent Developments

On November 13, 2013, we completed an initial gubffering (the “IPO”) of 10,350,000 shares of @ammon stock (including
1,350,000 shares of common stock issued pursudhétexercise of the underwriters’ option to pusghadditional shares of common stock).
For accounting purposes, the assets, liabilitiesrasults of operations prior to the completionhaf IPO relate to LGI Homes Group, LLC,
LGl Homes Corporate, LLC, LGI Homes II, LLC (fornie Gl Homes, Ltd.), LGl Homes-Sunrise Meadow, Lf@rmerly LGl Homes -
Sunrise Meadow, Ltd.), LGI Homes-Canyon Crossingl(Homes - Canyon Crossing, Ltd.), LLC, LGI HomeseD Creek, LLC and their
direct and indirect subsidiaries (collectively, 6Bredecessor”).

Prior to the completion of the IPO, our Predecessored a 15% equity interest in and managed thealalay operations of the
LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures. Concurrent with the IPGg acquired all of the equity interests in the LAIIG Joint Ventures that we did not own
immediately prior to the IPO. In our historicaldimcial statements, our Predecessor’s intereseih®&1/GTIS Joint Ventures have been
accounted for using the equity method and our Ress®r's share of the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures'emhings are included in income from
unconsolidated joint ventures. Effective Novembgr2013, we own all of the equity interests in tl&/GTIS Joint Ventures and account
them on a consolidated basis after such date.iBougkion of pro forma financial information foethiears ended December 31, 2013 and
2012, please see "—Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidéatedhcial Information" and "—Supplemental ManagatiseDiscussion and Analysis"
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth our results of opienas for the periods indicated:
Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(dollars in thousands, except

share data and average home sales price)
Statement of Income Data:

Revenues:
Home sales $ 160,060 $ 73,820 % 49,27(
Management and warranty fees 2,72¢ 2,401 1,18¢
Total revenues $ 162,79t  $ 76,227 % 50,45¢
Expenses:
Cost of sales 121,32t 54,53: 36,70(
Selling expenses 15,76¢ 7,26¢ 4,88¢
General and administrative 13,60¢ 6,09¢ 5,12¢
Income from unconsolidated joint ventures (4,28%) (1,526 (715)
Operating income $ 16,38 $ 9,851 $ 4,461
Interest expense, net (52) (@D} (28)
Gain on remeasurement of interests in LGI/GTIStI)entures 6,44¢ — —
Other income, net 24 17z 204
Net income before income taxes $ 22,80: % 10,020 % 4,63
Income tax provision (1,06€) (15%) (12%)
Net income $ 21,737 % 9,86¢ % 4,51z
(Income) loss attributable to non-controlling irestis 59C (163) (1,162)
Net income attributable to owners $ 22,327 % 9,70t % 3,35(
Basic earnings per share (1) $ 0.34
Diluted earnings per share (1) $ 0.34
Other Financial and Operating Data:
Active communities during year (2) 13.¢ 6.€ 4.8
Active communities at end of year 25 10 5
Home closings 1,062 53¢ 37¢€
Average sales price of homes closed (in whole t&)lla $ 150,72. $ 137,72  $ 131,03
Gross margin (3) $ 38,74 % 19,28¢ $ 12,57(
Gross margin % (4) 24.2% 26.1% 25.5%
Adjusted gross margin (5) $ 43,370 % 20,23t % 14,03
Adjusted gross margin % (4)(5) 27.1% 27.2% 28.5%
Adjusted EBITDA (6) $ 21,30¢ % 10,98: $ 6,00t
Adjusted EBITDA margin % (4)(6) 13.2% 14.%% 12.2%

(1) Earnings per share is presented for the péraod November 13, 2013 (date of closing of IPOPEcember 31, 2013. See Note 11-"Equity" to our
consolidated financial statements included in Raltem 15 of this Annual Report of this Form 10f#t calculation of earnings per share.

(2) With respect to the years ended December@®13,22012 and 2011, defined as the sum of the nuofltommunities in which we were closing
homes as of the first day of the year and thedagtof each quarter during the year divided by.five

(3) Gross margin is home sales revenues less cosltes!

(4) Calculated as a percentage of home sales rew
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®)

(6)

Adjusted gross margin is a non-GAAP finanaasure used by management as a supplemental m@aswualuating operating performance. We
define adjusted gross margin as gross margin lsitatized interest and adjustments resulting ftbenapplication of purchase accounting in
connection with the GTIS Acquisitions included fire tcost of sales. Our management believes thisniafiion is useful because it isolates the impact
that capitalized interest and purchase accountipgstments have on gross margin. However, becailjastad gross margin information excludes
capitalized interest and purchase accounting adgrst, which have real economic effects and coufghichour results, the utility of adjusted gross
margin information as a measure of our operatinfppmance may be limited. In addition, other comparmay not calculate adjusted gross margin
information in the same manner that we do. Accajlginadjusted gross margin information should besidered only as a supplement to gross
margin information as a measure of our performaRtzEase see “Management's Discussion and Analf/Bimancial Condition and Results of
Operations—Non-GAAP Measures—Adjusted gross marfgina reconciliation of adjusted gross margin tosg margin, which is the GAAP
financial measure that our management believes tadst directly comparable.

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measwsed by management as a supplemental measwauating operating performance. We define
adjusted EBITDA as net income before (i) interegtemse, (ii) income taxes, (iii) depreciation antbetization, (iv) capitalized interest charged to
the cost of sales, (v) other income, net and @jjistments resulting from the application of pusghaccounting in connection with the GTIS
Acquisitions. Our management believes that thegmtasion of adjusted EBITDA provides useful infotioa to investors regarding our results of
operations because it assists both investors andgeaent in analyzing and benchmarking the perfocmand value of our business. Adjusted
EBITDA provides an indicator of general economicfpenance that is not affected by fluctuationsriterest rates or effective tax rates, levels of
depreciation or amortization and items consideodakt non-recurring. Accordingly, our managemenielek that this measurement is useful for
comparing general operating performance from paogaeriod. Other companies may define adjustedrBRI differently and, as a result, our
measure of adjusted EBITDA may not be directly caraple to adjusted EBITDA of other companies. Altio we use adjusted EBITDA as a
financial measure to assess the performance diuminess, the use of adjusted EBITDA is limitedshese it does not include certain costs, such as
interest and taxes, necessary to operate our lassiAdjusted EBITDA should be considered in additm, and not as a substitute for, net income in
accordance with GAAP as a measure of performangepf@sentation of adjusted EBITDA should not bestaued as an indication that our future
results will be unaffected by unusual or nonreagritems. Our adjusted EBITDA is limited as an gtiedl tool, and you should not consider it in
isolation or as a substitute for analysis of osutes as reported under GAAP. Please see “—Non-GRl&Bsures—Adjusted EBITDA” for a
reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to net income,iathis the GAAP financial measure that our managerbelieves to be most directly compara
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Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 31, 2012

Homes SalesOur home sales revenues and closings by divisiothéoyear ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 wdoli@ss
(dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
Revenues Closings Revenues Closings
Texas $ 133,83: 892 $ 58,74 432
Southwest 18,21« 11¢€ 15,07¢ 10z
Southeast 1,851 12 — —
Florida 6,171 40 — —
Total home sales $ 160,06° 1,06z $ 73,82( 53¢

Home sales revenues for the year ended DeaeBih013 were $160.1 million , an increase of.288illion , or 116.8% , fron$73.¢
million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Haaldes revenues represented approximately 98.3%9&8686of our total revenues for t
year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectiVbly increase in home sales revenues is primdué/to a98.1%increase in homi
closed and an increase in the average selling rézehome during the year ended December 31, 2818mpared to the year en
December 31, 2012. The average selling price parehclosed during the year ended December 31, 2@K38450,722 , an increasé $
12,998, or 9.4% , from the average selling prieelppme of $137,724 for the year ended Decembe2@®I2. We closed 1,06®mes durin
the year ended December 31, 2013, as compared6titid@Bes closed during the year ended December 3. 20dring the year end
December 31, 2013, we averaged 13.8 active comiesigis compared to 6.6 for the year ended Decegih@012, a 109.1% increase.

Management and Warranty Fedglanagement and warranty fees for the year endedibleer 31, 2013 were $2.7 million , as
compared to $2.4 million for the year ended Decam3tie2012. The increase in management and warfaesyis primarily attributable to an
increase in the number of active communities ardyngraphic expansion of the LGI/GTIS Joint Veesuoperations during 2013. Total
home closings on a combined basis for the LGI/GJdBt Ventures were 686 and 526 for the years ebdsgmber 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Cost of Sales and Gross Margin (home sales revdrassost of sales)Cost of sales increased for the year ended Decegih@013
to $121.3 million , an increase of $66.8 millioor,122.5% , from $54.5 million for the year endeeicBmber 31, 2012. This increase is
primarily due to a 98.1% , increase in homes clakethg 2013 as compared to 2012. Gross margithfoyear ended December 31, 2013
was $38.7 million , an increase of $19.5 milliasr 100.8% , from $19.3 million for the year endegcBmber 31, 2012. Gross margin as a
percentage of home sales revenues was 24.2% fgetveended December 31, 2013 and 26.1% for theeymked December 31, 2012. The
decrease in gross margin as a percentage of hdesereaenues reflects that an increase in congirucosts and higher developed lot costs
for 2013 as compared to 2012; these constructidrdameloped lot costs were partially offset by leigaverage homes sales prices.

Selling ExpensesSelling expenses as a percentage of home salasuevaere 9.9% and 9.8% for the years ended Dece8tth2013
and 2012, respectively. The increase of sellingeagps as a percentage of home sales revenuesimasigrdue to startup expenses related
to new community openings, outside commissions,dargtt mail and internet marketing. Selling expenfor the year ended December 31,
2013 were $15.8 million , an increase of $8.5 wnilli or 116.9% , from $7.3 million for the year eddecember 31, 2012. This increase is
primarily due to a 98.1%increase in homes closed during 2013 as compar2dl2 and the increase in the number of activensonities foi
2013 as compared to 2012. Sales commissions iratéass5.3 million from $2.3 million and advertigiand direct mail costs increased to
$3.3 million from $1.8 million for the year ende@&@mber 31, 2013 as compared to the year endedribec&1, 2012, respectively.

General and AdministrativeGeneral and administrative expenses for the yededeDecember 31, 2013 were $13.6 million , an
increase of $7.5 million , or 123.2% , from $6.1lion for the year ended December 31, 2012. Theesimee in general and administrative
expenses is partially due to the higher numbeoafidaclosings and active communities in 2013 as eweatpto 2012. As a result of the
increased number of active communities, we hiredenemployees and acquired additional office splacaddition, approximately $3.2
million of the $7.5 million increase during 2013 svattributable to accounting and professional fseksexpenses incurred in connection with
the Reorganization Transactions and financial rippfor the IPO.
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Income from unconsolidated joint ventur&ur share of income from the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventufer the year ended December 31,
2013 was $4.3 million , as compared to $1.5 milionthe year ended December 31, 2012. The inclisgmémarily attributed to our priority
return determined based on cumulative cash disioibsas provided for in the joint venture agreetseburing the year ended December 31,
2013, three of the LGI/GTI Joint Ventures paid migiht cumulative cash distributions to the memludthe respective joint ventures such
that $2.7 million in priority returns were received

Gain on remeasurement of interests in LGI/GTIStMenturesA gain of $6.4 million was recognized by the Comp#or the year
ended December 31, 2013 on the remeasurement &fredecessor's equity interests in the LGI/GTI&tMéentures in connection with the

GTIS Acquisitions.

(Income) loss attributable to non-controlling ingsts. The loss attributable to non-controlling interdststhe year ended December 31,
2013 was $0.6 million , as compared to $0.2 millidincome attributable to non-controlling intee&ir the year ended December 31, 2012.
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Iassa®lated to the initial operations of LGI FuHdoldings, LLC, which was formed in
March 2013. During the year ended December 31, 20&2ecognized final project income related toltd Homes Sterling Lakes, LLC
project which was closed out during 2012.

Operating Income and Net Incom@®perating income for the year ended December 313 2as $16.4 million , an increase of $6.5
million , or 66.3% , from $9.9 million for the yeanded December 31, 2012. Net income for the yedeaDecember 31, 2013 was $21.7
million , an increase of $11.9 million , or 120.3%om $9.9 million for the year ended DecemberZ112. The increases are primarily
attributed to (i) $2.7 million in promoted earningsognized from the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures, aijda(98.1% increase in homes closed
during 2013 as compared to 2012, and (iii) thed$ngillion gain on remeasurement of our interestheLGI/GTIS Joint Ventures in

connection with the GTIS Acquisitions.
Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to the YeanBed December 31, 2011

Homes Sales.Our home sales revenues and closings by divisiothéoyear ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 wdodl@ss
(dollars in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31, 2012

Year Ended
December 31, 2011

Revenue Closings

Revenue Closings

Texas $ 58,74 43z $ 49,27( 37¢€
Southwest 15,07¢ 10:¢ — —
Southeast — — — —
Florida — — — —
Total home sales $ 73,82 53¢ $ 49,27( 37¢

Home sales revenues for the year ended Decemb2032,were $73.8 million , an increase of $24.6iamil, or 49.8% , from $49.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Tivedase in home sales revenue is primarily duel@0aunit increase in homes closed
during 2012 as compared to 2011. We closed 536 saueng 2012 as compared to 376 homes closedgigéihl. The average selling price
per home delivered during 2012 was $137,724 , arase of $6,687 , from $131,037 during 2011. Tcesiase in revenues is largely a result
of an increase in active community count and oyaesion into new markets. In 2012, we closed haatessn an average of 6c6mmunitie:

as compared to 4.8 communities in 2011.

Management and Warranty Fees Management and warranty fees for the year@iaeember 31, 2012 were $2.4 million , an
increase of $1.2 million , or 102.4% , from $1.2lioim for the year ended December 31, 2011 . Thesi@ses in management and warranty
fees are primarily attributable to an increasenmritumber of active communities and the geogragipansion of the operations of the
LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures.

Cost of Sales and Gross Margin (home sales reviassecost of sales). Cost of sales increased for the year ended DeceBih@012
to $54.5 million , an increase of $17.8 millionr 48.6% , from $36.7 milliofor the year ended December 31, 2011. This incrisgzemarily
due to a 42.6% increase in home closings durin@ 281compared to 2011 and an increase in raw ragpeices. Our gross margin for the
year ended December 31, 20121$19.3 million , an increase of $6.7 million , or.4% , from $12.6 milliorfor the year ended December
2011. The increase in our gross margin was prigmegiated to new communities being acquired at foawerage lot costs resulting in lower
basis, partially offset by increases in construttiosts and other home plan changes. Gross margiparcentage of sales slightly increased
from 25.5% for the twelve months ended DecembefB11 to 26.1% for the twelve months ended Decer@bep012.
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Selling Expenses. Selling expenses for the year ended December 32, @@re $7.3 million , an increase of $2.4 millicor 48.8% ,
from $4.9 million for the year ended December 3112 This increase is largely due to the higherlmemof home closings and the 37.5%
growth in the average number of active communiti€2d12 as compared to 2011.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses for the yeggdbecember 31, 2012 were $6.1 million , an
increase of $1.0 million , or 18.9% , from $5.1lmoi for the year ended December 31, 2011. Theeas® in general and administrative
expenses is primarily due to the higher numberoofié closings and active communities in 2012 as eoetpto 2011. Additionally, we
experienced a rapid pace of growth through the gaded December 31, 2012, and as a result, hireel employees.

Income from unconsolidated joint venturesincome from the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures for the yeaded December 31, 2012 was
$1.5 million , an increase of $0.8 million , or 16% , from $0.7 million for the year ended Decembkr2011. The increase is primarily
attributed to the recording of net earnings in adance with the terms of the respective joint vemagreements. Combined net earnings of
the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures for the year ended Delwer 31, 2012 was $10.2 million, an increase o $illion, or 112.5%, from $4.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Tieedase in earnings is primarily related to andase in closed units from 251 for 2011 to
526 for 2012 as the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures addéditeonal communities in their markets. As of Dedem31, 2012, none of the LGI/GTIS
Joint Ventures had achieved priority returns basgethe terms of their respective joint venture agrents.

Income attributable to non-controlling interestsincome attributable to nocentrolling interests for the year ended Decemide281:
was $0.2 million , a $1.0 million decrease from2btillion for the year ended December 31, 2011oine attributable to non-controlling
interests relates to income from the LGl Homesligtgt akes, LLC project, which was closed out bg #nd of 2012.

Operating Income and Net Income.Operating income for the year ended Decembg@12 was $9.9 million , an increase of $5.4
million , or 120.8% , from $4.5 million for the yeanded December 31, 2011. Net income for the geded December 31, 2012 was $9.9
million , an increase of $5.4 million , or 118.7%qm $4.5 million for the year ended DecemberZ111. The increases are primarily
attributed to a 160 -unit increase in homes clakethg 2012 as compared to 2011.

Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

The following unaudited pro forma statements ofrafiens have been developed by applying pro fordjasaments to our audited
statements of operations for the years ended Dese®ih 2013 and 2012 and audited financial statésradrthe LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures,
included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The uitaddro forma statements of operations for the yeaded December 31, 2013 and 2012
give effect to the GTIS Acquisitions as if they haturred on January 1, 2012.

The unaudited pro forma adjustments are based ayaitable information and certain assumptions Webelieve are reasonable under
the circumstances. The unaudited pro forma findadeita is presented for informational purposes ofihe unaudited pro forma financial data
does not purport to represent what our resultpefations would have been had the GTIS Acquisitartsally occurred on the date indicated
and does not purport to project our results of afi@ns for any future period. The unaudited prarfarfinancial statements should be read in
conjunction with the information contained in otlsections of this Annual Report including “Seleckdancial Data,” in our historical
audited financial statements and related notegthgethe audited financial statements of the LGI&Joint Ventures and related notes
included elsewhere in this Annual report, and ofeations of this “Management’s Discussion and gsialof Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” appearing elsewhere inAhisual Report. All pro forma adjustments and theiderlying assumptions are described
more fully in the notes to our unaudited pro forst@ements of operations.

The unaudited pro forma financial information hagt prepared to give effect to the GTIS Acquisgionaccordance with ASC Topic
805, “Business Combinations

A fair value step-up adjustment of approximately4dmillion was recorded to the real estate inveniorconnection with the GTIS
Acquisitions of which approximately $3.5 million waharged to cost of sales during the period NowerB, 2013 to December 31, 2013
related to homes in inventory at November 13, 20&8 were sold by December 31, 2013. The pro fadjastments do not reflect additional
cost of sales related to the step-up adjustmenéghre step-up does not have a continuing impath@&ompany’s results of our operations
due to the short-term impact on our financial perfance.
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All pro forma adjustments and their underlying asptions are described more fully in the notes &uhaudited pro forma statement
operations.

Unaudited Pro Forma Statement of Operations
for the Year Ended December 31, 2013

LGl Homes,  LGI/GTIS Joint LGl Homes, Inc.
Inc. Ventures (1) Adjustments Pro Forma
(dollars in thousands)

Revenues:
Home sales $ 160,060 $ 80,89¢ $ = $ 240,96:
Management and warranty fees 2,72¢ — (2,729 (c) —
Total revenues 162,79¢ 80,89¢ (2,729 240,96:
Cost of sales 121,32t 58,71¢ (213) (c) 179,83:
Selling expenses 15,76¢ 7,27¢ — 23,04¢
General and administrative 13,60¢ 3,90¢ (2,300 (b)(c) 15,21(
Income from unconsolidated
LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures (4,28) — 4,287 (a) —
Operating income 16,38¢ 10,99: (4,509 22,874
Interest expense (52) — — (52)
Gain on remeasurement of interest in
LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures 6,44¢ — (6,44¢) (d) —
Other income, net 24 75 — 99
Net income before income taxes 22,80: 11,06¢ (10,949 22,92
Income tax provision (1,06¢€) (199 — (1,260
Net income 21,737 10,87¢ (10,949 21,66:
Loss attributable to non-controlling
interests 59C — — 59C
Net income attributable to owners  $ 22,327 §$ 10,87¢  $ (10,949 $ 22,25.

(1) This column is a combination of the finanattements of LGI-GTIS Holdings, LLC, LGI-GTIS Halds II, LLC, LGI-GTIS Holdings Ill, LLC and
LGI-GTIS Holdings 1V, LLC, for the period January 2013 through November 13, 2013, each of whigirésented in separate financial statements
included in Item 15 of this Annual Report.

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Statement of Operatianfor Year Ended December 31, 2013
(a) Eliminates our Predecessor’s equity in therimneof the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures.

(b) Reflects amortization of the $0.7 million matikg related intangible asset (i.e., trade namietsigrecorded in the GTIS Acquisitions. The
trade name rights have an estimated useful lithrefe years based upon the timing of the majofithe forecasted revenues to be earned
the remaining development cycle of the LGI/GTISWi&dentures’ communities. Amortization is recordsda straight-line basis. Pro forma
amortization expense was $0.2 million for the yereded December 31, 2013.

(c) Reflects the elimination of $2.7 million of megement and warranty fees our Predecessor chardled LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures during
the period pursuant to certain management seraigeements. The applicable management servicesragnés were terminated in
connection with the GTIS Acquisitions. The corrasgiog charges of $2.5 million and $0.2 million weeeorded to general and
administrative expense and cost of sales, resmgtiby the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures.

(d) Represents the elimination of gain on remeasant of our Predecessor's equity interests in BEGETIS Joint Ventures in connection

with the GTIS Acquisitions. The gain on remeasuneimepresents the Predecessor's equity interefs aalue less the carrying value of
Predecessor's equity interest using the equity edetfiaccounting.
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Unaudited Pro Forma Statement of Operations
for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

LGI Homes, LGI/GTIS Joint LGl Homes, Inc.
Inc. Ventures (1) Adjustments Pro Forma
(dollars in thousands)
Revenues:
Home sales $ 73,82( $ 69,55¢ $ = $ 143,37¢
Management and warranty fees 2,401 — (2,400 (c) —
Total revenues 76,22 69,55¢ (2,40)) 143,37¢
Cost of sales 54,53 49,83( (132) (c) 104,22¢
Selling expenses 7,26¢ 6,101 — 13,37(
General and administrative 6,09¢ 3,30¢ (2,027 (b)(c) 7,37¢
Income from unconsolidated
LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures (1,52¢) — 1,52¢ (a) —
Operating income 9,851 10,32: 1,772 18,40(
Interest expense (D) — — (@D}
Other income, net 17z 42 — 21¢F
Net income before income taxes 10,02: 10,36: 1,772) 18,61
Income tax provision (155) (187) — (342
Net income 9,86¢ 10,17¢ 2,772 18,27
Income attributable to non-
controlling interests (169) — — (163
Net income attributable to owners $ 9,70t $ 10,17¢  $ (1,777 $ 18,10¢

(1) This column is a combination of the finanatdtements of LGI-GTIS Holdings, LLC, LGI-GTIS Halds II, LLC, LGI-GTIS Holdings Ill, LLC and
LGI-GTIS Holdings 1V, LLC, each of which is presedtin separate financial statements included im [t& of this Annual Report.

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Statement of Operatianfor Year Ended December 31, 2012
(a) Eliminates our Predecessor’s equity in theimeof the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures.

(b) Reflects amortization of the $0.7 million matikg related intangible asset (i.e., trade namietsigrecorded in the GTIS Acquisitions. The
trade name rights have an estimated useful litarefe years based upon the timing of the majofithe forecasted revenues to be earned
the remaining development cycle of the LGI/GTIShnddentures’ communities. Amortization is recoraeda straight-line basis. Pro forma
amortization expense was $0.2 million for the ye@ded December 31, 2012.

(c) Reflects the elimination of $2.4 million of negement and warranty fees our Predecessor chardlee LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures during
the period pursuant to certain management seraige=ements. The applicable management servicesragnts were terminated in
connection with the GTIS Acquisitions. The corrasgiag charges of $2.3 million and $0.1 million weeeorded to general and
administrative expense and cost of sales, resgdgtiby the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures.

39




Table of Contents

Supplemental Management's Discussion and Analysis
Pro Forma Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared Bro Forma Year Ended December 31, 2012

Pro forma Homes Sale©ur pro forma home sales revenues and closingévigiah for the year ended December 31, 2013 ari® 20
were as follows (dollars in thousands, unless etlser stated):

Pro Forma Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012

Revenues Closings Revenues Closings
Texas $ 201,12: 1,35¢ $ 128,29¢ 95¢
Southwest 26,19: 17¢ 15,07¢ 10z
Southeast 1,851 12 — —
Florida 11,80( 77 — —
Total home sales $ 240,96: 1,617 $ 143,37 1,062
Other Operating Financial Data 2013 2012
Active communities during period (1) 19.4 11.4
Active communities at end of period 25 15
Average sales price of homes closed (in whole ds)lla $149,01¢ $135,00¢
Gross margin (2) $ 61,13: $ 39,14¢
Gross margin % (3) 25.2% 27.2%

(1) With respect to the years ended December 31, 20d2@12, defined as the sum of the number of conitiearin which we were closing homes a
the first day of the year and the last day of epgrter during the year divided by five.

(2) Gross margin is home sales revenue less costaxf

(3) Calculated as a percentage of home sales re

Pro forma home sales revenues for the year enéedrbber 31, 2013 was $ 241.0 million , an increds¥97.6 million , or 68.1%
from $143.4 million for the year ended December 3012. The increase in pro forma home sales reweimu@rimarily due to &2.3%
increase in pro forma homes closed and an inciaabe pro forma average home sales price per touriag 2013 as compared to 2012.
closed 1,617 homes during 2013, as compared t@® homes closed during 2012. The pro forma averageehsates price for 2013 w
$149,018 , an increase of $ 14,010, or 10.4%m fitee pro forma average home sales price of $185@®012. During 2013, we averag
19.4 active communities on a pro forma basis agpewed to 11.4 for 2012, a 70.2% increase.

Pro forma Cost of Sales and Gross Margin (pro fotmane sales revenue less pro forma cost of salrg)forma cost of sales for the
year ended December 31, 2013 1179.8 million , an increase of $75.6 million , &.5% , from $104.2 million for the year ended Debem
31, 2012. This increase is primarily due to a 5&%t; or 52.3% , increase in pro forma homes cldsethe year ended December 31, 2013 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2012 diticad pro forma costs of sales for the year enidedember 31, 2013, include $3.5
million related to the fair value step-up adjustifen real estate inventory sold in 2013 after 8EHS Acquisitions. Pro forma gross margin
for 2013 was $61.1 million , an increase of $22illion , or 56.2% , from $39.1 million for 2012. @forma gross margin as a percentage of
sales was 25.4% for 2013 as compared to 27.3%0fti2.2The decrease in pro forma gross margin ascamp@ge of sales reflects the higher
average home sales prices offset by increasedractish costs, higher developed lot costs, inveatsian new markets, and the transition
between communities within existing markets.

Pro forma Selling Expense®ro forma selling expenses as a percentage obpmefhome sales revenues were 9.6% and 9.3% for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respgcfired increase of pro forma selling expensespereentage of pro forma home sz
revenue was primarily due to startup expensesetlat new community openings, outside commissiand,direct mail and internet
marketing. Pro forma selling expenses for 2013 &% 0 million , an increase of $9.7 million , &.Z% , from $13.4 million for 2012. This
increase is largely due to the higher number offpnma home closings and the growth in active comitras for the year ended December
2013 as compared to the year ended December 32, R0d forma sales commissions increased to $8l@mirom $4.7 million and pro
forma advertising and direct mail

40




Table of Contents

costs were $4.9 million for the year ended Decemtie2013 as compared to $3.3 million for the yeraded December 31, 2012, respecti

Pro forma General and Administrativ&ro forma general and administrative expensesasc@ntage of pro forma home sales reve
were 6.3% and 5.1% for the years ended Decemb&(3B and 2012, respectively. Pro forma generalaaimdinistrative expenses for 2013
were $15.2 million , an increase of $7.8 millicor ,106.1% , from $7.4 million for 2012. The increas pro forma general and administrative
expenses is partially due to the higher numberoef@ma home closings and active communities ik3®as compared to 2012. As a resu
the increased number of active communities, wedhinere employees and acquired additional officespln addition, approximately $3.2
million of the $7.8 million increase during 2013asvattributable to accounting and professional &ekexpenses incurred in connection with
the Reorganization Transactions and financial rippfor the IPO.

Pro forma Operating Income and Pro forma Net IncorReo forma operating income for the year ended DéeerBl, 2013 was $22.9
million , an increase of $4.5 million , or 24.3%aqm $18.4 million for the year ended DecemberZ112. Net income for the year ended
December 31, 2013 was $21.7 million , an incred$3a! million , or 18.6% , from $18.3 million fone year ended December 31, 2012. The
increase is primarily attributed to a 555 -unitrgase in pro forma homes closed during 2013 as amdgo 2012, net of increased expenses
associated with new communities and additionalgesibnal service fees and expenses incurred irection with the reorganization
transactions and financial reporting for the IPO.

Non-GAAP Measures

In addition to the results reported in accordanite W.S. GAAP, we have provided information in thienual Report on Form 10-K
relating to “adjusted gross margin,” and “adjuseERI TDA.”

Adjusted gross margi

Adjusted gross margin is a non-GAAP financial measised by management as a supplemental measwalirating operating
performance. We define adjusted gross margin assgnargin less capitalized interest and adjustnrestdting from the application of
purchase accounting included in the cost of s@les.management believes this information is udeéghuse it isolates the impact that
capitalized interest and purchase accounting adprsts have on gross margin. However, because adjgsbss margin information excludes
capitalized interest and purchase accounting adprst, which have real economic effects and coulgbich our results, the utility of adjusted
gross margin information as a measure of our opgraerformance may be limited. In addition, otbempanies may not calculate adjusted
gross margin information in the same manner thatlweAccordingly, adjusted gross margin informatstrould be considered only as a
supplement to gross margin information as a measfusar performance.

The following table reconciles adjusted gross nratgigross margin, which is the GAAP financial meashat our management
believes to be most directly comparable (dollardgusands):

Pro Forma
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012 2011

Home sales $ 24096 $ 14337 $ 160,060 $ 73,82( % 49,27(
Cost of sales 179,83: 104,22¢ 121,32¢ 54,53: 36,70(
Gross margin 61,13 39,14¢ 38,74 19,28¢ 12,57(

Purchase accounting adjustment (a) 3,52¢ — 3,52¢ — —

Capitalized interest charged to cost of sales 1,10¢ 947 1,104 947 1,46:
Adjusted gross margin $ 65,76 $ 40,09¢ % 4337 % 20,23¢ % 14,03:
Gross margin % (b) 25.%% 27.2% 24.2% 26.1% 25.5%
Adjusted gross margin % (b) 27.2% 28.(% 27.1% 27.4% 28.5%

(8) This adjustment results from the application ofghaise accounting in connection with the GTIS Adtjoiss and represents the amount of the fair
value step-up adjustment to real estate inventlg after the GTIS Acquisitions.
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(b) Calculated as a percentage of home sales rewv
Adjusted EBITD/

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measurediby management as a supplemental measure in &ugloperating
performance. We define adjusted EBITDA as net inedwafore (i) interest expense, (ii) income tax#$ depreciation and amortization,
(iv) capitalized interest charged to the cost ¢ésav) other income, net and (vi) adjustmentsligs) from the application of purchase
accounting in connection with the GTIS Acquisitio@ar management believes that the presentatiadjoSted EBITDA provides useful
information to investors regarding our results péations because it assists both investors andgeament in analyzing and benchmarking
the performance and value of our business. AdjusE&Id DA provides an indicator of general economéefprmance that is not affected by
fluctuations in interest rates or effective taxemtlevels of depreciation or amortization and g@wmnsidered to be naeeurring. Accordingly
our management believes that this measuremenefaldsr comparing general operating performanoenfiperiod to period. Other compan
may define adjusted EBITDA differently and, as sule our measure of adjusted EBITDA may not bedly comparable to adjusted
EBITDA of other companies. Although we use adjusE®ITDA as a financial measure to assess the paebce of our business, the use of
adjusted EBITDA is limited because it does notude certain material costs, such as interest atd taecessary to operate our business.
Adjusted EBITDA should be considered in additiongind not as a substitute for, net income in aarord with GAAP as a measure of
performance. Our presentation of adjusted EBITD@usth not be construed as an indication that owréitesults will be unaffected by
unusual or nonrecurring items. Our adjusted EBITiDAmited as an analytical tool, and you should ecansider it in isolation or as a
substitute for analysis of our results as repoueder GAAP. Some of these limitations are:

* it does not reflect every cash expenditure,rieitequirements for capital expenditures or cotti@aommitments, including for the
purchase of land;

» it does not reflect the interest expense or thb oaguirements necessary to service interest ncipal payments on our de

« although depreciation and amortization are nashacharges, the assets being depreciated andzedill often have to be replaced
or require improvements in the future, and adju&BHTDA does not reflect any cash requirementssfarh replacements or
improvements;

e itis not adjusted for all nooash income or expense items that are reflectedristatements of cash flo\

< it does not reflect the impact of earnings aargies resulting from matters we consider not tsbieative of our ongoing operations;
and

< other companies in our industry may calculateffedently than we do, limiting its usefulness asomparative measu

Because of these limitations, our adjusted EBITDAwWd not be considered a measure of discretioces available to us to invest in
the growth of our business or as a measure oftbashvill be available to us to meet our obligatioWe compensate for these limitations by
using our adjusted EBITDA along with other compiaetools, together with GAAP measurements, tosassithe evaluation of operating
performance. These GAAP measurements include dapgiiacome, net income and cash flow data. We Isayificant uses of cash flows,
including capital expenditures, interest payments @her non-recurring charges, which are not cégldin our adjusted EBITDA.

Adjusted EBITDA is not intended as an alternativea¢t income as an indicator of our operating perémce, as an alternative to any
other measure of performance in conformity with GAdr as an alternative to cash flows as a meaguiguality. You should therefore not
place undue reliance on our adjusted EBITDA catedlaising this measure. Our GAAP-based measurelsecound in our consolidated
financial statements and related notes includezlwiere in this Annual Report.

The following table reconciles adjusted EBITDA t&tincome, which is the GAAP financial measure thatmanagement believes to
be most directly comparable (dollars in thousands):
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Pro Forma
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012 2011

Net income $ 21,66 % 18,27 % 21,737 % 9,86¢ % 4,512

Interest expense 51 1 51 1 28

Income taxes 1,26( 34z 1,06¢€ 15& 12€

Depreciation and amortization 573 49¢ 264 18t 80

Capitalized interest charged to cost of sales 1,10¢ 947 1,104 947 1,46

Purchase accounting adjustment (a) 3,77: 247 3,551 — —

Gain on remeasurement of interest in LGI/GTIS

Joint Ventures (b) — — (6,44¢) — —

Other income, net (99) (21%) (24) (179 (2049)
Adjusted EBITDA $ 28,32¢ % 20,09 % 21,30¢ % 10,98! % 6,00¢
Adjusted EBITDA margin % (c) 11.8% 14.(% 13.2% 14.%% 12.2%

(a) This adjustment results from the application ofghaise accounting in connection with the GTIS Adtjoiss and represents the amount of the fair
value stepdp adjustment to real estate inventory sold afterGTIS Acquisitions and amortization expense eelad the marketing intangible asset
all applicable periods presented.

(b) This adjustment results from the non-recurring gasognized by us on the remeasurement of the Eessler's equity interest in the LGI/GTIS Joint
Ventures in connection with the GTIS Acquisitions.

(c) Calculated as a percentage of home sales rewvi
Backlog

We sell our homes under standard purchase contrelcish generally require a homebuyer to pay a digjab the time of signing the
purchase contract. The amount of the required deisasinimal ($1,000 or less). The deposits afandable if the homebuyer is unable to
obtain mortgage financing. We permit our homebuyesancel the purchase contract and obtain a dedfitheir deposit in the event
mortgage financing cannot be obtained within aadenperiod of time, as specified in their purchegstract. Typically our homebuyers
provide documentation regarding their ability taaab mortgage financing within 14 days after theghase contract is signed. This allows us
the opportunity to evaluate whether the homebuwgsrthe financial resources necessary to purchadeotie. If we determine that the
homebuyer is not qualified to obtain mortgage fiting or is not otherwise financially able to pursedahe home, we will terminate the
purchase contract. If a purchase contract hase® bancelled or terminated within 14 days afterpiirchase contract has been signed, then
the homebuyer has met the preliminary criterialttaim mortgage financing. Only purchase contrdws are signed by homebuyers who have
met the preliminary criteria to obtain mortgageaficing are included in new (gross) orders.

Our “backlog” consists of homes that are underralpase contract that are signed by homebuyers abhe imet the preliminary criteria
to obtain mortgage financing but have not yet alo&ince our business model is based on buildingenmo ready homes before a purchase
contract is signed, the majority of our homes iokhag are complete. Ending backlog represents timeber of homes in backlog from the
previous period plus the number of net orders (arders for homes less cancellations) generatedgitine current period minus the number
of homes closed during the current period. Our loackt any given time will be affected by cancédias and the number of our active
communities. Homes in backlog are generally clogithin one to two months, although we may experecancellations of purchase
contracts at any time prior to closing. It is imiamit to note that net orders, backlog and cangafiametrics are operational, rather than
accounting data, and should be used only as aa@egaige to evaluate performance. Backlog may Ipadted by customer cancellations for
various reasons that are beyond our control, atight of our minimal required deposit, there itléi negative impact to the potential
homebuyer from the cancellation of the purchaséraon As of the dates set forth below, our neeosdcancellation rate, and ending backlog
homes and value were as follows (dollars in thodsgn
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Year Ended December 31,

Backlog Data 2013 2012 2011
Net orders (1) 1,08( 562 39z
Cancellation rate (2) 23.5% 26.6% 45.5%
Ending backlog — homes (3) 19C 67 40
Ending backlog — value (3) $ 30,09 $ 9822 $ 560

(1) Net orders are new (gross) orders for the purchBikemes during the period, less cancellationsciftiag purchase contracts during the pe

(2) Cancellation rate for a period is the total numiifgsurchase contracts cancelled during the pernieidet by the total new (gross) orders for the
purchase of homes during the period.

(3) Ending backlog consists of homes at the end opénimd that are under a purchase contract that im@teur preliminary financing criteria but have
not yet closed. Ending backlog is valued at theremh amount.

Land Acquisition Policies and Development

See discussion included in “Businesd_and Acquisition Policies and Development.”
Homes in Inventory

See discussion included in “BusinesdHomes in Inventory.”
Raw Materials

See discussion included in “BusinesRaw Materials.”
Seasonality

In all of our regions, we have historically expaded similar variability in our results of operat®and in capital requirements from
quarter to quarter due to the seasonal natureedidimebuilding industry. We generally close mormés in our second, third and fourth
quarters. Thus, our revenue may fluctuate on atgyabasis and we may have higher capital requérgmin our second, third and fourth
quarters in order to maintain our inventory levésr revenue and capital requirements are genesiaflijar across our second, third and

fourth quarters.

As a result of seasonal activity, our quarterhufessof operation and financial position at the efid particular quarter, especially the
first quarter, are not necessarily representativberesults we expect at year end. We expecs#asonal pattern to continue in the long t

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

As of December 31, 2013, we had $54.1 million afficand cash equivalents. In November 2013, we ategbbur IPO and issued
10,350,000 shares of common stock at a price tptbéc of $11.00 per share generating net proceédpproximately $102.6 milliohefore
the subsequent cash payment of approximately $88li®n as part of the GTIS Acquisitions.

Cash flows for each of our active communities dejpemthe status of the development cycle and déer diubstantially from reported
earnings. Early stages of development or expansiguire significant cash outlays for land acquisi$, plats, vertical development,
construction of sales offices, general landscapimdjother amenities. Because these costs are aboemipof our inventory and are not
recognized in our statement of operations untib@é closes, we incur significant cash outflows ipidorecognition of revenues. In the later
stages of an active community, cash inflows mawifigantly exceed revenues reported for finandateament purposes, as the costs
associated with home and land construction wereiqusly incurred.

Our principal uses of capital are operating expgnse development, home construction, land anggnty purchases, interest costs on
our indebtedness and the payment of various ltadsli
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We rely on our ability to finance our operationsggnerating operating cash flows, borrowing undersecured revolving credit
facilities and/or will consider accessing tihebt and equity capital markets as part of our onggstrategy. We also rely on our ability to obt
performance, payment and completion surety bondgelss letters of credit to finance our projects.

We believe that we will be able to fund our currantl foreseeable liquidity needs for at least #n twelve months with our cash on
hand, cash generated from operations, and casletexi® be available from our secured revolvinglitriacilities, including any future
modifications.

Secured Revolving Credit Facilities

On January 30, 2014, certain subsidiaries (thert®egrs") of the Company entered into a Second Aradrachd Restated Loan
Agreement with Texas Capital Bank (the "Amendedd@ragreement”). The Amended Credit Agreement pategifor a $50.0 million senior
secured revolving credit facility, guaranteed by @ompany. The new revolving credit facility masiosn June 30, 2016. Borrowings under
the new revolving credit facility are limited toetfborrowing base, which is determined based ototdrevalue of the pool of collateral in
which the lender has a security interest. The Compaay add vacant lots, houses, land and acquisiiiml development projects to its poc
collateral through June 30, 2015. Pre-sold housgsmemain in the borrowing base for up to nine rhenthile model homes, speculative
homes and vacant lots may remain in the borrowasgtor up to one year.

The Amended Credit Agreement includes financialec@mnts that will be tested on a quarterly basis. Aimended Credit Agreement
requires the Borrowers to maintain a net worthaiflass than $35.0 million and the Company, asantar, to maintain a tangible net worth
of not less than $125.0 millianThe Amended Credit Agreement also requires thedBeers to maintain a leverage ratio of not moemth.2¢
to 1.0 and the Company, as guarantor, to maintimerage ratio of not more than 1.0 to 1.0. Ther@wers are required under the Amended
Credit Agreement to maintain liquidity in excessbd0.0 million and unrestricted cash of not lesst##5.0 million . The Amended Credit
Agreement requires that the Borrowers shall ndesufet losses in more than two consecutive caleqaarters. In addition, the Amended
Credit Agreement contains various covenants timbray other restrictions, limit the amount of adxtil debt and related party transactions.

As of December 31, 2013, we were party to two stuevolving credit facilities (the "Former CreBacilities") with Texas Capital
Bank, N.A., aggregating borrowings of up to $ 3mnillion to purchase and develop land parcels amitact new homes.

Borrowings under the Former Credit Facilities wigmgted to the individual facility’s borrowing base/hich was determined based on
the loan value of the pool of collateral in whitie ienders had a security interest. Vacant lotshamaes generally remained in the borrowing
base for up to one year. As of December 31, 20E3borrowing base amounts under the Former Creditifies totaled $37.0 million , of
which $35.5 million was outstanding and $1.5 milliwas available (based on collateral availableotwdw).

Interest on amounts borrowed is paid monthly atta based on LIBOR, with an interest rate flodbatember 31, 2013 of 4.0%. As
December 31, 2013, the interest rate under the &o@redit Facilities was LIBOR plus 4.0%.

The Former Credit Facilities generally required dpplicable borrower and guarantor or guarantoredmtain certain net worth,
liquidity, and leverage ratios and in some casedude restrictive covenants related to transferamitrol of the borrower. We obtained a
waiver from Texas Capital Bank, N.A. to complete teorganization transactions and the IPO. As afelbder 31, 2013, the managing
member of LGl Homes Group, LLC was in compliancéwthis covenant. As of December 31, 2013, we wepsmpliance with all financie
and non-financial covenants contained in the For@redit Facilities.

Letters of Credit, Surety Bonds and Financial Gudesgs

We are often required to provide letters of cradil surety bonds to secure our performance undstragtion contracts, development
agreements and other arrangements. The amounttosligations outstanding at any time varies icoagance with our pending
development activities. In the event any such bamdstters of credit are drawn upon, we would blgated to reimburse the issuer of such
bonds or letters of credit.

Under these letters of credit, surety bonds arahfiral guarantees, we are committed to perfornaitedevelopment and construction
activities and provide certain guarantees in thenabcourse of business. Outstanding letters afigrsurety bonds and financial guarantees
under these arrangements, and our share of repgipsor financial guarantee arrangements with fmint ventures, totaled $0.4 million as
of December 31, 2013. Although significant develeptrand construction
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activities have been completed related to thesarmsiprovements, the letters of credit and suretydsaare not generally released until all
development and construction activities are coregleiVe do not believe that it is probable that amtgtanding letters of credit or surety
bonds, letters of credit or financial guaranteesfddecember 31, 2013 will be drawn upon.

Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2013 compared to Year Hddeember 31, 2012

Net cash used in operating activities during ther ymded December 31, 2013 was $54.5 million agpeoed to $4.7 million during the
year ended December 31, 2012. '$49.8 million increase in net cash used in opegadictivities was primarily attributable to a $5&i@lion
net increase in land and finished lots inventomytfie year ended December 31, 2013 as comparéé yeear ended December 31, 2012. We
made land and finished lot purchases in all ofregions, including Texas, Arizona, Florida, Georgimal New Mexico, with the majority of
purchases in Texas. The net cash used in opewmatingties is also offset by an $11.9 million inase in net income.

Net cash used in investing activities was $31.3enilduring the year ended December 31, 2013 coeaptar $2.6 million used in
investing activities during the same period in 20M2e increase in cash used in investing activiiggimarily the result of the net cash
payment of $30.1 million associated with the GTIGAisitions.

Net cash provided by financing activities totaldd%.7 million during the year ended December 3132tbmpared to $9.3 million
during the same period in 2012. The increase ircagt provided by financing activities is primadye to $113.9 million of proceeds
received from the sale of stock in the IPO netX.8 million of underwriting discounts and commiss and offering related expenses, $15.8
million of contributions received from non-contialy interests, and a $20.9 million net increaseutstanding notes payable.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 compared to Year Hddeember 31, 2011

Net cash used in operating activities was $4.7ionilin 2012 and net cash of $9.6 million was preddy operating activities in
2011. Net cash used for the year ended Decemb@032,was primarily related to the purchase of Jéotd and direct construction costs of
$16.0 million during 2012. We made purchases indbeand Arizona with the majority purchased in Teddss increase in cash used in
operating activities was partially offset by $9.9lion in net income and an increase in accounis@pte due to increases in work in progress
at the end of the year. Net cash provided by operaictivities during 2011 was primarily attributalo $7.8 million of cash generated by the
closing of several communities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $2.6iamlin 2012 compared to $1.7 million used in inwggactivities in 2011. The
increase in cash used in investing activities isharily the result of investments of capital in theconsolidated joint ventures.

Net cash provided by financing activities total€d3smillion in 2012 compared to net cash usedrarcing activities of $8.0 million
in 2011. The increase in net cash provided by fimapactivities is primarily due to the increasgmoceeds from notes payable, offset by the
increase in distributions to non-controlling intgseduring 2012 for the closeout of LGI Homes +I8tg Lakes, LLC. Net cash used in
financing activities in 2011 reflects net cash paidoutstanding debt and distributions to owners.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the ordinary course of business, we enter iabal loption contracts in order to procure lots @ tonstruction of our homes. We are
subject to customary obligations associated witkerang into contracts for the purchase of land immgroved lots. These purchase contracts
typically require cash deposit and the purchagg@berties under these contracts is generally rgatit upon satisfaction of certain
requirements by the sellers, including obtainingli@pble property and development entitlements.alge utilize option contracts with land
sellers as a method of acquiring lots and landagexd takedowns, to help us manage the financéthh@arket risk associated with land
holdings, and to minimize the use of funds from canporate financing sources. Option contracts gdlyaequire a non-refundable deposit
for the right to acquire lots over a specified pdrof time at pre-determined prices. We generallyetthe right at our discretion to terminate
our obligations under both purchase contracts atidrocontracts by forfeiting our cash deposit withfurther financial obligations to the
land seller. As of December 31, 2013, we had $3lmof cash deposits pertaining to land optiamtracts and purchase contracts for 8,214
lots with an aggregate remaining purchase pricklafl.1 million.
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Our utilization of land option contracts is depemtden, among other things, the availability of la&dlers, willing to enter into option
takedown arrangements, the availability of cagddlnancial intermediaries to finance the develeptrof optioned lots, general housing
conditions, and local market dynamics. Options ilmaynore difficult to procure from land sellers trosg housing markets and are more
prevalent in certain markets.

Inflation

Our business can be adversely impacted by inflapdmarily from higher land, financing, labor, regtl and construction costs. In
addition, inflation can lead to higher mortgagessatvhich can significantly affect the affordalyilaf mortgage financing to home buyers.

Contractual Obligations Table

The following is a summary of our contractual obtigns as of December 31, 2013 and the effect shlipations are expected to have
on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods.

Payments due by period (dollars in thousands)

Less
than 1-3 3-5 More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year years years 5 years
Borrowings:
Long-term debt (a) $ 3553t $ 35,53 $ — 3 — $ —
Interest and fees (b) 2,23( 1,881 343 — —
Consulting agreement (c) 283 10C 18< — —
Project Contribution (d) 12¢ 12¢ — — —
Operating leases 1,98¢ 381 83¢ 75€ 7
Total $ 40,16( $ 38,03: $ 1,36¢ $ 75¢ $ 7

(&) Represent borrowings under our credit faesitivhich are limited to the individual facility'stoowing base, which is determined based on the loa
value of the pool of collateral in which the lenslaave a security interest. Vacant lots and horaesrglly may remain in the borrowing base for L
one year. Consequently, maturities are presentsedban the pool of collateral only being qualifyegsets under the borrowing base for a maximum
one year time frame. On January 30, 2014, we ahtate a Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreemi#mTexas Capital Bank. The agreement
provides for a $50.0 million senior secured revadveredit facility. The new facility matures on &80, 2016 and still stipulates that speculative
homes and vacant lots may remain in the borrowasgbor up to one year. See Note 9 "Notes Pay#&bialir consolidated financial statements
included in Part Il Item 15 of this Annual Report Borm 10-K for additional information regardingrdong-term debt.

(b) Interest on our credit facilities accrues efirted variable rates based on LIBOR with a fladerof 4.0% as of December 31, 2013. The obligation
represent estimated interest using the floor ré#eG%6 on the borrowings outstanding as of Decer3tie2013, plus estimated bank fees during the
term of the credit facility. Under the new facilityre credit facility fee is $250,000 per year tigh June 2016, the maturity date.

(c) Agreement requires monthly installments o383, through October 2016. This is a rinterest bearing obligatic

(d) Agreed upon contribution to a fire station projecour Sunrise Meadow community, paid in Februad§4

Critical Accounting Policies

Discussed below are accounting policies that webelare critical because of the significance efdhtivity to which they relate or
because they require the use of significant juddrimetheir application.

Revenue Recognitic

Home SalesIn accordance with ASC Topic 360—Xeal Estate Salesgvenues from home sales are recorded at the icteleome
sale is closed, title and possession are transféorthe buyer, and we have no significant contigunvolvement with the home. Home sales
proceeds are generally received from the title comypwithin a few days from closing. Home salesraported net of sales discounts and
incentives granted to homebuyers, which are prignaeiller-paid closing costs. The profit we recordeach home sale is based on the
calculation of cost of sales, which is dependenvanallocation of costs, as described in moreidiet&—Real Estate Inventory and Cost of
Home Sales” below.
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Real Estate Inventory and Cost of Home S

Inventory consists of land, land under developmimished lots, sales offices, homes in progressa@mpleted homes. Inventory is
stated at cost unless the carrying amount is détedmot to be recoverable, in which case inveni®gyritten down to fair value.

Pre-acquisition costs, land, development and gihgect costs, including interest and property saixeurred during development and
home construction, are capitalized to real estateritory. Pre-acquisition costs, land developmadtather common costs that benefit the
entire community, including field construction smgsion and related direct overhead, are allocaddddividual lots or homes, as appropri
on a pro rata basis which we believe approximdtesosts that would be determined using an allogatiethod based on relative sales va
since the individual lots or homes within a comntyiaire similar in value.

Changes to estimated total development costs subsetp initial home closings in a community aledted to the remaining unsold
homes in the community on a prospective basis. Homnstruction costs and related carrying chargesdjpally capitalized interest and
property taxes) are allocated to the cost of imtlisl homes using the specific identification methad are capitalized as they are incurred.
Capitalized interest, property taxes, and othetyaag costs are generally capitalized to real estatentory from the point development
begins to the point construction is completed. €astociated with homes sold are charged to castle$ simultaneously with revenue
recognition.

Impairment of Real Estate Inventorids accordance with the ASC Topic 3@&pperty, Plant, and Equipmenteal estate inventory is
evaluated for indicators of impairment by each camity during each reporting period. In conducting ceview for indicators of impairment
on a community level, we evaluate, among othemgithe margins on homes that have been deliveoatinunities with slow moving
inventory, projected margins on future home sales the life of the community, and the estimatddvalue of the land. We pay particular
attention to communities in which inventory is muyiat a slower than anticipated absorption pacecaminunities whose average sales
prices and/or margins are trending downward ancatieipated to continue to trend downward. Dugédy to the relatively short
development and construction periods for our conitimsnand our growth, we have not experienced onstances during 2012 or 2013, that
are indicators of impairment. Our future sales aradgins may be impacted by our inability to reatibatinued growth, local economic
factors, pressure on home sales prices, and ingirffiaccess to labor and materials at reasonabts.d~or individual communities with
indicators of impairment, we perform additional lgs# to estimate the community’s undiscountedritash flows. If the estimated
undiscounted future cash flows are greater tharcaigying value of the asset, no impairment adjestinis required. If the undiscounted cash
flows are less than the asset’s carrying valuea#iset is impaired and is written down to its Yailue. We estimate the fair value of
communities using a discounted cash flow modelnghka to the expected cash flows may lead to chandgke outcome of our impairment
analysis.

The life cycle of a community generally ranges fribree to five years, commencing with the acquisitf land, continuing through t
land development phase, and concluding with thetcoction, sale, and delivery of homes. A consaddtome is used as the community ¢
offices during the life of the community and therds Actual individual community lives will vary sad on the size of the community, the
sales absorption rate, and whether we purchasqutdiperty as raw land or finished lots.

Impairment of land and land under developmeror raw land, land under development and comgliets that our management
anticipates will be utilized for future homebuildiactivities, the recoverability of assets is meaduy comparing the carrying amount of the
assets to future undiscounted cash flows expeotbd generated by the assets based on home saisistent with the evaluation of operal
communities discussed above. As of December 313,204 had not identified any raw land, land undaredopment or completed lots that
management intends to market for sale to a thirtypa

Pre-acquisition costs and controlled lots not own&de enter into land deposit and option agreemerttse ordinary course of busine
in order to secure land for the construction of berim the future. Pursuant to these land optioaeagents, we typically provide a deposit to
the seller as consideration for the right to pusehland at different times in the future, usuatlpr@determined prices. We do not have title to
the property and our obligations with respect ®dption contracts are generally limited to thdeibure of the related nonrefundable cash
deposits.

To the extent that any deposits are nonrefundatdetze associated land acquisition process is text@d or no longer determined

probable, the related deposits are charged to otbeme, net. We review the likelihood of the aaifion of contracted lots in conjunction
with our periodic real estate impairment analysis.
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Warranty Reserves

We typically provide homebuyers with a ten-yearited warranty for major defects in structural elemsesuch as framing components
and foundation systems, a two-year limited warramtynajor mechanical systems, and a one-year limvegranty on other construction
components.

Estimated future direct warranty costs are accaretcharged to cost of sales in connection withhoune sales and our obligation to
fund warranty costs of the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventuoesler the respective management services agreeridéatsollected a warranty fee of
$250 from the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures upon the itlgof the sale of each home by the relevant LGI&Joint Venture through November
13, 2013, on which date the management servicezagmts were terminated. Our warranty liabilitased upon historical warranty cost
experience on a per house basis established bag@dm@nds in historical warranty payment leveig,the historical range of amounts paid
per house, (iii) any warranty expenditures not @ered to be normal and recurring and is adjusseappropriate to reflect qualitative risks
associated with the types of homes built, the ggaigc areas in which they are built, and poteitiglacts of our expansion. Our analysis
considers improvements in quality control and cartsion techniques expected to impact future wayrarpenditures and the expertise of
personnel. Our warranty reserves are reviewed eiyatb assess the reasonableness and adequanyastedadjustments to the balance of the
pre-existing reserves, as needed, to reflect ctrimgieends and historical data as information bezpavailable.

Business Combinatior

We account for businesses we acquire in accordaitheASC Topic 805Business CombinationdJnder the purchase method of
accounting, the assets acquired and liabilitiearassl are recorded at their estimated fair valuey. purchase price paid in excess of the net
fair values of tangible and identified intangibksats less liabilities assumed is recorded as go@ur reported income from an acquired
company includes the operations of the acquiredpamy from the effective date of acquisition.

Goodwill

We record goodwill associated with our acquisitiohbusinesses when the consideration paid exdbedsir value of the net tangible
and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Weuata our goodwill balances for potential impairmen an annual basis. The current
guidance allows an entity to assess qualitativedgtiver it is necessary to perform step one of sgpitged two-step annual goodwill
impairment test. If an entity believes, as a resiits qualitative assessment, that it is morellikhan not that the fair value of a reportingt:
exceeds its carrying amount, the two-step goodwitiairment test is not required.

Taxes
See Note 3 Significant Accounting Policies - Income Taxaghe consolidated financial statements in thisidad Report on Form 10-
K for discussion of the Company's accounting pe$idor taxes

Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company

We are an “emerging growth company,” as definetthnJumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 201#edOBS Act. Thus, we
are not required to provide more than two yearauafited financial statements, selected financitd dad related Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations in this Annual Report. For as long asarean emerging growth company,
unlike other public companies, we will not be regdito:

» provide an attestation and report from our audibn managemestassessment of the effectiveness of our systenteshal
control over financial reporting pursuant to Sect#®4(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act;

» comply with certain new requirements adopted byRGEAOB

» comply with certain new audit rules adopted byR@AOB after April 5, 2012, unless the SEC determiogerwise

» provide disclosures regarding executive compensaéiquired of larger public companies;

» obtain stockholder approval of any golden paracpatgments not previously approv

We intend to take advantage of all of these exempti
We will cease to be an emerging growth company vamnof the following conditions apply:

49




Table of Contents

* we have $1.0 billion or more in annual reven

» atleast $700 million in market value of our goon stock are held by naffiliates

» we issue more than $1.0 billion of non-convéetitlebt over a thregear period; ¢

» the last day of the fiscal year following the fifihniversary of our initial public offering has pad

In addition, an emerging growth company can dekgdoption of certain accounting standards umbisé standards would otherw
apply to private companies. However, we have chtséopt out” of such extended transition perioddas a result, we will comply with any
new or revised accounting standards on the reladates on which noamerging growth companies must adopt such standaedsion 107 ¢
the JOBS Act provides that our decision to optafuhe extended transition period for complyinghwilew or revised accounting standards is
irrevocable.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCL OSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our operations are interest rate sensitive. Asalvkousing demand is adversely affected by in@eas interest rates, a significant
increase in mortgage interest rates may negatafédgt the ability of homebuyers to secure adeqfiasacing. Higher interest rates could
adversely affect our revenues, gross margin anthneime. We do not enter into, or intend to eméw,iderivative financial instruments for
trading or speculative purposes.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Integest Rate Risk

We are exposed to market risks related to fluabnatin interest rates on our outstanding variadtle indebtedness. We did not utilize
swaps, forward or option contracts on interestsratecommodities, or other types of derivative ficial instruments as of or during the year
ended December 31, 2013. We have not enteredmetc@rently do not hold derivatives for tradingspeculative purposes, but we may do
so in the future. Many of the statements containetlis section are forward looking and should &&drin conjunction with our disclosures
under the heading “Cautionary Statement about Fakkaoking Statements” in Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $35.5 million afalzle rate indebtedness outstanding under oursdauedit facilities. All of the
outstanding borrowings under the Amended CredieAgrent and the Former Credit Facilities are ane \&kvariable rates based on LIBOR,
or subject to an interest rate floor. The interast for our variable rate indebtedness as of Déeerdl, 2013 was 4.0% , the floor rate of the
Former Credit Facility. A hypothetical 100 basismancrease in the average interest rate on oualvia rate indebtedness would increase
annual interest expense by approximately $0.4 anilli

Based on the current interest rate managementgmlie have in place with respect to our outstanididebtedness, we do not believe

that the future interest rate risks related toeusting indebtedness will have a material advergmct on our financial position, results of
operations or liquidity.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

Reference is made to the financial statements dfH@nes, Inc., listed in Item 15 beginning on p&ge of this Annual Report on For
10-K and which are incorporated herein by reference

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOU NTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financiafidér, management has evaluated
the effectiveness of the design and operation ofl@closure controls and procedures (as defind®Lies 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of DecembepB13. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Exee@fficer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that, our disclosure controls pratedures are effective to ensure informaticeésrded, processed, summarized and
reported within the periods specified in the Se@msgiand Exchange Commission’s rules and formssadcumulated and communicated to
our management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, as appropriateltovatimely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure controls and
procedures will prevent all errors and all fraudca@ntrol system, no matter how well conceived aperated, can provide only reasonable,
absolute, assurance that the objectives of thealmsystem are met. Further, the design of a cbayretem must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints, and the benefits of contmaist be considered relative to their costs. Becatifee inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide las@ssurance that all control issues and instaot&aud, if any, have been detected.
These inherent limitations include the realitiest ludgments in decision-making can be faulty drad breakdowns can occur because of
simple error and mistake. Additionally, controlsidze circumvented by the individual acts of somsges, by collusion of two or more
people or by management override of controls.

The design of any system of controls also is bas@drt upon certain assumptions about the likelihof future events, and there can
be no assurance that any design will succeed iieol its stated goals under all potential futcoaditions. Over time, a control may
become inadequate because of changes in conditidrecause the degree of compliance with the gslior procedures may deteriorate.
Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-affeccontrol system, misstatements due to errdraard may occur and may not be detected.

Management’'s Assessment on Internal Control Over Fiancial Reporting
This Annual Report does not include a report of agament's assessment regarding internal controlfmancial reporting or an

attestation report of the Company’s independeristegd public accounting firm due to a transifi@miod established by rules of the SEC for
newly public companies and the exemption availatke Company as an emerging growth company.

Changes in Internal Controls
Other than in connection with our transition fromravate company to a public company, no changaiininternal control over

financial reporting as such term is defined in Eaule Act Rule 13a-15(f) occurred during the yeaieenDecember 31, 2013 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, our internal control over financigporting.
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ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The information called for by Item 10, to the extant set forth in “Business- Executive Officers” in Item 1, will be set forth the
definitive proxy statement relating to the 2014 @wadrmeeting of stockholders of LGl Homes, Inc. piarg to SEC Regulation 14A. Such
definitive proxy statement relates to a meetingtotkholders involving the election of directorsldhe portions thereof called for by Item 10
are incorporated herein by reference pursuantsirdation G to Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information called for by Item 11 will be setth in the definitive proxy statement relatinghe 2014 annual meeting of
stockholders of LGl Homes, Inc. pursuant to SECuReigon 14A. Such definitive proxy statement reatie a meeting of stockholders
involving the election of directors and the porsdhereof called for by Item 11 are incorporateckimeby reference pursuant to Instruction G
to Form 10-K.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICI AL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information called for by Item 12 will be setth in the definitive proxy statement relatinghe 2014 annual meeting of
stockholders of LGl Homes, Inc. pursuant to SECuReiion 14A. Such definitive proxy statement reatie a meeting of stockholders
involving the election of directors and the porsdhereof called for by Item 12 are incorporateckimeby reference pursuant to Instruction G
to Form 10-K.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATED TRANSAC TIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information called for by Item 13 will be setth in the definitive proxy statement relatinghe 2014 annual meeting of
stockholders of LGl Homes, Inc. pursuant to SECURa@n 14A. Such definitive proxy statement retati@ a meeting of stockholders
involving the election of directors and the porsdhereof called for by Iltem 13 are incorporateckimeby reference pursuant to Instruction G
to Form 10-K.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information called for by Item 14 will be setth in the definitive proxy statement relatinghe 2014 annual meeting of
stockholders of LGl Homes, Inc. pursuant to SECURa@n 14A. Such definitive proxy statement regati@ a meeting of stockholders
involving the election of directors and the porsdhereof called for by Iltem 14 are incorporateckimeby reference pursuant to Instruction G
to Form 10-K.

PART IV
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SCHED ULES

€) T he following documents are filed as part of thismAal Report on Form 10-K:

(1) Financial Statements

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page

LGI Homes, Inc. Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012012 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Equity from January01,12o December 31, 2013 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaided December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementthfoyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-6

LGI-GTIS Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm F-28
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 13, 20d ®ecember 31, 2012

F-29
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the dezimled November 13, 2013, and the years endedvibece31, 2012 and 2011

F-30
Consolidated Statements of Members’ Equity fromuday 1, 2011 to November 13, 2013

F-31
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the genmled November 13, 2013, and the years endedhibeces1, 2012 and 2011

F-32

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementthfoperiod ended November 13, 2013, and the yealesdeDecember 31, 2012 and
2011
F-33

LGI-GTIS Holdings II, LLC and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm F-40
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 13, 20d ®ecember 31, 2012

F-41
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the dezimled November 13, 2013, and the years endedvibece31, 2012 and 2011

F-42
Consolidated Statements of Members’ Equity fronmuday 1, 2011 to November 13, 2013

F-43
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the genmled November 13, 2013, and the years endedhibecedl, 2012 and 2011

F-44

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementthiperiod ended November 13, 2013, and the yeaiesdeDecember 31, 2012 and
2011
F-45

LGI-GTIS Holdings Ill, LLC and Subsidiaries Consoli dated Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm F-51
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 13, 20d ®ecember 31, 2012

F-52

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the dezi@mled November 13, 2013, the year ended Decedibh@012, and the period
March 2, 2011 (inception) through December 31, 2011
F-53



Consolidated Statements of Members’ Equity from da2, 2011 (inception) to November 13, 2013
F-54
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the genmled November 13, 2013, the year ended Dece3ib@012 and the period

March 2, 2011 (inception) through December 31, 2011
F-55

53




Table of Contents

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementthiperiod ended November 13, 2013, the year eDdedmber 31, 2012 and the

period March 2, 2011 (inception) through Decemtier2®11
F-56

LGI-GTIS Holdings IV, LLC and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm F-62

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 13, 20d®ecember 31, 2012
F-63

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the dezimled November 13, 2013, and the period Octabe2®L2 (inception) through
December 31, 2012

F-64
Consolidated Statements of Members’ Equity fromoDet 31, 2012 (inception) to November 13, 2013

F-65
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the gerimled November 13, 2013, and the period Octadhe2@®L2 (inception)
through December 31, 2012

F-66

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementthiperiod ended November 13, 2013, and the p@uidber 31, 2012 (inception)

through December 31, 2012
F-67

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because the requirednmdtion is not present, is not present in amouufficgent to require submission of tl
schedule, or because the required informationdisiited in the financial statements and relatedsittereto.

(3)  Exhibits

The exhibits filed or furnished as part of this aalreport on Form 10-K are listed in the IndeXEtdibits immediately preceding those
exhibits, which Index is incorporated in this Itéyreference.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of LGl Harlac.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of LGl Homes, Inc. as of December 313 2Bl 2012, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, equity,casti flows for each of the three years in the pgeginded December 31, 2013. These
financial statements are the responsibility of@menpany’s management. Our responsibility is taresp an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. With respecetpehiod from January 1, 2013 through Novembe2@23 and for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, we did not audit thenfiial statements of: LGI - GTIS Holdings, LLGGL- GTIS Holdings I, LLC; LGI -
GTIS Holdings I, LLC; and LGI- GTIS Holdings IM,LC (collectively GTIS Entities), which entitiesalimited liability companies in
which the Company had equity interests. In the clishated financial statements, the Company’s coedbiimvestment in the GTIS Entities is
stated at $4,446,302 as of December 31, 2012 fen@ampany’s equity in the net income of the GTifties is stated at $4,286,639,
$1,526,464, and $714,758 for the period from JanliaR013 through November 13, 2013 and for thesyeaded December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively. Those statemests audited by other auditors whose reports haga hgnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts includedHer@TIS Entities, is based solely on the reporthefother auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ai afuthe Company’s internal control over finanaiaporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrarofinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesnixiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theuents and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementeaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our aadiisthe reports of other auditors provide a readertzasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the repwirtgher auditors, the financial statements refto above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of H&mes, Inc. at December 31, 2013 and 2012, amddhsolidated results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three yearhénperiod ended December 31, 2013, in conformitia WiS. generally accepted accounting
principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Houston, Texas
March 31, 2014
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LGI HOMES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 54,068,73 $ 7,069,47.
Accounts receivable 5,401,85. 922,89°
Accounts receivable, related parties 28,23¢ 1,026,92!
Real estate inventory 141,982,74 28,489,19
Pre-acquisition costs and deposits 3,703,29 997,87!
Investments in unconsolidated LGI/GTIS Joint Veatur — 4,446,30.
Deferred taxes, net 287,78: —
Property and equipment, net 844,70 719,39(
Other assets 1,964,63 1,884,101
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 12,727,60 —
Total assets $ 221,009,58 $ 45,556,15
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Accounts payable $ 14,000,15 $ 3,090,89!
Accounts payable, related parties — 108,57
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 7,100,21: 2,176,94!
Notes payable 35,535,26 14,968,76
Total liabilities 56,635,63 20,345,17
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 14)
EQUITY
Common stock, par value $0.01, 250,000,000 shartherdzed, 20,763,449 issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2013 207,63:
Additional paid-in capital 157,056,19
Retained earnings 7,110,121
Owners’ equity 25,210,97
Non-controlling interests — —
Total equity 164,373,95 25,210,97
Total liabilities and equity $ 221,009,58 $ 45,556,15

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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LGI HOMES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Revenues:
Home sales $ 160,067,13 $ 73,820,02 $ 49,269,97
Management and warranty fees 2,728,56. 2,401,001 1,186,18:!
Total revenues 162,795,70 76,221,04 50,456,15
Cost of sales 121,325,53 54,530,97 36,699,50
Selling expenses 15,768,57 7,269,33 4,884,31!
General and administrative 13,604,16 6,096,11. 5,125,333
Income from unconsolidated LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures (4,286,63)) (1,526,46)) (714,759
Operating income 16,384,07 9,851,08! 4,461,77.
Interest expense, net (50,94¢) (1,239 (28,157
Gain on remeasurement of interests in LGI/GTISt)entures 6,445,96. — —
Other income, net 24,23¢ 172,78! 203,67
Net income before income taxes 22,803,32 10,022,64 4,637,29!
Income tax provision (1,066,07) (154,54 (124,89)
Net income 21,737,25 9,868,09 4,512,40!
(Income) loss attributable to non-controlling irtsts 589,81 (162,969 (1,161,98))
Net income attributable to owners $ 22,327,07 $ 9,705,120 $ 3,350,41!
Basic and diluted earnings per share data for ¢neqg
November 13, 2013 to December 31, 2013 post
Reorganization Transactions (see Note 11):
Basic $ 0.3
Diluted $ 0.34
Weighted average number of shares of common stock f
the period November 13, 2013 to December 31, 2058 p
Reorganization Transactions (see Note 11):
Basic 20,763,44
Diluted 20,834,122

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements
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LGI HOMES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

Common Stock N ) Total Non-
Additional Retained Owners’ Controlling
Shares Amount Paid-In Capital Earnings Equity Interests Total Equity
BALANCE—January 1, 2011 — — 3 — 3 — $ 11,050,31 $ 715,63 $ 11,765,94
Net income — — — — 3,350,41! 1,161,98! 4,512,40!
Contributions — — — — 4,360,001 404,17 4,764,17!
Distributions — — — — (5,770,00i) (637,500) (6,407,501
BALANCE—December 31, 2011 — — 3 — 3 — $ 12990,73 $ 1,64429: $ 14,635,02
Net income — — — — 9,705,12! 162,96¢ 9,868,09:
Contributions — — — — 6,650,00! — 6,650,00!
Distributions — — — — (4,134,88) (1,807,26) (5,942,14)
BALANCE—December 31, 2012 — — 3 — % — $ 25,210,977 $ — $ 25,210,97
Net income (loss) before
Reorganization Transactior
(Note 1) — — — — 15,216,94 (589,819 14,627,12
Contributions — — — — 2,535,00! 15,797,25 18,332,25
Distributions = — — — (9,111,20) — (9,111,20)
Issuance of shares in connection
with formation of LGI Homes,
Inc., July 9, 2013 1,00 1C 99C — — — 1,00
Issuance of shares in connectiol
with Reorganization
Transactions 10,003,35 100,03 48,959,11 — (33,851,71) (15,207,43) —
Issuance of restricted stock units
in settlement of accrued
bonuses — — 1,026,46! — — — 1,026,46!
Compensation expense for equi
awards — — 42,81+« — — — 42,81+«
Issuance of shares in Initial public
offering, net of underwriting
fees and offering expenses of
$11,215,604 10,350,00 103,50( 102,530,89 — — — 102,634,39
Issuance of shares for GTIS
Acquisitions 409,09: 4,09( 4,495,911 — — — 4,500,00!
Net income post Reorganization
Transactions — — — 7,110,12 — — 7,110,12
BALANCE—December 31, 2013 20,763,44 207,63: $ 157,056,199 $ 7,110,120 $ — 3 — $ 164,373,95

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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LGI HOMES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskideal by (used in) operating
activities:

Income from unconsolidated LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures
Distributions from unconsolidated LGI/GTIS Jointitares
Gain on remeasurement of interests in LGI/GTIStMéntures
Depreciation and amortization
Gain on settlement of debt
Loss on disposal of assets
Settlement of accrued bonuses with restricted stods
Compensation expense for equity awards
Deferred income taxes
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

(Receivables from) payables to related parties, net

Real estate inventory

Pre-acquisition costs and deposits

Other assets

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:

Capital investments in unconsolidated LGI/GTIS gdantures
Capital distributions from unconsolidated LGI/GT&int Ventures
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Purchases of property and equipment

Payment for remaining interests in unconsolidated/GTIS Joint Ventures,
net of cash acquired

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from notes payable
Payments on notes payable
Contributions from owners
Distributions to owners
Proceeds from sale of stock, net of offering expsns
Contributions from non-controlling interests
Distributions to non-controlling interests
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

$  21,737,25 $ 9,868,09 $ 4,512,40!
(4,286,63) (1,526,46) (714,75
4,413,97; 1,545,43 607,50
(6,445,96) — —
291,61 185,12 79,74’
(8,619 — —
55,64 — —
1,026,46! — —
42,81 — —
(287,78)) — —
(3,870,92) (204,90%) (429,82)
264,90 (634,72) (147,92)
(74,595,55) (15,963,51) 7,751,79!
(2,705,41) (425,80)) (241,04
21,21¢ (311,59%) (898,55()
5,827,25: 1,669,64- (6,409)
4,031,26: 1,145,34: (958,17:)
(54,488,48) (4,653,36) 9,554,77!
(927,97) (2,244,04) (1,299,18)
457,90 33,31 —
34,64’ 177 14,71:
(684,441 (434,881 (451,21
(30,139,02) — —
(31,258,89) (2,645,44) (1,735,69)
72,931,97 46,364,60 26,156,37
(52,041,78) (37,810,36) (32,483,23)
2,535,001 6,650,001 4,360,001
(9,111,20) (4,134,88) (5,770,00)
102,635,39 — —
15,797,25 — 404,17
— (1,807,26) (637,500
132,746,63 9,262,101 (7,970,18)
46,999,26 1,963,28 (151,099)
7,069,47. 5,106,18. 5,257,27"

$ 5406873 $ 7,069,47. $ 5,106,18:
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LGI HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS
Organization and Description of the Business

LGl Homes, Inc. a Delaware corporation (the “Comganvas organized on July 9, 2013 as a holding gany for the purposes of
facilitating the initial public offering (the "IPQ'bf its common stock in November 2013.

LGI Homes, Inc.'s principal business is the develept of communities and the design and construdidromes. At December 31,
2013, the Company had operations in Texas, ArizBluaida, Georgia and New Mexico.

Initial Public Offering and Reorganization Transactions

On November 13, 2013, LGl Homes, Inc. completed B of its common stock. In the IPO, LGl Homeg:.lissued and sold
10,350,000 shares of its common stock at a priteegublic of $11.00 per share and received retqads of $102.6 million after deducting
underwriting discounts and commissions of $8.0iarilland other offering expenses of approximately $8illion .

In conjunction with the IPO, the Company complédteslreorganization of LGl Homes Group, LLC and LH&imes Corporate, LLC
and their consolidated subsidiaries and varialibr@st entities, as well as LGl Homes Il, LLC (femy LGI Homes, Ltd.), LGI Homes -
Sunrise Meadow, LLC (formerly LGl Homes - Sunrideadow, Ltd.), LGl Homes - Canyon Crossing, LLCrfi@rly LGl Homes - Canyon
Crossing, Ltd.), and LGl Homes - Deer Creek, LL&llectively, the "Predecessor”) into LGl Homeg;.Ifthe "Reorganization
Transactions"). A total of 10,003,358 shares ofGleenpany’s common stock were issued to the owrfefsecentities that make up the
Predecessor, including the issuance of 2,161,58€slof the Company’s common stock to the non-obimyg interests in LGI Fund IlI
Holdings, LLC, a consolidated variable interesitgndf the Predecessor.

Immediate family members, a father and son (theniyaPrincipals”), individually or jointly owned nre than 50% of the voting
ownership interest of each entity comprising thedecessor. The Predecessor entities and the Comgmayunder common management,
operated in the same business, and were conttoli¢gle Family Principals immediately before anétathe Reorganization Transactions.
Following the reorganization, the entities that poised the Predecessor are wholly-owned subsidiafithe Company. The Reorganization
Transactions were accounted for at the transadé® as a consolidation of entities under commartrob In addition, since the Predecessor
controlled LGI Fund Ill Holdings, LLC before andtaf the IPO, the Company accounted for the acéuisdf the non-controlling interests as
an equity transaction. The accompanying consoliifitencial statements present the historical fam@rstatements of the Predecessor as
though they were owned by LGI Homes, Inc. priotht® Reorganization Transactions.

Prior to the Reorganization Transactions, the Rrestor consisted of limited liability companies éindted partnerships, all of which
were treated as partnerships for income tax pugpdsawever, as a result of the Reorganization Hetitns, the deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to the Predecessor wermmrded since the entities are now taxable as siabisisl of a corporation. As a result of this tax
status change, the Company recorded an incremeattdieferred tax liability and a one-time non-cishexpense of approximately $0.2
million . See Note 10 for further discussion.

2. ACQUISITION OF LGI/GTIS JOINT VENTURE PARTN ERS'INTERESTS

Concurrent with the IPO on November 13, 2013, tben@any acquired from GTIS Partners, LP and itdiatid entities (“GTIS”) all
of GTIS’ equity interests in four unconsolidateéthjoventures with the Predecessor, namely LGI-JWigs, LLC (formerly LGI-GTIS
Holdings, LLC), LIG-JV Holdings II, LLC (formerly GI-GTIS Holdings II, LLC), LGI-JV Holdings IIl, LLCformerly LGI-GTIS Holdings
lll, LLC) and LGI-JV Holdings IV, LLC (formerly LGIGTIS Holdings IV, LLC) (collectively, the “LGI/GT$ Joint Ventures”), in exchange
for aggregate consideration of $41.3 million , dstiisg of cash of approximately $36.8 million ar@®4091 shares of the Compasgommor
stock valued at $4.5 million on the IPO date (t881S Acquisitions"). As discussed at Note 6, the//GTIS Joint Ventures have historically
been accounted for as unconsolidated joint venumdsr the equity method of accounting. As a resfullhe GTIS Acquisitions, the Compa
began consolidating the entities. As required bCA%pic 805Business CombinatiofSASC Topic 805"), the acquired assets and assumed
liabilities have been accounted for at fair valad the Predecessor’s historical interests in the j@ntures have been remeasured at fair
value.

The enterprise fair value of the LGI/GTIS Joint W&es was determined using a discounted cash flodeirand totaled approximately
$46.5 million as of November 13, 2013. This failneameasurement is based on significant inputsatenot observable in the market and,
therefore, represents a Level 3 measurement asedefi ASC Topic 82(air Value
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Measurements and Disclosur. The pre-tax discount rates used in determiniivgvedue ranged from 14 - 18%epending on the length of t
remaining development cycle of the communitiesaalejoint venture.

The enterprise fair value was allocated betweerPtiedecessor and other members based on the ulisinitallocations established in
the respective joint venture agreements. The arsallucable to the Predecessor totaled $15.0 millibhe stand-alone values of the
Predecessor’s equity interests in the LGI/GTIS t’dentures total $11.2 million and were estimatgdpplying a lack of control and
marketability discount of 25% to the Predecessalttscation of the enterprise fair value. Manageneieves the lack of control and
marketability discount of 25% is appropriate gitka Predecessor’s shared control of the LGI/GTIStJ¢entures. A gain of $6.4 million
was recognized by the Company on the remeasureshém Predecessor’s equity interest in the LGI/&Jbint Ventures in connection with
the GTIS Acquisitions.

In accordance with ASC Topic 805, the assets anilities of the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures have beeoorded at fair value. The fair
value of the cash and cash equivalents, othersasgmtounts payable, and accrued and other liabilif the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures as of
November 13, 2013, approximated their historicafyéag values given the sh-term nature of these assets and liabilities.

The Company determined the fair value of real estatentory by community by asset primarily usingoanbination of the sales
comparison and cost approaches, as appropriatd bagée type of asset and information availablee $ales comparison approach used
recent home and land sales to provide values fmpteted homes, sales offices, homes under conistnuehd land. Interviews were
conducted with local market participants, includbrgkers, to gain an understanding of local lardi lahvalues in markets where there were
no recent land sales. The cost and income apprsaotie also considered to determine the fair vafymrtially constructed homes and land
based on hard costs incurred to date. Similar vialuanethods were used to estimate the fair vafueeland purchase option at one of the
active communities. The estimated fair values ayeificantly affected by assumptions related toentpd sales prices, absorption rates, and
the costs to build and deliver homes on a communitgommunity basis. Such estimates were madeafch edividual community and may
vary significantly between communities.

In connection with the GTIS Acquisitions, certaights to the LGl Homes trade name were reacquirbd.fair value of this intangible
asset was calculated based upon the forecastetuevef the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures using a refiefn-royalty valuation model. The
intangible asset was valued at $0.7 million arloki®g amortized on a straight line basis over 3gyeAmortization expense related to the
intangible was approximately $31,000 for the yeatezl December 31, 2013. Amortization expense ®reémaining balance will be
approximately $0.2 million , $0.2 million and $G1illion in 2014, 2015, and 2016, respectively.

Goodwill of $12.0 million was recognized from th&IS Acquisitions which management believes reprissére expected synergies to
be realized from combining the operations of thd/BF1S Joint Ventures with the Company’s operatiofise goodwill was computed as the
excess of the (i) sum of (x) the total consideratmGTIS of $41.3 million and (y) the fair valubthe Predecessor’s equity interests in the
LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures of $11.2 million for a tbestimated enterprise fair value of the LGI/GTt8nd Ventures of $52.6 million over (ii)
the estimated fair value of the identifiable netedis of the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures of $40.6 millioApproximately $4.8 million of goodwill
recognized is not deductible for federal incomegarposes. The consideration paid to GTIS for thqiity interests in the LGI/GTIS Joint
Ventures included a premium for acquiring the ofiens of the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures that, when &dmed with the Predecessor’s
operations, enabled greater access to capital nsaakel the successful completion of our IPO as aseddditional market share in many of
our active markets.

The Company is in the process of completing itdr®ss combination accounting as of December 31328 kummary of the fair
value of the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures’ assets aadilities as of November 13, 2013, is as followstfiousands):

Financial Statement Caption Total

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,70¢
Real estate inventory 38,41¢
Land purchase option contract 47¢
Other assets 951
Goodwill 12,01¢
Intangible asset 74C
Accounts payable and accrued and other liabilities (6,734
Net assets of the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures at faiue $ 52,58
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Financial Statement Caption Total

Cash consideration paid to GTIS $ 36,84¢
Company's common stock issued to GTIS 4,50(
Predecessor's equity interests in the LGI/GTISt)éamtures at fair value 11,23¢
Predecessor's equity interests in the LGI/GTISt)é@mtures at fair value 11,23«
Less carrying basis of Predecessor's equity intetesing the equity method of accounting 4,78¢

Gain on remeasurement of the Predecessor's eqtetgst in the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures in connattigth the GTIS

Acquisitions $ 6,44:

The consolidated statement of operations for tlae gaded December 31, 2013, include the followittga results (in thousands) for
the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures for the period from Novber 13, 2013 to December 31, 2013.

Home sales revenues $ 19,98¢
Cost of sales $ 18,15¢
Net income before income taxes $ 5,911

Unaudited Supplemental Pro-Forma information

The unaudited supplemental pro forma informaticgspnted below (in thousands) presents the home realenues, cost of sales, and
net income before income taxes of the Company®B82and 2012 as if the GTIS Acquisitions date heehbcompleted on January 1, 2012.

The unaudited pro forma adjustments are based ayitable information and certain assumptions Wabelieve are reasonable un
the circumstances. The unaudited pro forma coretelitifinancial data is presented for informatignaboses only. The unaudited pro forma
consolidated financial data does not purport toesgnt what our results of operations would hawnthed the GTIS Acquisitions actually
occurred on January 1, 2012 and does not purp@riofect our results of operations for any futuesipd.

Pro Forma Financial Information for the Company
For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
Home sales revenues $ 240,96: $ 143,37¢
Cost of sales $ 179,83. $ 104,22¢
Net income before income taxes $ 2292 % 18,61

The total fair value step-up adjustment to the &itijon date real estate inventory was approxinya$@.4 million . The actual cost of
sales for November 13, 2013 through December 313 20d the pro forma financial information for trear ended December 31, 2013
include $3.5 million of the $7.4 million fair valugtep-up adjustment to the acquisition date re¢atesventory related to homes that were in
inventory on November 13, 2013 and sold by Decer8lie013. The pro forma results have been adjustegflect the elimination of the
Predecessor's equity in earnings of the LGI/GTi8tJéentures. The pro forma results reflect $0.8iam each year for the amortization
expense related to the marketing intangible abseiddition, the pro forma financial informationahxde the impact of the gain on re-
measurement and the incremental impact of thevédire step-up adjustment over and above the $3llemthat was recognized in 2013 for
homes sold through December 31, 2013, as thesmasidered to be non-recurring items.

3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with U.S. Generally Acceptedofiating Principles ("GAAP")
and include the accounts of LGI Homes, Inc. andfalls subsidiaries subsequent to November 13320t closing date for the

Reorganization Transactions and the IPO. All imderpany balances and transactions have been elgdiimatonsolidation.
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For the periods prior to the Reorganization Trafisas, the accompanying consolidated financiakstents include the accounts of the
LGI Homes, Inc. and the results of operations stheedate of its formation, July 9, 2013, and thed@cessor's historical combined accounts
and results of operations for January 1, 2011 teeNer 13, 2013. All intercompany balances andstiations have been eliminated in
consolidation and all intracompany balances antsaetions have been eliminated in combination.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorting period. Actual results could differrfrehose estimates, and these differences
could have a significant impact on the financiatsments. The significant accounting estimatesideleal estate inventory and cost of sales,
impairment of real estate inventory and property equipment, warranty reserves and loss contingenci

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Concentration of CratRisk

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cashhdn demand deposits with financial institutionsg ahort-term liquid investments
with an initial maturity date of less than threemntis. The Company’s cash in demand deposit accouaysexceed federally insured limits.

Management monitors the cash balances in the Coyigpaperating accounts and adjusts the cash badaascappropriate; however,
these cash balances could be negatively impacthd iinderlying financial institutions fail or agabject to other adverse conditions in the
financial markets. To date, the Company has expeei@ no loss or diminished access to cash in tipgirating accounts.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of proceeds ffom title companies for sales closed prioredgd end and are generally
collected within a few days from closing.

Real Estate Inventory

Inventory consists of land, land under developmimished lots, sales offices, homes in progresd,@mpleted homes. Inventory is
stated at cost unless the carrying amount is dé@tedmot to be recoverable, in which case the &dteimventory is written down to fair value.

Land, development and other project costs, inclyditerest and property taxes incurred during dgwakent and home construction, are
capitalized to real estate inventory. Land develephand other common costs that benefit the ectinemunity, including field construction
supervision and related direct overhead, are dkace individual lots or homes, as appropriates Tasts of lots are transferred to homes in
progress when home construction begins. Home aariin costs and related carrying charges (prifigigapitalized interest and property
taxes) are allocated to the cost of individual hemging the specific identification method. Cobt# fare not specifically identifiable to a
home are allocated on a pro rata basis using takrtomber of lots in the community. Managemenidwels the allocation of land
development costs on a pro rata basis approxintaesllocation using relative sales value. Inventmrsts for completed homes are expensed
to cost of sales as homes are sold. Changes moatst total development costs subsequent to ihitiade closings in a community are
generally allocated to the remaining unsold lots Bomes in the community on a pro rata basis.

The life cycle of a community generally ranges frimmo to five years, commencing with the acquisitafiand, continuing through the
land development phase, and concluding with thetcoction and sale of homes. A constructed honusésl as the community sales office
during the life of the community and then sold. #adtindividual community lives will vary based dretsize of the community, the sales
absorption rate, and whether the property was @sath as raw land or finished lots.

In accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 38fperty, Plant, and Equipmenteal estate inventory is evaluated for indicatdfrs
impairment by each community during each repontiagod. In conducting its review for indicatorsimfpairment on a community level,
management evaluates, among other things, the msamgi homes that have been sold, communities Vath moving inventory, projected
margins on future home sales over the life of tmunity, and the
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estimated fair value of the land. For individuahzaounities with indicators of impairment, additiomalalysis is performed to estimate the
community’s undiscounted future cash flows. If @#simated undiscounted future cash flows are gréfsaa the carrying value of the
community group of assets, no impairment adjustrizerequired. If the undiscounted cash flows ass laan the community’carrying value
the asset group is impaired and is written dowitstéair value. The Company estimates the fair gaficommunities using a discounted cash
flow model. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, ## estate inventory is stated at cost; there weraventory impairment charges
recorded during the years ended December 31, 2012, and 2011.

Capitalized Interest

Interest and other financing costs are capitaleedost of inventory during community developmerd home construction activities, in
accordance with ASC Topic 83miterest(*“ASC 835”") and expensed in cost of sales as ham#ge community are sold. To the extent the
debt exceeds qualified assets, a portion of treést incurred is expensed.

Pre-Acquisition Costs and Deposits

Amounts paid for land options, deposits on landcpase contracts, and other pre-acquisition costsapitalized and classified as
deposits to purchase. Upon execution of the puestithese deposits are applied to the acquisitime pf the land and recorded as a cost
component of the land in real estate inventorythoextent that any deposits are nonrefundabldétendssociated land acquisition process is
terminated or no longer determined probable, tleted deposits are charged to general and adnatii@rexpense. Management reviews the
likelihood of the acquisition of contracted lotsdanjunction with its periodic real estate impainhanalysis.

Deferred Loan Costs

Deferred loan costs represent debt issuance codtglapending on the nature and purpose of the évarcapitalized to real estate
inventory or amortized to interest expense usiegstiaight-line method which approximates the é¢iffednterest method.

Property and Equipment

Property, equipment and leasehold improvementstated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.doggtion expense is recorded in
general and administrative expenses. Upon saletioement, the costs and related accumulated degicecare eliminated from the respeci
accounts and any resulting gain or loss is includexther income, net. Depreciation is generallgnpated using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets, rangimg 3 to 7 yearfor property and equipment. Leasehold improvemargsiepreciated over t
shorter of the asset life or the term of the lebdantenance and repair costs are expensed aseadcur

Impairments of londived assets are determined periodically when eigis of impairment are present. If such indicatoespresent, tt
determination of the amount of impairment is basedudgments as to the future undiscounted operatish flows to be generated from tt
assets throughout their remaining estimated u$igad. If these undiscounted cash flows are lean the carrying amount of the related asset,
impairment is recognized for the excess of they@agrvalue over its fair value. There were no impeants of property, equipment and
leasehold improvements recorded during the yeatedeBDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Investments in Joint Ventures and Unconsolidated Maable Interest Entities (VIES)

Historically, the Predecessor functioned as theagamg member of several joint ventures conductimgébuilding activities; these joi
ventures became wholly-owned subsidiaries of the@oy as a result of the Reorganization Transaxtoa the GTIS Acquisitions.

In accordance with ASC Topic 810pnsolidation, management had assessed whether these entitied/ifs. The Predecessor had
variable interests in the joint venture arrangemémt it managed, and these joint ventures wetsrrdaned to be VIEs because the members
of the joint ventures, as a group, had insufficietity at risk without further capital contributie The Predecessor’s rights as well as the
rights held by the other joint venture members Ibegh evaluated to determine the primary benefi@étiie VIE, including the extent of
substantive participating rights and control of\aties that most significantly affected its ecorniorperformance. Such activities included, but
were not limited to, the ability to determine thedget and scope of land development work, if alng;ability to control financing decisions
for the VIE; and the ability to acquire additionahd into the VIE. If the Predecessor was not &bleontrol the significant decisions, the
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Predecessor was not considered the primary beasfiof the VIE. If the Predecessor was determinduktthe primary beneficiary of the V
the entity was consolidated in the Predecessoesdial statements.

The Predecessor had investments in four joint vestwhere the Predecessor and the other joint reentambers were deemed to have
joint control and the Predecessor was not the pyihaneficiary since all major decisions requirethbpartie’ consent. Accordingly, the
Predecessor’s interests in these joint ventures haen accounted for using the equity method arghire of the joint ventures’ net earnings
was included in income from unconsolidated joimituees and investments in unconsolidated jointwest Distributions received were
credited against the related investment in thet jeémture.

In addition, the Predecessor had interests in th&ls(LGl Homes -Sterling Lakes, LLC and LGI Fund Ill Holdings, LL@)here it ha
been determined that the Predecessor was the grbeaeficiary. In addition to the Predecessor sgras the managing member of these
entities, the Family Principals of the Predecesdsw held the general partner controlling inter@stie non-managing members of the VIEs.
As a result, the Predecessor combined with the ligdincipals’ related party interests had the poteedirect all significant activities of the
VIEs, and had exposure to the risks and rewardseo¥/IEs, based on the division of income and mssuant to the joint venture agreement
and the Predecessor’s ownership in the joint vestufrhese tw¥'IEs are consolidated in the accompanying constitifinancial statement

Management evaluated the Company’s investmentsdonsolidated entities for indicators of impairmeduating each reporting period.
No impairment charges were recorded related to investsnin unconsolidated entities during the perjoésented.

Insurance Costs and Reserves

The Company has deductible limits under workershpensation, automobile and general liability insgepolicies, and records
expense and liabilities for the estimated cosfsobéntial claims for construction defects. The ssdebility limits are $3 million per
occurrence and in the aggregate annually and apycess of automobile liability, employer’s lilityi under worker's compensation, and
general liability policies. The Company generaliguires subcontractors and design professionétsieannify the Company for liabilities
arising from their work, subject to certain limitats.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The excess of the purchase price of a businesssitamu over the net fair value of assets acquard liabilities assumed is capitalized
as goodwill in accordance with ASC Topic 805. ASGpit 805 requires that goodwill and intangible &s#eat do not have finite lives are |
amortized, but are assessed for impairment at &amsially or more frequently if certain impairmémdicators are present. The Company
recorded $12.0 million of goodwill related to th&IS Acquisitions. No goodwill impairment chargesreveecorded in 2013.

The costs of intangible assets with determinabégulidives are amortized over their estimated udefas. When certain events or
changes in operating conditions occur, the estidhfatieire undiscounted cash flows associated wihagset are compared to the asset’'s
carrying amount to determine if an impairment affsassets is necessary. For intangible assetarthaimortized, a review is performed of
their estimated useful lives to evaluate whethenévand circumstances warrant a revision to timairgng useful life. No impairment
charges were recorded in 2013 associated withgitibnassets.

Warranty Reserves
Future direct warranty costs are accrued and cHhamgeost of sales in the period when the relatadéis sold. The Company’s
warranty liability is based upon historical warnanbst experience and is adjusted as appropriatflaxt qualitative risks associated with the

types of homes built, the geographic areas in wttiely are built, and potential impacts of the Conymcontinued expansion.

Warranty reserves are reviewed quarterly to agheseasonableness and adequacy and to make agljiistro the balance of the pre-
existing reserves, as needed, to reflect changesrids and historical data as information becoavedable.

Customer Deposits

Customer deposits are received upon signing a peecbontract and are typically $500 - $1,000 . Bipare generally refundable if
the customer is unable to obtain financing. Foefkibuyer deposits related to home sales are receyim other
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(income) expense in the period in which it is detieed that the buyer will not complete the purchafsine property and the deposit is
nonrefundable to the buyer.

Home Sales

In accordance with ASC Topic 360 — Rral Estate Salegevenues from home sales are recorded at theettie home sale is closed,
titte and possession are transferred to the bayer there is no significant continuing involvemehthe Company with the home. Home sales
proceeds are generally received from the title camypwithin a few days from closing. Home salesraported net of sales discounts and
incentives granted to home buyers, which are pilynseller-paid closing costs.

Cost of Sales

As discussed under Real Estate Inventory, abow ofsales for homes closed include the constaatosts of each home and alloc:
land acquisition and land development costs, cliggthinterest, and other related common costh(bmurred and estimated to be incurred).

Selling and Commission Costs
Sales commissions are paid and expensed basedr@sisold. Other selling costs are expensed inghiegincurred.
Advertising Costs

Advertising and direct mail costs are expensedasried. Advertising and direct mail costs were2$8,672 , $1,803,027 and
$1,538,293 for the years ended December 31, 2@, 2nd 2011, respectively.

Income Taxes

LGI Homes, Inc. is a taxable entity. Prior to theoRyanization Transactions, the Predecessor cedsi$timited liability companies al
limited partnerships, all of which were treatedpastnerships for income tax purposes and fedecahire taxes on taxable income or losses
realized by the Predecessor were the obligatidgheindividual members or partners. As a resuthefReorganization Transactions, the
Predecessor entities are subject to federal atelisi@ome taxes. The accompanying financial statésriaclude a provision for income taxes
based on the period when the Company’s operatientaaable.

The Company utilizes the liability method of acctog for income taxes. Under the liability methdéferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized using enacted tax rates for thetaffaemporary differences between the book ardéses of recorded assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuatiowaitioe if it is more likely than not that some pamtor all of the net deferred tax assets will
not be realized. The Company’s ability to realieéetired tax assets is assessed throughout theaydar valuation allowance is established
accordingly. The Company recognizes the impacttakgosition only if it is more likely than not be sustained upon examination based on
the technical merits of the position. The Compaugognizes potential interest and penalties rekateshcertain tax positions in income tax
expense. See Note 10 for additional disclosuresrding income taxes.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction and in various states and dagshave any unrecognized tax
benefits. The Company will be subject to examimeiby the major tax jurisdictions in which it files

Prior to the Reorganization Transactions, the Rrestor was subject to certain state taxes andifedsling the Texas margin tax,
where applicable. There were no significant defemeome taxes related to state income taxes &ydars ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011.

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is based on the weightrdge number of shares of common stock outstanBihgted earnings per share is

based on the weighted average number of sharesmhon stock and dilutive securities outstandingaNested stock grants were the only
potentially dilutive share equivalents the Comphag outstanding at December 31, 2013.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The compensation expense for stock-based awabdsél on the fair value of the award and is re@aghon a straight-line basis over
the vesting period. The fair values of restrictetk units are based on the stock prices at the afagrant.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic 820Fair Value Measurement8ASC Topic 820"), defines fair value as “the price that would be ne®e@ to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trandantbetween market participants at the measuredsst within an entity’s principal market, if
any. The principal market is the market in whicé thporting entity would sell the asset or trangtierliability with the greatest volume and
level of activity, regardless of whether it is tharket in which the entity will ultimately transdor a particular asset or liability or if a
different market is potentially more advantageduordingly, this exit price concept may resulgifair value that differs from the
transaction price or market price of the asseiadility.

ASC Topic 820 provides a framework for measuririgfalue under GAAP, expands disclosures aboutaine measurements, and
establishes a fair value hierarchy, which requaregntity to maximize the use of observable inpnts minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. The three legéthe fair value hierarchy are summarized as ¥adlo

Level 1 - Fair value is based on quoted prices in actiaekets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Fair value is determined using significant olsabte inputs, generally either quoted prices ivaanarkets for similar assets

or liabilities, or quoted prices in markets tha aot active.

Level 3 - Fair value is determined using one or more §iicanit inputs that are unobservable in active mgrkéthe measurement date,

such as a pricing model, discounted cash flowjroilar technique.

The Company utilizes fair value measurements towawicfor certain items and account balances witkinonsolidated financial
statements. Fair value measurements may alsollzedtbn a nonrecurring basis, such as for the immpnt of long-lived assets. The fair
value of financial instruments, including cash aadh equivalents, accounts receivable and notebfmyapproximate their carrying amounts
due to the short term nature of these instrumémiaddition, as of December 31, 2013, the notesiplayhave a floating interest rate, which
increases or decreases with market interest r@telsis subject to an interest rate floor.

As described in Note 2 , the Predecessor’s histbiterests in the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures werguatbd to fair value determined
using Level 3 unobservable assumptions and valuatjouts. The assets and liabilities of the LGI/G&Tbint Ventures were recorded at fair
value determined based on Level 2 or Level 3 as§onmgpand valuation inputs.

4. REAL ESTATE INVENTORY

The Company's real estate inventory consists ofdlf@ving:

December 31,

2013 2012
Land, land under development, and finished lots $ 82,006,08 $ 8,538,63:
Sales offices 3,784,29! 912,46:
Homes in progress 27,722,36 8,045,84!
Completed homes 28,470,00 10,992,25
Total real estate inventory $ 141,982,714  $ 28,489,19

Interest and financing costs incurred under the Gamg's debt obligations, as more fully discussedate 9, are capitalized to
qualifying real estate projects under developmedtt@omes under construction.
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5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following:

December 31,

Asset Life 2013 2012
(years)
Computer equipment 3-5 $ 498,66( $ 291,11;
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 4-5 169,22t 707,55:
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 745,18t 338,64
Leasehold improvements various 108,36 18,64:
Total property and equipment 1,521,43 1,355,95
Less: Accumulated depreciation (676,73)) (636,56¢)
Property and equipment, net $ 844,70 $ 719,39

Depreciation expense incurred for the years endmmk@Dber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $260,778, @ and $79,747 ,
respectively.

The following are related to property and equipment

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
Related party transaction:
Equipment sold to the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures atlmeok value $ 29,23: $ 177
Non-cash transaction:
Settlement of vehicle notes payable (through tiade assumption by purchaser) $ 315,08: $ —

6. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES, VARIABLE INT EREST ENTITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

Prior to the GTIS Acquisitions, the Predecessaterests in the following four joint ventures (th&sI/GTIS Joint Ventures”) were
accounted for using the equity method of accounginge the Predecessor was not deemed to be thargrbeneficiaries of these variable
interest entities.

Joint Venture Name Date Formed Predecessor's Member

LGI—JV Holdings, LLC March 2010 LGl Homes Corporate, LLC

LGI—JV Holdings Il, LLC November 2010 LGl Homes Corporate, LLC through March
2011, then interest transferred to LGl Homes
Group, LLC

LGI—JV Holdings IlI, LLC March 2011 LGl Homes Group, LLC

LGI—JV Holdings IV, LLC October 2012 LGl Homes Group, LLC

The LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures were each engaged méimiilding and land development activities. GTI®tiRas, LP and affiliated
entities (collectively “GTIS") were joint ventureambers in these entities. Management of each df@ASTIS Joint Ventures was vested in
the members, being the Predecessor and GTIS. Bueéassor was considered the managing memberssef émtities. The managing
member had the responsibility and authority to afeethe LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures on a day-to-dayisossbject to the operating budget and
business plan, which was approved by both memibbesPredecessor used their sales, developmentp@ndtimns teams to support
operations and had significant influence even thahg respective joint venture members had beemel@é¢o have joint control under
ASC Topic 810. All major decisions required bothmters’ consent. Major decisions included, but werelimited to: the acquisition or
disposition of a project; capital contributionsgashanges, and updates or amendments to the awebatiget or business plan. Generally, the
LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures did not obtain constructfarancing from outside lenders, but financed tleaitivities primarily through equity
contributions from each of the joint venture mensber
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Profits were allocated to the members of the LGI&Joint Ventures based on the predetermined fasspecified in the joint ventu
agreements for the allocation of distributable cd$te GTIS member and the Predecessor were alth8&86 and 15% of the profits,
respectively, (the “Sharing Percentages”) untilstime as the members received cash distributiqoalgo their initial capital investment
plus, generally, a 15% internal rate of return (§FiTier Return”). Subsequent allocations of dmttable cash and profits included a priority
allocation of approximately 20% to 40% to the Predsor, depending on the amount of cash distribsia@hieved over the life of the joint
venture. Upon liquidation of the Predecessor istsren the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures, the Predecegss required to restore any deficit
balance in its capital account as provided fohmrespective joint venture agreements. TherefoeePredecessor's maximum exposure to
loss as a result of involvement in each LGI/GTIStI¥enture was the amount of the Predecessor’&yequsuch joint venture ( $4.8 million
on a combined basis for the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventaeslovember 13, 2013) plus the potential to funyg deficit capital balance upon
liquidation. Performance of the Predecessor urttejdint venture agreements was guaranteed byicéitadecessor entities, including LGl
Homes II, LLC, LGl Homes — Sunrise Meadow, LLC, LEBdmes — Canyon Crossing, LLC, and LGl Homes — [@¥eek, LLC, and was
secured by a first lien and security interest i Biredecessor’s interest and the right to receiyalstributions from the respective LGI/GTIS
Joint Venture.

Since the internal rates of return necessary teive@ higher proportion of distributions were cédted over the life of each LGI/GTIS
Joint Venture and both the timing and amount afifeicontributions and distributions would affea tPredecessor’s share of distributions,
there was no certainty that the Predecessor wegkive greater than 15% of the LGI/GTIS Joint Vesgudistributions. Therefore, the
Predecessor recorded its investments in the LGB&EDInt Ventures at 15% of each venture’s capitdrice and recognized the incremental
amounts due to the Predecessor as a result ofingatie higher distribution tiers only when receive

As of December 31, 2012, none of the LGI/GTIS Jdiabtures had achieved the First-Tier Return, floeeethere were no priority
allocations paid to the Predecessor. During thimgended November 13, 2013, LGI-GTIS Holdings, L LGI-GTIS Holdings II, LLC and
LGI-GTIS Holdings Ill, LLC achieved the Third-Ti€teturn resulting in the priority allocations to tAeedecessor of up to approximately
40% . As of November 13, 2013, LGI-GTIS Holdings I\L.C had not achieved the First-Tier Return. Dgrihe period ended November 13,
2013, the Predecessor recognized $2.7 millioniwripy distributions from the LGI/GTIS Joint Venes. The LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures were
acquired on November 13, 2013 and as such there meefurther distributions or contributions.

Summarized condensed combined financial informaticthe LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures accounted for uding equity method is
presented below for the period through the date®f5TIS Acquisitions:

November 13, December 31,
Balance Sheets 2013 2012
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,709,451 $ 4,129,10
Total real estate inventory 30,989,39 26,835,60
Other assets 951,14 2,128,76:
Total assets $ 38,649,98 $ 33,093,47
Liabilities and members’ equity:
Liabilities $ 6,723,06: $ 3,451,44
Members’ equity:
Predecessor 4,789,03 4,446,30:
GTIS members 27,137,88 25,195,72
Total members’ equity 31,926,92 29,642,02
Total liabilities and members’ equity $ 38,649,98  § 33,093,47
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Period Ended Year Ended

November 13, December 31,
Statements of Operations 2013 2012 2011
Home sales $ 80,895,65 $ 69,558,30 $ 32,995,21
Cost of sales $ 58,717,99 $ 49,750,922 % 22,761,37
Net earnings of unconsolidated entities $ 10,873,400 $ 10,176,43 $ 4,765,05
Predecessor's share in net earnings of unconsediéatities $ 4,286,633 $ 1,526,46. $ 714,75¢

Consolidated Joint Ventures

Two consolidated joint ventures, engaged in honiding and land development activities, were detagdito be VIEs and the
Predecessor was deemed to be the primary bengfigiaer ASC Topic 810. LGI Fund Ill Holdings, LLCas formed March 31, 2013, and
LGl Homes Group, LLC was the managing member;éhiity became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Canmypon November 13, 2013, as
a result of the Company’s acquisition of the nontoalling interests in the joint venture as partleé Reorganization Transactions (See Note
1). LGI Homes-Sterling Lakes, LLC was formed in @0and LGl Homes Corporate, LLC was the managingbes. LGl Homes-Sterling
Lakes, LLC had income attributable to non-contrglinterests of $162,968r the year ended December 31, 2012, and wasc:tmseprior tc
December 31, 2012.

Historically, profits were allocated to the membefshe consolidated joint ventures based on tedgtermined formulas specified in
the joint venture agreements for the allocatiodisfributable cash. The non-managing members anétédecessor were allocated 85% and
15% of the profits, respectively, (the “Sharing ¢d&stages”) until such time as the members recaiast distributions equal to their initial
capital investment plus, generally, a 15% interatg of return (“First Tier Return”). Subsequenbedtions of distributable cash and profits
included a priority allocation of approximately 206640% to the Predecessor's member, dependinigeoarhount of cash distributions
achieved over the life of the joint venture.

7. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following:

December 31,

2013 2012
Receivable from municipality $ — 3 1,250,001
Prepaid insurance 1,205,01: 286,35¢
Prepaid expenses 291,24: 34,38.
Security deposits 468,37( 299,13:
Other assets — 14,23(
Total other assets $ 196463 $ 1,884,101

In connection with the development of a commurlitg] Homes — Sunrise Meadow, LLC financed the desigmstruction and initial
operations of the municipal utility district subjeéo the district’'s commitment to reimburse eligildosts in connection with a bond offering.
The municipal utility district issued bonds duri@gtober 2013, and the receivable from the muniitip&dr reimbursement of costs incurred
by LGl Homes — Sunrise Meadow, LLC was collectedrduNovember 2013.
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8. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued and other current liabilities consist & fbllowing:

December 31,

2013 2012
Accrued liabilities $ 3,531,441 $ 948,80°
Accrued bonuses 1,055,05 583,24
Warranty reserve 630,00( 450,00(
Income taxes payable 1,553,68 119,47:
Customer deposits 330,03 75,42
Total accrued expenses and other liabilities $ 7,100,211 $ 2,176,94!

Estimated Warranty Reserve-The Company typically provides homebuyers witkemyear limited warranty for major defects in
structural elements such as framing component§antiation systems, a two -year limited warrantynwajor mechanical systems, and a one
-year limited warranty on other construction comgus. The Predecessor provided similar warrantyices for homes sold by the LGI/GTIS
Joint Ventures prior to the GTIS Acquisitions (dé&me 13).

Changes to the Company's warranty accrual arelasvéo

December 31,

2013 2012
Warranty reserves, beginning of year $ 450,000 $ 275,00(
Warranty provision 763,73¢ 409,05
Warranty reserve acquired in GTIS Acquisitions 30,00( —
Warranty expenditures (613,73) (234,05)
Warranty reserves, end of year $ 630,000 $ 450,00(

9. NOTES PAYABLE

As of December 31, 2013 , the Company was partydosecured revolving credit facilities, up to ajgeegate $37.0 million , to
purchase and develop land parcels and construchneves. The Company repays the amounts borrowest timel secured revolving credit
facilities for acquisition and development as lmts released based upon a specific release psicefimed in each respective credit facility
agreement. The Company repays the amounts borromgst the credit facility for construction procedasn home sales based upon a
specific release price, as defined in each respectidit facility agreement. Interest on amoumtisdwed is paid monthly at a rate based on
LIBOR or the interest rate floor, whichever is gera

The LGl Homes Group, LLC and the LGl Homes- Sunkiteadow, LLC credit facilities with Texas Capitahuk, N.A. were amended
during 2013 to establish a borrowing base to deteravailable loan proceeds. The individual fagiitborrowing base is determined based
on the loan value of the pool of collateral in whibe lenders have a security interest. The Compaayborrow additional amounts under
credit facilities with Texas Capital Bank, N.A. foew home starts through the facility expiratiotedahich are subject to the lender’s final
approval of each project and limitations on thertwings attributable to certain markets, specutatiome building, vacant lots, and
acquisition and development funding. Vacant lotd homes generally may remain in the borrowing lbasap to one year. As of
December 31, 2013, the borrowing base amountsruhese agreements totaled $37.0 million .
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December 31,
2013 2012(12)

LGl Homes Group, LLC— Notes payable to Texas Capital Bank, N.A. under an

amended credit facility ($35 and $20 million lineDeecember 31, 2013 and 2012,

respectively) expiring June 30, 2015; interestl&Q@R plus 3.0% at December 31,

2013 and 2012, with a 4.0% and 4.5% floor at Deaam3hi, 2013 and 2012,

respectively; collateralized by borrower’s landyelepment and home construction

costs (carrying value of $106.1 at December 313R0juaranteed by a family

Principal, the managing member, and non-managinglmes as joint and several

guarantors $ 34,078,26 $ 12,270,63

LGl Homes—Sunrise Meadow, LLC and LGI Holdings, LLC— Notes payable to

Texas Capital Bank, N.A. under an amended credilitia($2 and $5 million line at

December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively) expirbgcember 31, 2013; interest at

LIBOR plus 3.9% at December 31, 2013 and 2012, with0% and 4.5% floor at

December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively; collarexhby borrowers’ land,

development and home construction costs (carryabgevof $5.1 at December 31,

2013); guaranteed by a Family Principal 1,457,001 835,36

LGl Homes—Texas, LLC— Notes payable to Regions Bank, under an amended

million revolving credit facility expiring March 22014, interest at LIBOR plus 4.0%

with a 5% floor; collateralized by borrowers’ lardgvelopment and home constructi

costs; guaranteed by LGI Homes Corporate, LLCrtledit facility was paid in full in

September 2013 — 1,225,12:
LGl Homes Corporate, LLC —Notes payable to banks; interest rates ranging fro

0% to 4.3%; principal and interest is payable imthty installments; maturity dates

ranged from July 2014 through December 2016; ealtdized by vehicles, the notes

were settled during September 2013 — 425,12(
LGl Homes—Sunrise Meadow, LLC participation fee obligation, secured by secc

lien on LGI Homes—Sunrise Meadow, LLC land, deveb@mt, and home constructic

assets; guaranteed by a family Principal — 212,52.

Total notes payable $ 35,535,266 % 14,968,76

(1) As of December 31, 2012, the Company's construetimhdevelopment activities were financed throughlic facilities generally providing for securedte® for the
construction of individual homes and/or completatd,lwith maturities ranging from 9 — 12 monthanirthe borrowing date.

At December 31, 2013, debt outstanding of $3516aniis secured by the pool of collateral which may reniathe borrowing bas
for up to ongyear; consequently, the outstanding balance matn2314. The Company may add vacant lots, holaed,and acquisition ar
development projects to its pool of collateral thigh June 30, 2015. As of December 31, 2013 and 2DIBOR was 0.24% and 0.31% ,
respectively. Based on the terms of the varialike mates payable, the interest amounts paid dtinegears ended December 31, 2013 and
2012 , were based on the interest rate floor terms.

The Company’s credit agreements generally regb&ébrrower and guarantor to maintain certain r@thw liquidity and leverage
ratios and, in some cases, include cross-defaoMigions and restrictive covenants related to feans control of the borrower. The
Company's current homebuilding operations are pilynfunded by borrowings from one primary bankvath equity. The availability of
credit to fund ongoing and future operations cdadchegatively impacted if the underlying finandretitution fails or is subject to other
adverse conditions in the financial markets. Teddte Company has experienced no loss or lackasfsa to cash in their credit facilities v
the bank.

Participation Obligations

The development and construction financing provittethe Predecessor by mezzanine lenders havedettlparticipation fee
provisions based on a percentage of the home saéspealized from the funded projects. The pgrditon fees were paid at the time the
homes were sold. The participation fees have besorded to deferred loan costs and were amort@zeddrest expense, and considered in
the Predecessor’s determination of capitalizedéstediscussed further below, over the term ofdispective loan.
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As of December 31, 2012 , LGl Homes—Sunrise Meaddw; had a participation fee obligation for the @@ming 264 (unaudited)
unsold lots of the 974 (unaudited) total commuidtg; the related loan matured during April 20IThe participation fee obligation was
settled with the lenders during September 2013@02 million , and the corresponding gain of $8,&l#cluded in other income, net in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

Capitalized Interest

Interest activity, including other financing codis, notes payable for the periods presented fslbsvs:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Interest incurred $ 1,377,92. $ 823,92! $ 1,254,29.
Less: Amounts capitalized (1,326,97)) (822,69 (1,226,14)
Interest expense $ 50,94¢ $ 123 % 28,15:
Cash paid for interest $ 1,220,33 % 790,05¢ $ 1,274,70i

10. INCOME TAXES
All Company operations are domestic. The provigamrincome taxes consisted of the following:

Year ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Current:

Federal $ 841,25: $ — 3 —

State 512,59¢ 154,54; 124,89:
Current tax provision 1,353,85. 154,54, 124,89:
Deferred:

Federal (264,499 — —

State (23,287 — —
Deferred tax benefit (287,78 — —
Total income tax provision $ 1,066,07. $ 154,54; $ 124,89:

Taxes paid were $115,872 , $163,171 and $130,54Béoyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2&ddectively.

Prior to the Reorganization Transactions, the Rrestor consisted of limited liability companies éimidted partnerships, all of which
were treated as partnerships for income tax pugpdsawever, as a result of the Reorganization Tetitns, the Predecessor entities are
subsidiaries of the Company, thereby becoming stibgefederal and certain state taxes beginningeiter 13, 2013. As a result of this tax
status change, the Company recorded a net defocdidbility and a one-time non-cash charge of %243 included in the income tax
provision. In addition, the remeasurement of thedBcessor’s historical interests in the LGI/GTIBt)dentures generated approximately
$4.8 million of excess book goodwill primarily atntable to the Predecessor’s carryover basisdrjdimt ventures’ assets and liabilities that
is not deductible for federal income tax purpo3éss excess goodwill is not amortizable for taxgmses.

In November 2013, prior to the closing of the IP@ ¢he Reorganization Transactions (see Note &)etiities comprising of the
Predecessor distributed to their owners approxim&& 8 million to pay estimated federal incomeesvon earnings for the period from
January 1, 2013 through November 13, 2013.

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxfes 2013 and the amount computed by applying thtutiry federal income tax rate of
35% to income before provision for income taxestifieryear ended December 31, 2013, and the partigbgquent to the Reorganization
Transactions, November 13, 2013 to December 313 ffllbws:
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November 13, 2013 -

December 31, 2013 Year Ended December 31, 201

Tax at federal statutory rate $ 2,725,05. 35.(% $ 7,981,16. 35.C%
State income taxes (net of federal benefit) 48,36: 0.€ 438,69: 1.¢
Non-deductible expenses and other 517 0.1 517 0.1
Non-taxable - gain on remeasurement (2,256,08) (29.0 (2,256,08) (9.9
Domestic production activity deduction (87,619 (1.2 (87,619 (0.9
Change in tax status of entity - deferred taxes 245,51: 3.2 245,51: 11
Income attributable to partnerships - nontaxable — — (5,256,11) (23.7)
Tax at effective rate $ 675,74( 8.8% $ 1,066,07. 4.7 %

The components of net deferred tax assets anditiedbiat December 31, 2013, are as follows:

December 31, 2013

Deferred tax assets:

Compensation related to RSU's $ 395,11¢
Accruals and reserves 469,90:
Total deferred tax assets 865,02:
Deferred tax liabilities:

Inventory (258,419
Tax depreciation in excess of book depreciation (223,316
Goodwill and other assets amortized for tax (95,510
Total deferred tax liability $ (577,24()

$ 287,78

Total net deferred tax asset (liability)

11. EQUITY

The Company is authorized to issue 250,000,00Cestarcommon stock, par value $0.01 per share580D,000 shares of preferred
stock, par value $0.01 per share. On July 9, 20,080 shares of common stock, par value $0.01h@meswere issued upon receipt of
$1,000 . At December 31, 2013 , the Company hage3)449 shares of Common Stock issued and outsigndd shares of preferred stock
were issued or outstanding.

Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings per share for the pghiedCompany was a public registrant,
from November 13, 2013 to December 31, 2013. Egmjer share is not computed for the period padhé closing date of the IPO because
the Predecessor consisted of limited liability camips and limited partnerships and LGl Homes, diit not have operations.
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For the Period fror

November 13,

2013 -
December 31,

2013
Net income $ 7,110,121
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 20,763,44
Add: Dilutive effect of restricted stock units 70,67
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 20,834,122
Basic earnings per share $ 0.34
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.34

Predecessor's Owners' Equi

The following table reflects the activity and batas in the owners’ equity of the Predecessor poithe Reorganization Transactions:

LGI Homes LGI Homes LGI Homes-
Group, Corporate, Deer Creek,
LLC LLC LLC Other
Members’ Members’ Members’ Partnerships’ Total Owners’
Capital Capital Capital Capital Equity
BALANCE—JANUARY 1, 2011 $ — $ 229,92 $ 42,71¢  $ 8,710,67. $ 11,050,31
Netincome 152,62 878,18 764,75 1,554,85! 3,350,41'
Contributions 3,960,001 = 400,00( = 4,360,001
Distributions — — (250,001 (5,520,00)) (5,770,00)
BALANCE—DECEMBER 31, 2011 $ 4112620 $ 3175100 $ 957,46° $ 474553  $ 12,990,73
Netincome 6,445,38 2,258,22 802,16¢ 199,35¢ 9,705,12'
Contributions 6,650,00! _ _ o 6,650,00!
Distributions (53,28) (2,001,96) (1,759,63) (320,000 (4,134,88)
BALANCE—DECEMBER 31, 2012 $ 17,154,72  $ 343137 $ — % 462488 $ 25,210,97
Net income 11,892,45 1,883,29 — 1,441,19: 15,216,94
Contributions = 2,500,001 = 35,00( 2,535,001
Distributions (6,969,56) (1,468,80) — (672,839 (9,111,20)
BALANCE—NOVEMBER 13, 2013 $ 22,077,60 $ 6,345,86 $ — 3 5428241 $ 33,851,71

LGl Homes Group, LLC is a Texas limited liability company formed in Mar2011. EDSS Holdings, LP, a limited partnership
wholly-owned by the Family Principals, owned 50.%26f LGl Homes Group, LLC, and LGI Investment Fuhd_P, owned the remaining
49.875% . LGI Investment Fund II, LP was formedaexas limited partnership in June 2011. LGI Fur@P, LLC was the 1% general
partner. LGI Fund Il GP, LLC is wholly-owned by Efiipar. The limited partners were various investor

In March 2013, LGI Homes Group, LLC formed LGI FulidHoldings, LLC (a joint venture consolidatedtime accompanying

financial statements) with LGI Investment Fund LR, (see Note6 ). LGl Homes Group, LLC was the managing membee IGI
Investment Fund Ill, LP was formed as a Texas édhppartnership in February 2013. LGl Fund Ill GBClwas the 1% general partner. LGI
Fund Il GP, LLC is whollyewned by Eric Lipar. The limited partners were gas investors. In accordance with the terms ofdhmation of
LGI Investment Fund Ill, LP, the limited partnership exchanged its 85% owtmigrin LGI Fund Ill Holdings, LLC for approximaiel .5
times the investment amount upon completion of#@ and as part of the Reorganization Transactions.

LGl Homes Corporate, LLC is a Texas limited liability company formed in Mar2010 and was wholly-owned and managed by the
Family Principals prior to the Reorganization Traeteons.
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LGl Homes—Deer Creek, LLC is a Texas limited liability company formed in JU2@09. The entity was wholly-owned and managed
by the Family Principals prior to the Reorganizatioansactions.

The Other Partnerships included in the accompangamgolidated financial statements and aggregat#teiabove table are:

 LGIHomes II, LLC , formerly LGl Homes, Ltd. and JTM Housing, Ltd.asvformed as a Texas limited partnership in
December 2002, renamed as LGl Homes, Ltd. in Octd®@4 and LGl Homes I, LLC in November 2013. LGP, LLC, a wholly-
owned Texas limited liability company formed in 208s a wholly-owned subsidiary of LGI Holdings, LL@as the 1% general
partner of LGI Homes Il, LLC. The limited partneas99% owned by the Family Principals prior toReorganization Transactions.

* LGl Homes - Sunrise Meadow, LLC, formerly LGl Homes - Sunrise Meadow, Ltd. wastfied as a Texas limited partnership in
February 2005 and renamed as LGl Homes - Sunriselde, LLC in November 2013. LGI GP, LLC, was the @éweral partner. Tl
entity was wholly-owned and managed by the Familgdipals prior to the Reorganization Transactions.

* LGI Homes - Canyon Crossing, LLC, formerly LGl Homes - Canyon Crossing, Ltd. wasiied as a Texas limited partnership in
May 2005 and renamed as LGl Homes - Canyon Croskli@ in November 2013. LGI GP, LLC, was the 1% gext partner. The
entity was wholly-owned and managed by the Familgdipals prior to the Reorganization Transactions.

12. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

2013 Stock Incentive Plan

As approved by the Company's stockholders, the @ompdopted the LGI Homes, Inc. 2013 Equity IncenRlan (the "2013 Incenti
Plan") to reward, retain and attract key persomiseDecember 31, 2013 , the Company had 1,500,0@0ramon stock reserved for issuance
pursuant to the 2013 Incentive Plan.

On November 6, 2013, immediately prior to the dff@mess of the prospectus for the IPO, the Comgaagted 140,222 restricted
stock units ("RSU's") to employees, executives rmomt-employee directors under the 2013 Incentiva Riaich vest over periods ranging
from one to three years and will be settled in sbaf the Company’s common stock. Of these gr@Bi815RSU's represent the settlemer
$1.0 million of accrued liabilities of the Predesessfor management and executive bonuses whiclbéen earned and recorded as
compensation expense of as part of a performaneedbzash bonus plan through the date of the IP@ddition, 46,907 RSU's were granted
to certain employees, executives and the non-erapldyrectors, of which none were forfeited as ofémber 31, 2013.

The value of the RSU's was determined to be egudiet number of shares of the Company's commotk stdoe issued pursuant to the
RSU's, multiplied by the price of the Company's own stock on the date the RSU's were awarded wiesh$11.0Q the IPO price. The fa
value of RSU's granted in 2013 is $1,542,442 . Chmpany recognized $42,814 of total stock-basedpemsation expense related to these
grants for the year ended December 31, 2013. Aedéer 31, 2013, the Company had unrecognized caapien cost of $473,16&lated t
stock-based compensation awards granted. Thaitscespected to be recognized over a weighted aegragod of 1.7 years .

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

From time to time, the Company may engage in tretises with entities that are affiliated with the@pany. Transactions with related
parties are in the normal course of operationseRables due from and payables due to relatedgsartcluded in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets consist of the follgwin
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December 31,

2013 2012
Receivables:
LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures $ — 8 985,71¢
Other affiliates and owners 28,23¢ 41,20¢
Total $ 28,23t $ 1,026,92!
Payables:
LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures $ — % 108,57
Total $ — % 108,57

Management and Warranty Fees

The Predecessor had a Management Services Agrewitierach of the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures. The Resbsor provided
administration, supervision, marketing, and variother services for the joint ventures. The Preslemecharged the joint ventures a
management fee of approximately 3% of home salemass. The Predecessor also charged the jointresrdumanagement fee of 3% of
construction costs for the development of landa@dicable. The management and construction fees iweaddition to direct costs chargec
the joint ventures. Management fees earned undeagreements were $2.6 million, $2.3 million andL$illion for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

The Predecessor collected a warranty fee of $250 the LGI/GTIS Joint Ventures upon the closinghef sale of each home. The
Predecessor provided a Home Builder’s Limited Watgrao the buyer of each home. The Predecessoragasnsible for the performance
and discharge of any warranty claims asserted sigtia joint ventures or the GTIS member. Warrdegg earned were $0.1 million for each
of the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Profit Sharing Plan

The Company’s employees are eligible to participate 401(k) savings plan established by LGl Hal@dinLLC, a sister company in an
unrelated business. Employees are eligible togpatie after completing ninety days of service hading attained the age of 21 . Salary
deferrals are allowed in amounts up to 100% ofligiibée employee’s salary, not to exceed the maximallowed by law. A discretionary
match may be made by the Company of up to 100%eofitst 3% of an eligible employee’s deferral, tmexceed $3,000 . For each of the
years endeDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , the Comparatshing contributions were $0.1 million.

Consulting Fees

Concurrent with the IPO, the Company entered irttr@e -year consulting agreement with a relatety far $100,00Qer year payab
on a monthly basis. Consulting fees were approxipat17,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013.

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Contingencies

In the ordinary course of doing business, the Campecomes subject to claims or proceedings fram to time relating to the
purchase, development, and sale of real estateaddament believes that these claims include usuigiadions incurred by real estate
developers in the normal course of business. logheion of management, these matters will not hawgaterial effect on the Company’s
combined financial position, results of operationgash flows.

The Company has provided unsecured environmerdahinities to certain lenders. In each case, thepaomnhas performed due
diligence on the potential environmental risks uithg obtaining an independent environmental re\frem outside environmental
consultants. These indemnities obligate the Compangimburse the guaranteed parties for damadgedeo environmental matters. There
is no term or damage limitation on these indemsiitiwever, if an environmental matter arises@bhmpany may have recourse against
other previous owners. Management is not awar@ykavironmental claims or occurrences and hagdedono reserves for environmental
matters at December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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Land Deposits

The Company has land purchase option contracterginthrough cash deposits, for the right to pase land or lots at a future point
in time with predetermined terms. The Company dagdave title to the property and obligations witkpect to the option contracts are
generally limited to the forfeiture of the relatednrefundable cash deposits. The following is arsany of the Company's land purchase
deposits and option contracts included in pre-agtjom costs and deposits:

December 31,

2013 2012
Land deposits and option payments $ 2,977,050 $ 963,50(
Commitments under the land purchase option andsitepgreements if the purchases are
consummated $ 111,114,99 $ 33,057,76
Lots under land options and land purchase contracts 8,21¢ 2,24z

Leasing Arrangements

The Company leases office facilities and certamggent under noancellable operating lease agreements. Rent ésogbsiovisions
are accounted for using the straight-line methamhtRxpense includes common area maintenance Bestsexpense totaled $326,962 ,
$240,804 and $230,618 for the years ended Decedih@013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-canceltgi#eating lease agreements are as follows at Deeredd, 2013 (in thousands):

2014 $ 381
2015 407
2016 431
2017 46(
2018 29€
Thereafter 7

Total $ 1,98¢

Bonding

The Company has outstanding performance and sboeiys of $353,388 , $183,103 and $366,205 at Deeefih 2013, 2012 and
2011 , respectively, related to the Company’s @lticmns for site improvements at various projecert&n surety bonds are guaranteed by one
of the Family Principals. Management does not belibat draws upon these bonds, if any, will haneagerial effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial position, results of oparasi, or cash flows.

15. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates one principal homebuildingniess which is organized and reports by divisioitidl operations were
conducted in the Texas division (formerly referteds the Central region), expanding into the Seath division (formerly referred to as the
Western region) during 2011 and the Florida andi8mst divisions during 2012. During July and Oetab013, the Florida and Southeast
divisions had their first home closings, respedyive

In accordance with ASC Topic 288egment Reportingoperating segments are defined as components exfitarprise for which
separate financial information is available thatvaluated regularly by the chief operating decisitaker ("CODM") in deciding how to
allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The Company has determined that it has four opgratgments as of December 31, 2013; the Texasatiyithe Southwest division,
the Southeast division and the Florida divisione Tiexas division is the largest division and it poised greater than 80% of total home sales
revenues for the years ended December 31, 201, &td 2011 .

The operating segments qualify for aggregationresreporting segment. In determining the reportabtgment, the Company
concluded that all operating segments have siragdanomic and other characteristics, including sintilome floor
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plans, average selling prices, gross margin, pril@muconstruction processes, suppliers, subcomractegulatory environments, customer
type, and underlying demand and supply.

The CODM primarily evaluates performance basechemumber of homes sold, gross margin and net inc&ach operating segment
follows the same accounting policies as the Comentyis managed by the Company’ management teaenCdmpany has no intsegmen
sales, as all sales are to external customers.

16. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITE D)
Quarterly results are as follows (in thousandsepkper share data):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2013 2013 2013 2013
Total home sales revenues $ 21,47¢ $ 36,51¢ $ 37,038 $ 65,03/
Gross margin 5,66: 10,19 9,952 12,93
Income before income taxes 2,491 5,10z 5,28 9,917
Net income 2,45( 5,01: 5,15( 9,12¢
Net income attributable to owners 2,45( 5,15¢ 5,58¢ 9,131
Basic and diluted earnings per share (1) — — — 0.34
First Second Fourth
Quarter Quarter Third Quarter
2012 2012 Quarter 2012 2012
Total home sales revenues $ 12,331 % 15527 $ 2285. $ 23,10¢
Gross margin 3,261 4,327 6,152 5,54¢
Income before income taxes 1,43: 2,417 3,78: 2,39(
Net income 1,40: 2,38¢ 3,75( 2,332
Net income attributable to owners 1,33¢ 2,38¢ 3,65¢ 2,332

Basic and diluted earnings per share (1) — — — —

(1) Earnings per share is presented for the pdrayzd November 13, 2013 (post Reorganization Tratimas and date of closing of IPO) to December 13,
2013. SeeNote 11 - Equityor calculation of earnings per share

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreen

On January 30, 2014, certain subsidiaries (thert®eers") of the Company entered into a Second Araérathd Restated Loan
Agreement with Texas Capital Bank, N.A. (the “Ctesljreement”). The Credit Agreement provides f&58.0 million senior secured
revolving credit facility, guaranteed by the Compahhe new revolving credit facility matures on @80, 2016. Borrowings under the new
revolving credit facility are limited to the borravg base, which is determined based on the loarevaf the pool of collateral in which the
lender has a security interest. The Company mayadant lots, houses, land and acquisition andldpreent projects to its pool of collate
through June 30, 2015. Pre-sold houses may remaheiborrowing base for up to nine months whiledleidomes, speculative homes and
vacant lots may remain in the borrowing base fotaupneyear. Interest on amounts borrowed is paid morahby rate based on LIBOR or
interest rate floor, whichever is greater.

The Credit Agreement includes financial covenané will be tested on a quarterly basis. The CrAdittement requires the Borrow
to maintain a net worth of not less than $35.0ianilland the Company, as guarantor, to maintaimgitiée net worth of not less th&i25.(
million . The Credit Agreement also requires therBwers to maintain a leverage ratio of not morantii.25to 1.0 and the Company,
guarantor, to maintain a leverage ratio of not mbaa 1.0 to 1.0. The Borrowers are required
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under the Credit Agreement to maintain liquidityercess of $10.0 million and unrestricted cashaifless than $5.0 million The Cred
Agreement requires that the Borrowers shall nofesufet losses in more than two consecutive calegdarters. In addition, the Cre
Agreement contains various covenants that, amdmey oéstrictions, limit the amount of additionabtland related party transactions.

Performance Based Restricted Stock Ur

In February 2014, the Compensation Committee agut@wards of 62,906 performance-based restrictett sinits (“Performance-
Based RSUs") relating to shares of the Companyismon stock to certain of its senior management. FégrformanceéBased RSUs are bas
on the attainment of certain performance metrichefCompany over the three year period, 2014 620he number of shares underlying the
Performance-Based RSUs that will be issued todhgients may range from 0% to 200% of the basedd@pending on actual performance
metrics as compared to the target performance eseffhe Performance-Based RSUs vest upon the detgiom date for the actual
performance metric at the end of the three-yeaogemd require the recipients continue to be eggadyy the Company through the
determination date as specified in the award dootnide Performance-Based RSUs will be settledhares of the Company's common
stock.

The value of the Performance-Based RSUs was detedhtid be equal to the estimated number of shéithe €ompany’s common
stock to be issued multiplied by the closing pof¢he Company’s common stock on the NASDAQ Gld#atkets of $17.09 on the date the
Performance-Based RSU awards were approved bydimpénsation Committee. The estimated aggregatedhie of performance-based
RSUs at the date of issuance was $1.1 million .

Non-performance Based Restricted Stock Units

In March 2014, the Company issued 37,307 RSUsrtaioeofficers in settlement of approximately $&1H) of accrued bonuses earned
and recorded as compensation expense during theel gibsequent to the IPO and prior to Decembe?@13 under the performance-based
cash bonus plan. The RSUs have a one -year vgstiiad. In addition, during March 2013, the Compéasyied 24,089 RSUs to certain
employees and executives which vest over periaugimg from one to three years. The RSUs will bdexin shares of the Company’s
common stock.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
LGI-GTIS Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of LGI-GTIS Holdings, LLC and Subsidisu(ie “Company”) as of
November 13, 2013 and December 31, 2012, and thtedeconsolidated statements of operations, mes’ equity, and cash flows for the
period from January 1, 2013 through November 13324hd each year in the two-year period ended Dieeef8i, 2012. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of@mmpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpan opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thestmbtain reasonable assurance about whetheptisolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. We were not engag@eérform an audit of the Company’s internal colstover financial reporting. An audit
includes consideration of internal control oveafigial reporting as a basis for designing audit@dares that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audifudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stippdhe amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit alstuitles assessing the accounting principles usedigniicant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall dioladed financial statement presentation. We belighat our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated financial
position of LGI-GTIS Holdings, LLC and SubsidiarigsNovember 13, 2013 and December 31, 2012, anck8ults of their operations and
their cash flows for the period from January 1,2@irough November 13, 2013 and each year in toeyear period ended December 31,
2012, in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedamting principles.

/s/ Armanino LLP
San Ramon, California
March 31, 2014
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable, related parties

Real estate inventory

Equipment, net

Total assets

Liabilities and Members’ Equity

Accounts payable

Accounts payable, related parties

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Members’ equity

Total liabilities and members’ equity

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

November 13, 2013

December 31, 2012

2,592,70 1,423,43
— 530,98
55,42¢ —
4,208,69! 6,082,74
10,42¢ 14,47¢
6,867,25. 8,051,64.
1,181,71 833,89
177,67t 318,48¢
202,61: 236,27(
1,562,001 1,388,65:
5,305,241 6,662,98!
6,867,25: 8,051,64.

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finhstEigements
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Period For the Year Ended
January 1 through December 31,
November 13, 2013 2012 2011
Revenues:
Home Sales $ 22,170,77 $ 24,593,70 $ 22,712,37
Expenses:
Cost of sales 15,935,49 17,549,13 15,594,41
Selling expenses 1,603,72 1,900,72 2,065,40:
General and administrative 956,88: 1,176,47 1,066,43!
Operating Income 3,674,67. 3,967,36! 3,986,13
Other Income, net 17,11¢ 42,96¢ 5,312
Net Income Before Income Taxes 3,691,791 4,010,32! 3,991,44i
Income Tax Provision (74,537 (67,557 (69,22¢)
Net Income $ 3,617,25! $ 3,942,770 $ 3,922,22:

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finhsi@gements

F-30




Table of Contents

LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS' EQUITY

Members' Equity - January 1, 2011 $ 4,826,14.
Net Income 3,922,22
Contributions from members 2,221,84.
Distributions to members (3,250,001

Members' Equity - December 31, 2011 $ 7,720,211
Net Income 3,942,77i
Distributions to members (5,000,00i)

Members' Equity - December 31, 2012 $ 6,662,98!
Net Income 3,617,25!
Distributions to members (4,975,00)

Members' Equity - November 13, 2013 $ 5,305,241

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finhstEigements

F-31




Table of Contents

LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Period
January 1 through
November 13, 2013

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Operating activities:
Net income $ 3,617,251 $ 3,942,770 $ 3,922,22:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation 8,41¢ 14,72¢ 13,42:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 530,98: 448,38 (711,00)
(Receivables from) payables to related parties, net (196,239 197,80¢ 120,68
Real estate inventory 1,874,04 2,215,90: (3,189,94)
Other Assets — 34,04" (28,809
Accounts payable 347,82: (163,099 471,50¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (33,657 (91,187 85,79¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,148,63. 6,599,37. 683,88:
Investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of assets at net book value — 10,79: —
Purchases of equipment (4,369 (8,929 (17,607
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (4,369 1,86¢ (17,609
Financing activities:
Proceeds from note payable — — 2,011,699
Payments on note payable — (910,55¢) (1,101,14)
Contributions from members — — 2,221,84.
Distributions to members (4,975,00) (5,000,00) (3,250,00)
Net cash used in financing activities (4,975,00) (5,910,55)) (117,600
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,169,27! 690,68t 548,68
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of
period 1,423,43 732,75( 184,07(
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 2,592,700 $ 1,423,431 $ 732,75(

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsigitements
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Business
Organization and Description of Business

LGI-GTIS Holdings, LLC (the Company) is a joint ware that was formed on March 4, 2010, between HGhes Corporate, LLC
(LGI Member) and GTIS LGI | LP (GTIS Member). The@pany is engaged in the design and constructi@emioy level homes in high
growth markets in Texas.

On November 13, 2013, LGl Homes, Inc., an affiliatehe LGl Member, completed an initial public efing ("IPO"). Concurrent with
the IPO, the GTIS Member’s interest in LGIFIS Holdings, LLC was acquired by LGI Homes, land, as a result, the Company has bec
a wholly-owned subsidiary of LGl Homes, Inc.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include te®ants of the Company and its wholly owned subsiels: LGl Homes - Chisholm
Springs, LLC and LGI Homes - Luckey Ranch, LLC.

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with generally accepted actwuptinciples in the United
States (US GAAP) as contained within the Finang@ounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Stadsi&odification (ASC). All
intercompany balances and transactions have bieeimaled in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated fir@rstatements in conformity with US GAAP requirranagement to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the consolidated financial statementsaanxtompanying notes. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Concentrations ofli€Risk

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as casmdndemand deposits with financial institutionsg ahort-term liquid investments
with an initial maturity date of less than threemtit. The Company’s cash in demand deposit accousysexceed federally insurable limits.
The Company’s management monitors the cash balamdlesir operating accounts and adjusts the catinbes as appropriate; however,
these cash balances could be negatively impactad ifinderlying financial institutions fail or asabject to other adverse conditions in the
financial markets. To date, the Company has expeei@ no loss or diminished access to cash in tipgirating accounts.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of procegds from title companies for sales closed priguedod end and are generally
collected within a few days from closing.

Real Estate Inventory

Inventory consists of land and land developmenssaffice inventory, homes in progress and congplétomes. Inventory is stated at
cost unless the carrying amount is determinedmbetrecoverable, in which case inventory is writiewn to fair value.

Land, development and other project costs, inclyditerest and property taxes incurred during dgwalent and home construction,
capitalized to real estate inventory. Land develephand other common costs that benefit the ectinemunity, including field construction
supervision and related direct overhead, are dkace individual lots or homes, as appropriates Tasts of lots are transferred to homes in
progress when home construction begins. Home aariin costs and related carrying charges (prifigigapitalized interest and property
taxes) are allocated to the cost of individual hemging the specific identification method.

Inventory costs for completed homes are expensedsi®of sales as homes are sold. Changes to éstitdial development costs
subsequent to initial home closings in a commuaitygenerally allocated to the remaining lots ammhés in the community on a pro-rata
basis.

The life cycle of a community generally ranges friomo to five years, commencing with the acquisitadand, continuing through the
land development phase, and concluding with thetcoction, sale, and delivery of homes. A
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constructed home is used as the community saleesfluring the life of the community and then séldtual individual community lives
will vary based on the size of the community, takes absorption rate, and whether we purchasegrtiperty as raw land or finished lots.

In accordance with the provisions of ASC 3B@pperty, Plant, and Equipmenteal estate inventory is evaluated for indicatidrs
impairment by each community during each repontiagod. In conducting our review for indicatorsimipairment on a community level, we
evaluate, among other things, the margins on hdhasave been delivered, communities with slow imginventory, projected margins on
future home sales over the life of the communihg the estimated fair value of the land. For indiinl communities with indicators of
impairment, additional analysis is performed toneate the community’s undiscounted future cash $lolivthe estimated undiscounted future
cash flows are greater than the carrying valud®@tommunity group of assets, no impairment adjestris required. If the undiscounted c
flows are less than the community’s carrying vathe,asset group is impaired and is written dowitstéair value. The Company estimates
the fair value of its communities using a discodntash flow model. As of November 13, 2013, anddbgoer 31, 2012 and 2011, the real
estate inventory is stated at cost; there wer@wenitory impairment charges recorded in the pegizded November 13, 2013, or in the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Equipment

Equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated diagion. Depreciation expense is recorded in gérerd administrative expenses in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of OpesatUpon sale or retirement, the costs and rekltedmulated depreciation are
eliminated from the respective accounts and amyltieg gain or loss is included in other (incomgpense. Depreciation is generally
computed using the straight-line method over thienased useful lives of the assets, ranging froto 8 years. Maintenance and repair costs
are expensed as incurred.

Impairments of long-lived assets are determinedgrally when indicators of impairment are presdhsuch indicators are present,
the determination of the amount of impairment isdzhon our judgments as to the future undiscouspedating cash flows to be generated
from these assets throughout their remaining estidnaseful lives. If these undiscounted cash flavesless than the carrying amount of the
related asset, an impairment is recognized foeKoess of the carrying value over its fair valueefe were no impairments of equipment
recorded in the period ended November 13, 2013{tmngiears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Insurance Costs and Reserves

The Company has deductible limits under workerghpensation, automobile and general liability insgeapolicies, and records
expenses and liabilities for the estimated costsoténtial claims for construction defects. Theesscliability limits are $3 million per
occurrence and in the aggregate annually and apglycess of automobile liability, employer’s lilityi under workers compensation and
general liability policies. The Company generabbguires subcontractors and design professionatgleannify the Company for liabilities
arising from their work, subject to certain limitats.

Warranty Reserves

Estimated future direct warranty costs are accarmetcharged to cost of sales in the period whendlagéed home is sold. The
Company’s warranty liability is based upon histatizarranty cost experience and is adjusted asoappte to reflect qualitative risks
associated with the types of homes built and tloggghic areas in which they are built.

Warranty reserves are reviewed quarterly to ashesasonableness and adequacy and make adjustméme balance of the
preexisting reserves to reflect changes in trendshéstorical data as information becomes available

Members’ Equity

The Company is a Delaware limited liability compahyaccordance with the limited liability compaagreement, the Company shall
be dissolved no later than December 31, 2060.

The LGI Member, as the managing member, has thinaibility and authority to operate the Companyaatay-to-day basis subject to
the operating budget and business plan, whichpsoapd by both members. All major decisions reghoth members’ consent. Major
decisions include, but are not limited to: the asijon or disposition of a project; capital cobutions; and changes, updates or amendments
to the operating budget or business plan.

Profits are allocated to the members based onrtgefermined formulas specified in the limited illiéocompany agreement for the
allocation of distributable cash. The GTIS Memhed the LGl Member are allocated 85% and 15% ofptioéits, respectively, (the Sharing
Percentages) until such time as the members recastedistributions equal to their initial capitatestment plus a 15% internal rate of return
(“First Tier Return”). Subsequent allocations dftdbutable cash and
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profits include a priority allocation of 20% to 2% to the LGl Member, depending on the amount shdiistributions achieved over the life
of the Company. Upon liquidation of the LGl Memlzeinterest in the Company, the managing membeujsired to restore any deficit
balance in its capital account as provided fohmltmited liability company agreement. The perfarmoe of the LGl Member and its affiliates
under the limited liability company agreement alngl Master Service Agreement is guaranteed joimttyseverally by LGl Homes Corpora
LLC, LGI Homes, Ltd., LGl Homes -Sunrise Meadowd LGl Homes-Canyon Crossing, Ltd., and LGl Horbegr Creek, LLC, and is
secured by a first lien and security interest mltks| Member’s interest and the right to receivg distributions from the Company.

Based on the Company’s cumulative cash distribsttbrough December 31, 2012, the Company had ii\sed the Firstier Return
During the period ended November 13, 2013, the Gomachieved the First, Second and Third-Tier Retand began paying a 41.2%
priority allocation to the LGI Member.

Home Sales

In accordance with ASC 360-2@Real Estate Salesevenues from home sales are recorded at theeiiwle home is closed, title and
possession are transferred to the buyer and there $ignificant continuing involvement of the Canp. Home sales proceeds are generally
received from the title company within a few dag@i closing. Home sales are reported net of sade®udnts and incentives granted to home
buyers which are primarily seller-paid closing sost

Cost of Sales

As discussed under Real Estate Inventory, abow afsales for homes closed include the constrnaosts of each home and
allocable land acquisition and land developmentscespitalized interest, and other related comoumts (both incurred and estimated to be
incurred).

Selling and Commission Costs
Sales commissions are paid and expensed basedrasisold. Other selling costs are expensed indhiegincurred.

Advertising Costs

Advertising and direct mail costs are expensedasried. Advertising and direct mail costs were(®225 for the period ended
November 13, 2013. Advertising and direct mail sasere$374,527 and $649,792 for the years ended Decedih@012 and 2011,
respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company is a limited liability company whichtisated as a partnership for income tax purposédealeral income taxes on
taxable income or losses realized by the Compaayhar obligation of the individual members. Howevke Company is subject to certain
state taxes and fees, including the Texas margimtaere applicable. There are no significant deféfincome taxes related to state income
taxes. Management of the Company has concludedhibie are ngignificant uncertain tax positions requiring recitign in the consolidate
financial statements, nor has the Company beesssgénterest or penalties by any major tax juctgmhis. State income taxes paid were
$53,728 for the period ended November 13, 2013dtition, state income taxes of $81,775 and $14va22 paid for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurementglefines fair value as “the price that would beereed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitgbi
in an orderly transaction between market partidipahthe measurement date” within an ergifyincipal market, if any. The principal mar
is the market in which the reporting entity wouldl she asset or transfer the liability with thegtest volume and level of activity, regardless
of whether it is the market in which the entity lwiltimately transact for a particular asset obility or if a different market is potentially
more advantageous. Accordingly, this exit pricecagrt may result in a fair value that may diffemfrthe transaction price or market price of
the asset or liability.

Under generally accepted accounting principlesfdirevalue hierarchy prioritizes inputs to valuatitechniques used to measure fair
value. Fair value measurements should maximizeiskeof observable inputs and minimize the use observable inputs, where possible.
Observable inputs are developed based on markebttained from sources independent of the rempeitity. Unobservable inputs may be
needed to measure fair value in situations whexeetls little or no market activity for the assetiability at the measurement date and are
developed based on the best information availabika circumstances, which could include the répgrentity’'s own judgments about the
assumptions market participants would utilize iicipg the asset or liability.
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We utilize fair value measurements to account étain items and account balances within our cadatdd financial statements. Fair
value measurements may also be utilized on a nomieg basis, such as for the impairment of lonvgdi assets. The fair value of our
financial instruments, including cash and cashajants, accounts receivable, accounts payablesmpatyable, and other liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts due to the steonh nature of these instruments.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the consolidated financial statets of prior periods have been reclassified aaiceamounts were recorded
incorrectly. Management does not believe such ssiflaation adjustments were material to the cddatéd financial statements. The
reclassifications include, but are not limitedtteg reclassification to cost of sales of rebatevipusly classified as other income and the
reclassification of certain indirect costs to cofssales previously classified as general and adtnattive. These reclassifications had no
impact on the Company’s net income.

3. Real Estate Inventory

The Company purchases land and develops resideatbdivisions including roads, water and seweresgst These costs are included
in inventory and expensed as cost of sales on bpkasis as homes are sold.

Real estate inventory consists of the following:

November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Land and land development $ 131,71:  $ 3,724,73.
Sales office inventory 203,32¢ 198,00¢
Homes in progress 2,721,53 482,33¢
Completed homes 1,152,171 1,677,66!
Real estate inventory $ 4,208,69! $ 6,082,74.

Interest and financing costs incurred under the Qang’s debt obligations, as more fully describedlate 6, are capitalized to
qualifying real estate projects under developm&ny. additional interest charges related to reategprojects not under development are
expensed in the period incurred.

4. Equipment
Equipment consists of the following:

November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Equipment $ 24,21 $ 26,52¢
Less: accumulated depreciation (13,789 (12,04¢)
Equipment, net $ 10,42¢ $ 14,47¢
5. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisheffollowing:
November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Accrued liabilities $ 125,09: $ 184,39(
Customer deposits 47,52( 21,88(
Warranty reserve 30,00( 30,00(
Accrued expenses and other liabilities $ 202,61: $ 236,27(
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Customer deposits are received upon signing a peecbontact and are typically $500 . Deposits aneglly refundable if the
customer is unable to obtain financing. Forfeitegidy deposits related to home sales are recogiizettier income in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations in the péni@chich it is determined that the buyer will mamplete the purchase of the property and
the deposit is nonrefundable to the buyer.

Changes to the warranty accrual are detailed inable set forth below:

November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Warranty reserves, beginning of period $ 30,00C $ 30,00(
Warranty provision 36,50( 68,51¢
Warranty expenditures (36,500 (68,519
Warranty reserves, end of period $ 30,00 $ 30,00(

6. Note Payable

The Company had a note payable due to one oflisosiractors in the amount of $910,556 as of Dee#r@h, 2011. The note accrued
interest at a rate of 6% . Total interest expenag $8,942 and $46,270 for the years ended Decedib@012 and 2011, respectively. The
note was secured by real property. The note wakqftin 2012.
Capitalized Interest

Interest and related financing costs incurred utitkeiCompany’s debt obligations are capitalizedualifying real estate projects under

development. Interest charges and other finanacistsaelated to real estate projects not underldewvent are expensed in the period
incurred. Interest activity for the note payabletfte periods presented is as follows:

For the Period

January 1 through For the Year Ended
November 13, December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Interest incurred $ — 3 394: $ 46,27(
Less: Amounts capitalized — (3,942 (46,27()
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized $ — % — % —
Cash paid for interest $ — % 3,94 $ 46,27(

7. Related-Party Transactions

From time to time, the Company may engage in tretisss with entities that are affiliated with ther@pany’s members. We believe
transactions with related parties are in the nomoatse of operations. Accounts payable due teegtlparties represent amounts that are due
to LGI Homes Corporate, LLC and its affiliates fayroll, direct costs, management fees and warifaety that are allocated to the Comp:

Management and Warranty Fees

The Company has a Management Service AgreementL@itiHomes Services, LLC. The Company is chargethaagement fee of
approximately 3% of home sale revenue for admittigtn, supervision, marketing and various othevises. LGl Homes - Luckey Ranch,
LLC is also charged a management fee of approxign@é of construction costs for the developmeniofl. Management fees expensed
under the agreements were $696,487 for the pesiodaiy 1, 2013 through November 13, 2013. ManageRees expensed were $771,075
and $712,069 for the years ended December 31, 2042011, respectively.

The Company provides a Home Builder’s Limited Watyato the buyer of each home and pays a warraetyf $250 to an affiliate of
the LGI Member upon the closing of the sale of damime. The LGI Member is responsible for warraremvie work after community close-
out or work performed more than B#bnths after a home is sold. Under the terms ofithiéed liability company agreement, the LGl Mem
is responsible for the full, timely and proper peniance, satisfaction and discharge of any warrdafyns asserted against the Company, the
GTIS Member or any affiliate thereof. Warranty fees
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expensed and paid under the Master Services Agreemsge $36,500 for the period January 1, 2013uifindNovember 13, 2013. Warranty
fees expensed and paid under the Management SeAdgreement were $43,750 and $41,750 for the yeraded December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

8. Commitments and Contingencies
Contingencies

In the ordinary course of doing business, the Campjiecomes subject to claims or proceedings fram to time relating to the
purchase, development, and sale of real estateagdament of the Company believes that these claiohsde usual obligations incurred by
real estate developers in the normal course ofibasi In the opinion of management, these mattérsathave a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, resafteperations or cash flows.

9. Subsequent Event
Management has evaluated subsequent events thktargh 31, 2014, the date the consolidated finarsté&ements were available to be

issued. We are not aware of any significant evetitsrs than those included herein that occurredespient to the balance sheet date, but
prior to the completion of this report that woulaMe a material impact on the consolidated finarst@ements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
LGI-GTIS Holdings II, LLC and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of LGI-GTIS Holdings II, LLC and Subsiiia (the Company) as of
November 13, 2013 and December 31, 2012, and thtedeconsolidated statements of operations, mes’ equity, and cash flows for the
period from January 1, 2013 through November 13324hd each year in the two-year period ended Dieeef8i, 2012. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of@mmpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpan opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBigUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thestmobtain reasonable assurance about whetheptisolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. We were not engag@eérform an audit of the Company’s internal colstover financial reporting. An audit
includes consideration of internal control oveafigial reporting as a basis for designing audit@dares that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audifudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stippdhe amounts and disclosures in the
financial statement. An audit also includes assgsbie accounting principles used and significatiheated made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall consolidated financial stetat presentation. We believe that our audits pieai reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegreferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated financial
position of LGIGTIS Holdings II, LLC and Subsidiaries at Novemb8&r 2013 and December 31, 2012, and the resulteeafoperations an
their cash flows for the period from January 1,2@irough November 13, 2013 and each year in toeyear period ended December 31,
2012, in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedamting principles.

/s/ Armanino LLP
San Ramon, California
March 31, 2014
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS II, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable, related-parties
Real estate inventory
Equipment, net
Prepaid expenses
Total assets
Liabilities and Members’ Equity
Accounts payable
Accounts payable, related parties
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total liabilities
Members’ equity
Total liabilities and members’ equity

November 13, 2013

December 31, 2012

2,023,31! 1,018,241
— 520,19:

6,381 —
2,194,52. 4,080,72
2,77¢€ 21,57¢

— 1,80¢
4,226,99 5,642,52!
359,78 154,01
127,20 160,05
153,19 140,79
640,18t 454,87
3,586,81 5,187,65:
4,226,99 5,642,52!

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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Revenues:
Home Sales
Expenses:

Cost of sales

Selling expenses

General and administrative
Operating Income
Other Income (Expense), net
Net Income Before Income Taxes
Income Tax Provision
Net Income

LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS II, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Fojégﬁaﬁir{m For the Year Ended
through November December 31,
13, 2013 2012 2011
$ 18,300,51 $ 21,616,244 $ 10,282,84
12,763,14 15,198,30 7,199,28I
1,620,60: 1,903,00. 1,456,65:
894,93t 983,75: 613,27(
3,021,81! 3,531,18: 1,013,63:
29,61 5,01¢ (15,015
3,051,43. 3,536,20; 998,61
(52,279 (60,39)) (29,009
$ 2,999,15. $ 3,475,800 $ 969,61+

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS II, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS' EQUITY

Members' Equity - January 1, 2011 $ 827,82«
Net Income 969,61+
Contributions from members 4,339,41.
Distributions to members (800,000

Members' Equity - December 31, 2011 $ 5,336,85!
Net Income 3,475,80i
Distributions to members (3,625,00i)

Members' Equity - December 31, 2012 $ 5,187,65!
Net Income 2,999,15:
Distributions to members (4,600,001

Members' Equity - November 13, 2013 $ 3,586,81.

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS II, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Period
January 1 through

For the Year Ended
December 31,

November 13, 2013 2012 2011
Operating activities
Net Income $ 2,999,15. $ 3,475,80i $ 969,61-
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by (used
in) operating activities:
Depreciation 10,09¢ 30,21« 22,48t
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 520,19: (142,03) (378,159
(Receivables from) payables to related parties, net (39,239 97,61" 41,11
Real estate inventory 1,886,19 651,27. (4,145,87)
Prepaid expenses 1,80 10,48( (12,280)
Accounts payable 205,77( (174,07) 121,68
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12,39¢ 15,14( 125,65!
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5,596,36! 3,964,411 (3,255,751
Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of assets at net book value 11,48¢ — —
Purchases of equipment (2,779 (1,679 (70,216
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 8,70¢ (1,67¢) (70,21¢)
Financing activities
Contributions from members — — 4,339,41.
Distributions to members (4,600,00) (3,625,001 (800,000
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (4,600,001 (3,625,00) 3,539,41:
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,005,07! 337,73t 213,44¢
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 1,018,241 680,50: 467,05t
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 2,023,31 $ 1,018,241 $ 680,50:

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteilements
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS II, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Business
Organization and Description of Business

LGI-GTIS Holdings II, LLC (the Company) is a joimenture that was formed on November 16, 2010, baivi€s| Homes Corporate,
LLC (LGl Member) and GTAM Mallard LLC (GTIS Memben Gl Homes Corporate, LLC transferred their equityrests to LGl Homes
Group, LLC during March 2011. The Company is engeagehe design and construction of entry level Berim high growth markets in
Texas.

On November 13, 2013, L GI Homes, Inc., an affiliaf the LGI Member, completed an initial publidesing ("IPO"). Concurrent with
the IPO, the GTIS Member’s interest in LGI-GTIS Hiolgs I, LLC was acquired by LGl Homes, Inc. aad,a result, the Company has
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of LGl Homes, Inc.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include te®ants of the Company and its wholly owned subsiel: LGl Homes-Mallard
Crossing, LLC and LGl Homes-West Meadows, LLC.

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with generally accepted actwuptinciples in the United
States (US GAAP) as contained within the Finang@ounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Stadsi&odification (ASC). All
intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated fir@rstatements in conformity with US GAAP requireanagement to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the consolidated financial statementsaaxtompanying notes. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Concentrations ofli€CRisk

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as casmdndemand deposits with financial institutionsj ahort-term liquid investments
with an initial maturity date of less than threentits. The Company’s cash in demand deposit accomysexceed federally insurable limits.
The Company’s management monitors the cash balam¢lesir operating accounts and adjusts the catinbes as appropriate; however,
these cash balances could be negatively impactad ifinderlying financial institutions fail or asabject to other adverse conditions in the
financial markets. To date, the Company has expeei@ no loss or diminished access to cash in tipgirating accounts.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of procegds from title companies for sales closed prigeedod end and are generally
collected within a few days from closing.

Real Estate Inventory

Inventory consists of land and land developmenéssaffice inventory, homes in progress, and cotepléiomes. Inventory is stated at
cost unless the carrying amount is determinedmbetrecoverable, in which case inventory is writiewn to fair value.

Land, development and other project costs, inclygiroperty taxes incurred during development andénoonstruction, are capitalized
to real estate inventory. Land development andratbmmon costs that benefit the entire communitgluding field construction supervision
and related direct overhead, are allocated to iddal lots or homes, as appropriate. The coststefdre transferred to homes in progress
when home construction begins. Home constructiatscand related carrying charges (principally priyp@xes) are allocated to the cost of
individual homes using the specific identificatimethod.

Inventory costs for completed homes are expensedsi®f sales as homes are sold. Changes to éstinodal development costs
subsequent to initial home closings in a commuaitygenerally allocated to the remaining lots ammhés in the community on a pro-rata
basis.
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The life cycle of a community generally ranges friomo to five years, commencing with the acquisitafiand, continuing through the
land development phase, and concluding with thetcoction, sale, and delivery of homes. A consgddtome is used as the community ¢
offices during the life of the community and theids Actual individual community lives will vary sad on the size of the community, the
sales absorption rate, and whether we purchasqutdiperty as raw land or finished lots.

In accordance with the provisions of ASC 3B@pperty, Plant, and Equipmenteal estate inventory is evaluated for indicatidrs
impairment by each community during each repontiagod. In conducting our review for indicatorsimipairment on a community level, we
evaluate, among other things, the margins on hdhasave been delivered, communities with slow imginventory, projected margins on
future home sales over the life of the communing the estimated fair value of the land. For indiinl communities with indicators of
impairment, additional analysis is performed toneate the community’s undiscounted future cash $lolivthe estimated undiscounted future
cash flows are greater than the carrying valud®@tommunity group of assets, no impairment adjestris required. If the undiscounted ¢
flows are less than the community’s carrying vathe,asset group is impaired and is written dowitstéair value. The Company estimates
the fair value of its communities using a discodntash flow model. As of November 13, 2013, anddbgoer 31, 2012 and 2011, the real
estate inventory is stated at cost; there wer@wenitory impairment charges recorded in the pegizded November 13, 2013, or in the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Equipment

Equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated diagicn. Depreciation expense is recorded in gererd administrative expenses in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of OpesatUpon sale or retirement, the costs and reltedmulated depreciation are
eliminated from the respective accounts and amyltieg gain or loss is included in other (incomgpense. Depreciation is generally
computed using the straight-line method over thienased useful lives of the assets, ranging froto 8 years. Maintenance and repair costs
are expensed as incurred.

Impairments of long-lived assets are determinedgarally when indicators of impairment are presdhsuch indicators are present,
the determination of the amount of impairment isdzhon our judgments as to the future undiscouspedating cash flows to be generated
from these assets throughout their remaining estidhaseful lives. If these undiscounted cash flavesless than the carrying amount of the
related asset, an impairment is recognized foeKoess of the carrying value over its fair valueefe were no impairments of equipment
recorded in the period ended November 13, 2013{tengiears ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Insurance Costs and Reserves

The Company has deductible limits under workershpensation, automobile and general liability insgeapolicies, and records
expenses and liabilities for the estimated costsoténtial claims for construction defects. Theesscliability limits are $3 million per
occurrence and in the aggregate annually and apglycess of automobile liability, employer’s lilityi under workers compensation and
general liability policies. The Company generabbguires subcontractors and design professionatgleannify the Company for liabilities
arising from their work, subject to certain limitats.

Members’ Equity

The Company is a Delaware limited liability compahyaccordance with the limited liability compaagreement, the Company shall
be dissolved no later than December 31, 2060.

The LGI Member, as the managing member, has tiponasbility and authority to operate the Companyaatay-to-day basis subject to
the operating budget and business plan, whichpsoapd by both members. All major decisions reghth members’ consent. Major
decisions include, but are not limited to: the asijon or disposition of a project; capital cobutions; and changes, updates or amendments
to the operating budget or business plan.

Profits are allocated to the members based onrtgefermined formulas specified in the limited illiéocompany agreement for the
allocation of distributable cash. The GTIS Memhed the LGl Member are allocated 85% and 15% ofptioits, respectively, (the Sharing
Percentages) until such time as the members recastedistributions equal to their initial capitatestment plus a 15% internal rate of return
(First Tier Return). Subsequent allocations ofriigtable cash and profits include a priority allton of 20% to 41.2% to the LGl Member,
depending on the amount of cash distributions aeli®ver the life of the Company. Upon liquidatmfrthe LGI Member’s interest in the
Company, the managing member is required to restoyaleficit balance in its capital account as fted for in the limited liability company
agreement. The performance of the LGI Member andfftliates under the limited liability companyragment and the Master Service
Agreement is guaranteed jointly and severally by HGmes Corporate, LLC, LGl Homes, Ltd., LGl Hom@snrise
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Meadow, Ltd., LGl Homes-Canyon Crossing, Ltd., &&l Homes Deer Creek, LLC, and is secured by & liege and security interest in the
LGl Member’s interest and the right to receive drstributions from the Company.

Based on the Company’s cumulative cash distribsttbrough December 31, 2012, the Company had ii\sed the Firstier Return
During the period ended November 13, 2013, the Gomachieved the First, Second and Third-Tier Retand began paying a 41.2%
priority allocation to the LGI Member.

Home Sales

In accordance with ASC 360-2@Real Estate Salesevenues from home sales are recorded at theeiiwle home is closed, title and
possession are transferred to the buyer and there $ignificant continuing involvement of the Canp. Home sales proceeds are generally
received from the title company within a few dag@i closing. Home sales are reported net of sade®udnts and incentives granted to home
buyers which are primarily seller-paid financingotwsing costs.

Cost of Sales

As discussed under Real Estate Inventory, abow afsales for homes closed include the constroaosts of each home and
allocable land acquisition and land developmentscasd other related common costs (both incurrédeatimated to be incurred).

Selling and Commission Costs
Sales commissions are paid and expensed basedrasisold. Other selling costs are expensed indhiegincurred.

Advertising Costs

Advertising and direct mail costs are expensedasried. Advertising and direct mail costs were(®357 for the period ended
November 13, 2013. Advertising and direct mail sasere$500,060 and $463,021 for the years ended Dece®ih@012 and 2011,
respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company is a limited liability company whichtisated as a partnership for income tax purposédesleral income taxes on
taxable income or losses realized by the Compaayhar obligation of the individual members. Howevke Company is subject to certain
state taxes and fees, including the Texas marginmtaere applicable. There are no significant deféfincome taxes related to state income
taxes. Management of the Company has concludedhibie are no significant uncertain tax positictguiring recognition in the consolidal
financial statements, nor has the Company beesssdénterest or penalties by any major tax juctgmhis. State income taxes paid were
$53,556 for the period ended November 13, 2013adtition, state income taxes of $28,755 and $0 waie for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurementglefines fair value as “the price that would beereed to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliigbi
in an orderly transaction between market partidipahthe measurement date” within an ergifyincipal market, if any. The principal mar
is the market in which the reporting entity wouldl she asset or transfer the liability with thegtest volume and level of activity, regardless
of whether it is the market in which the entity lwiltimately transact for a particular asset obility or if a different market is potentially
more advantageous. Accordingly, this exit pricecagrt may result in a fair value that may diffemfrthe transaction price or market price of
the asset or liability.

Under generally accepted accounting principlesfdirevalue hierarchy prioritizes inputs to valuatitechniques used to measure fair
value. Fair value measurements should maximizeiskeof observable inputs and minimize the use observable inputs, where possible.
Observable inputs are developed based on markebttained from sources independent of the rempeitity. Unobservable inputs may be
needed to measure fair value in situations whexeetts little or no market activity for the assetiability at the measurement date and are
developed based on the best information availabike circumstances, which could include the répgrntity’s own judgments about the
assumptions market participants would utilize iicipg the asset or liability.

We utilize fair value measurements to account &stain items and account balances within our cadat@d financial statements. Fair
value measurements may also be utilized on a nonieg basis, such as for the impairment of longdi assets. The fair value of our
financial instruments, including cash and cashejants, accounts receivable, accounts payabletued liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts due to the short term nature egdhinstruments.
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Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the consolidated financial statgs of prior periods have been reclassified gaiceamounts were recorded
incorrectly. Management does not believe such ssiflaation adjustments were material to the cadated financial statements. The
reclassifications include, but are not limitedttee reclassification to cost of sales of rebatevipusly classified as other income and the
reclassification of certain indirect costs to cofssales previously classified as general and adinattive. These reclassifications had no
impact on the Company’s net income.

3. Real Estate Inventory

The Company purchases land and develops residentdivisions including roads, water and seweresgst These costs are included
in inventory and expensed as cost of sales on bpkasis as homes are sold.

Real estate inventory consists of the following:

November 13, 201 December 31, 2012
Land and land development $ 276,51 $ 1,694,22
Sales office inventory 269,60: 253,82
Homes in progress 875,33t 150,67¢
Completed homes 773,06¢ 1,981,98!
Real estate inventory $ 2,19452. % 4,080,72.
4. Equipment
Equipment consists of the following:
November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Furniture and fixtures $ 10,65 $ 74,27¢
Less: accumulated depreciation (7,879 (52,700
Equipment, net $ 2,77¢ 3 21,57¢
5. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisheffollowing:
November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Accrued liabilities $ 116,17: $ 114,22:
Customer deposits 37,02: 26,57
Accrued expenses and other liabilities $ 153,19 $ 140,79!

Customer deposits are received upon signing a peecbontact and are typically $500 . Deposits aneglly refundable if the
customer is unable to obtain financing. Forfeitegldr deposits related to home sales are recogmzatther income (expense) in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operatiotige period in which it is determined that the/éuwill not complete the purchase of
the property and the deposit is nonrefundableeadthyer.

6. Related-Party Transactions

From time to time, the Company may engage in tretitges with entities that are affiliated with ther@pany’s members. We believe
transactions with related parties are in the nomnatse of operations. Accounts payable due tte@lparties represent amounts that are due
to LGl Homes Group, LLC and its affiliates for paify direct costs, management fees and warrantyttes are allocated to the Company.
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Management and Warranty Fees

The Company has a Management Service AgreementL@itiHomes Services, LLC. The Company is chargethaagement fee of
approximately 3% of home sale revenue for admittistn, supervision, marketing, and various othevises. Management fees expensed
under the agreements were $569,566 for the peaiodaiy 1, 2013 through November 13, 2013. Managefeen expensed were $679,266
and $322,569 for the years ended December 31, 20d 2011, respectively.

The Company provides a Home Builder’s Limited Watyato the buyer of each home and pays a warraetyf $250 to an affiliate of
the LGI Member upon the closing of the sale of dagtme. The LGI Member is responsible for all watyaservice work performed after a
home is sold; accordingly, no warranty reserve asntained by the Company. Under the terms of tinédid liability company agreement, the
LGl Member is responsible for the full, timely apwbper performance, satisfaction and dischargepfrarranty claims asserted against the
Company, the GTIS Member or any affiliate ther&garranty fees expensed under the Management Sskgreement were $33,2%0r the
period ended November 13, 2013. Warranty fees esquewere $43,000 and $21,000 for the years endeeniizer 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

7. Commitments and Contingencies
Contingencies

In the ordinary course of doing business, the Camjecomes subject to claims or proceedings fram to time relating to the
purchase, development, and sale of real estateaddsment of the Company believes that these claiohsde usual obligations incurred by
real estate developers in the normal course ohbkasi In the opinion of management, these mattiirsat have a material effect on the
Company'’s consolidated financial position, resaftsperations or cash flows.

Commitments

The Company has historically had land purchasepmtontracts for the right to purchase land or #bta future point in time with
predetermined terms. Under the land purchase optintracts, we do not have title to the property anr obligations with respect to the
option contracts are generally limited. The Complaagt ndand purchase option contracts at November 13, 208 following is a summa
of our land purchase commitments as of Decembe2(RI12:

December 31, 2012
Commitments under the land purchase option comstifitie purchases were consummated (unaudited) $ 508,20(
Lots under land purchase option contracts (unaddite 42

8. Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events thktargh 31, 2014, the date the consolidated finarstatkbments were available to
be issued. We are not aware of any significant Bsvetters than those included herein that occisuédequent to the balance sheet date, but
prior to the completion of this report that woulaMe a material impact on the consolidated finarst@ements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
LGI-GTIS Holdings Ill, LLC and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of LGI-GTIS Holdings Ill, LLC and Subsidks (the Company) as of
November 13, 2013 and December 31, 2012, and thtedeconsolidated statements of operations, mes’ equity, and cash flows for the
period from January 1, 2013 through November 1332€he year ended December 31, 2012 and the preoiodMarch 2, 2011 (Inception)
through December 31, 2011. These consolidateddinbstatements are the responsibility of the Camgfsamanagement. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these consolidatedhfimhstatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thestmobtain reasonable assurance about whetheptisolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. We were not engag@eérform an audit of the Company’s internal colstover financial reporting. An audit
includes consideration of internal control oveafigial reporting as a basis for designing audit@dares that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audifudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stippdhe amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit alstuitles assessing the accounting principles usedignidicant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall dioladed financial statement presentation. We belighat our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of
LGI-GTIS Holdings Ill, LLC and Subsidiaries at Nawber 13, 2013 and December 31, 2012, and the sesulteir operations and their cash
flows for the the period from January 1, 2013 tlglodNovember 13, 2013, the year ended December(3P, &nd the period from March 2,
2011 (Inception) through December 31, 2011, in confty with U.S. generally accepted accounting @ipies.

/s/ Armanino LLP
San Ramon, California
March 31, 2014
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS llI, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 44592( $ 566,57¢
Accounts receivable — 694,28
Accounts receivable, related parties 533 —
Real estate inventory 1,937,64. 4,423,46.
Equipment, net 6,97: 35,77¢
Prepaid expenses and land deposits 51¢ 4,33¢

Total assets $ 2,391,58! $ 5,724,43
Liabilities and Members’ Equity
Accounts payable $ 561,01¢ $ 249,13
Accounts payable, related parties 109,03t 175,43(
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 61,08t¢ 135,57¢

Total liabilities 731,14: 560,14
Members’ equity 1,660,44! 5,164,29:

Total liabilities and members’ equity $ 2,391,58 $ 5,724,43

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS llI, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Period Inception (March 2,
January 1 through  For the Year Ended 2011) to December
November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012 31,2011
Revenues:
Home Sales $ 12,506,65 $ 23,348,35 $ =
Expenses:
Cost of sales 8,932,01 17,082,35 —
Selling expenses 1,237,88: 2,184,922 73,40:
General and administrative 628,18t 1,014,50: 53,51(
Operating Income (Loss) 1,708,57. 3,066,56. (126,919
Other Income (Expense), net 20,34+ (5,92¢) 122
Net Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes 1,728,91 3,060,63 (126,790
Income Tax Provision (32,76¢) (59,55%) —
Net Income (Loss) $ 1,696,15. $ 3,001,08 $ (126,79()

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS llI, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS' EQUITY

Members' Equity - March 2, 2011 (Inception) $ —
Net Loss (126,79()
Contributions from members 2,100,001

Members' Equity - December 31, 2011 $ 1,973,211
Net Income 3,001,08:
Contributions from members 2,090,001
Distributions to members (1,900,00i)

Members' Equity - December 31, 2012 $ 5,164,29:
Net Income 1,696,15:
Distributions to members (5,200,001

Members' Equity - November 13, 2013 $ 1,660,44

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS llI, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Period

For the Year

Inception (March

January 1 Ended 2,2011) to
through November December 31, December 31,
13, 2013 2012 2011
Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) $ 1,696,15. $ 3,001,08: $ (126,79()
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to mesthcprovided by (used in)
operating activities
Depreciation 16,79¢ 21,66¢ —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 694,28: (694,28:) —
(Receivables from) payables to related parties, net (66,925 115,39¢ 60,03:
Real estate inventory 2,485,81 (2,751,25) (1,672,20)
Prepaid expenses 3,82( 26,50( (30,839
Accounts payable 311,88: (53,679 302,81
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (74,490 112,86: 22,71t
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5,067,33! (221,709 (1,444,27))
Investing Activities:
Proceeds from disposal of assets at net balie 13,48 — —
Purchases of equipment (1,487 (30,51¢) (26,929
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 12,00¢ (30,51¢) (26,92
Financing Activities:
Contributions from members — 2,090,001 2,100,001
Distributions to members (5,200,00) (1,900,001 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (5,200,001 190,00( 2,100,001
Net Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equisalent (120,659 (62,22¢) 628,80:
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 566,57¢ 628,80: —
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 44592( % 566,57¢ $ 628,80:

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS llI, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Business
Organization and Description of Business

LGI-GTIS Holdings I, LLC (the Company) is a joint vieine that was formed on March 2, 2011 between L&@hkEs Group, LLC (LG
Member) and GTIS LGI LP (GTIS Member). The Comp@ngngaged in the design and construction of dat homes in high growth
markets in Texas. The Company was considered dajeuent stage entity as of December 31, 2011. Aldgwment stage entity is one in
which principal operations have not commenced odpced significant revenue.

On November 13, 2013, LGI Homes, Inc., an affiliatehe LGl Member, completed an initial public efing ("IPO"). Concurrent with
the IPO, the GTIS Member's interest in LGI-GTIS Hiolgs Ill, LLC was acquired by LGl Homes, Inc. aad,a result, the Company has
become a wholly-owned subsidiary LGl Homes, Inc.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include twants of the Company and its wholly owned subsiels: LGl Homes-Oak Hollow,
LLC and LGl Homes-Sonterra, LLC.

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with generally accepted actauptinciples in the United
States (US GAAP) as contained within the Finang@ounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Stadsi&odification (ASC). All
intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated fir@rstatements in conformity with US GAAP requirranagement to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the consolidated financial statementsaanxtompanying notes. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Concentrations ofli€CRisk

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as casmdndemand deposits with financial institutionsj ahort-term liquid investments
with an initial maturity date of less than threentits. The Company’s cash in demand deposit accomysexceed federally insurable limits.
The Company’s management monitors the cash balamdlesir operating accounts and adjusts the catinbes as appropriate; however,
these cash balances could be negatively impactad ifinderlying financial institutions fail or asabject to other adverse conditions in the
financial markets. To date, the Company has expeei@ no loss or diminished access to cash in tipgirating accounts.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of procegds from title companies for sales closed prigpedod end and are generally
collected within a few days from closing.

Real Estate Inventory

Inventory consists of land and land developmenéssaffice inventory, homes in progress and conepléiomes. Inventory is stated at
cost unless the carrying amount is determinedmbetrecoverable, in which case inventory is writlewn to fair value.

Land, development and other project costs, inclygiroperty taxes incurred during development ardéoonstruction, are capitalized
to real estate inventory. Land development andratbmmon costs that benefit the entire communitgluiding field construction supervision
and related direct overhead, are allocated to iddal lots or homes, as appropriate. The costetefdre transferred to homes in progress
when home construction begins. Home constructiatscand related carrying charges (principally progpexes) are allocated to the cost of
individual homes using the specific identificatioethod.

Inventory costs for completed homes are expensedsi®of sales as homes are sold. Changes to éstitdial development costs
subsequent to initial home closings in a commuaitygenerally allocated to the remaining lots ammhés in the community on a pro-rata
basis.
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The life cycle of a community generally ranges friomo to five years, commencing with the acquisitafiand, continuing through the
land development phase, and concluding with thetcoction, sale, and delivery of homes. A consgddtome is used as the community ¢
offices during the life of the community and theids Actual individual community lives will vary sad on the size of the community, the
sales absorption rate, and whether we purchasqutdiperty as raw land or finished lots.

In accordance with the provisions of ASC 3B@pperty, Plant, and Equipmenteal estate inventory is evaluated for indicatidrs
impairment by each community during each repontiagod. In conducting our review for indicatorsimipairment on a community level, we
evaluate, among other things, the margins on hdhasave been delivered, communities with slow imginventory, projected margins on
future home sales over the life of the communing the estimated fair value of the land. For indiinl communities with indicators of
impairment, additional analysis is performed toneate the community’s undiscounted future cash $lolivthe estimated undiscounted future
cash flows are greater than the carrying valud®@tommunity group of assets, no impairment adjestris required. If the undiscounted ¢
flows are less than the community’s carrying vathe,asset group is impaired and is written dowitstéair value. The Company estimates
the fair value of its communities using a discodntash flow model. As of November 13, 2013, anddbgoer 31, 2012 and 2011, the real
estate inventory is stated at cost; there wer@wenitory impairment charges recorded in the pegizded November 13, 2013, the year ended
December 31, 2012, or the period March 2, 201le(dainception) through December 31, 2011.

Equipment

Equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated diagion. Depreciation expense is recorded in gérerd administrative expenses in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of OpesatUpon sale or retirement, the costs and rektedmulated depreciation are
eliminated from the respective accounts and amyltieg gain or loss is included in other (incomgpense. Depreciation is generally
computed using the straight-line method over thienased useful lives of the assets, ranging froto 8 years. Maintenance and repair costs
are expensed as incurred.

Impairments of long-lived assets are determinedgerally when indicators of impairment are presdhsuch indicators are present,
the determination of the amount of impairment isdzhon our judgments as to the future undiscouspedating cash flows to be generated
from these assets throughout their remaining estidhaseful lives. If these undiscounted cash flavesless than the carrying amount of the
related asset, an impairment is recognized foeKoess of the carrying value over its fair valueefe were no impairments of equipment
recorded in the period ended November 13, 2013yehe ended December 31, 2012, and the period Mar2@l11l (inception) through
December 31, 2011.

Insurance Costs and Reserves

The Company has deductible limits under workerghpensation, automobile and general liability insgeapolicies, and records
expenses and liabilities for the estimated costsoténtial claims for construction defects. Theesscliability limits are $3 million per
occurrence and in the aggregate annually and apglycess of automobile liability, employer’s lilityi under workers compensation and
general liability policies. The Company generabbguires subcontractors and design professionatgleannify the Company for liabilities
arising from their work, subject to certain limitats.

Members’ Equity

The Company is a Delaware limited liability compahyaccordance with the limited liability compaagreement, the Company shall
be dissolved no later than December 31, 2060.

The LGI Member, as the managing member, has tiponasbility and authority to operate the Companyaatay-to-day basis subject to
the operating budget and business plan, whichpsoapd by both members. All major decisions reghth members’ consent. Major
decisions include, but are not limited to: the asijon or disposition of a project; capital cobutions; and changes, updates or amendments
to the operating budget or business plan.

Profits are allocated to the members based onrtgefermined formulas specified in the limited illiéocompany agreement for the
allocation of distributable cash. The GTIS Memhmd the LGl Member are allocated 85% and 15% ofptioéits, respectively, (the Sharing
Percentages) until such time as the members recastedistributions equal to their initial capitatestment plus a 15% internal rate of return
(First Tier Return). Subsequent allocations ofriistable cash and profits include a priority afion of 20% to 41.2% to the LGl Member,
depending on the amount of cash distributions aeli®ver the life of the Company. Upon liquidatmfrthe LGI Member’s interest in the
Company, the managing member is required to restoyaleficit balance in its capital account as wted for in the limited liability company
agreement. The performance of the LGI Member andfftliates under the limited liability companyragment and the Master Service
Agreement is jointly and severally guaranteed by HGmes Group, LLC, LGl Homes, Ltd., LGI Homes-SsarMeadow, Ltd., LGl Homes-
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Canyon Crossing, Ltd. and LGl Homes Deer Creek, L&l is secured by a first lien and security edeim the LGl Member’s interest and
the right to receive any distributions from the Gxamy.

Based on the Company’s cumulative cash distribsttbrough December 31, 2012, the Company had imi\sed the Firstier Return
During the period ended November 13, 2013, the Gomachieved the First, Second and Third-Tier Retand began paying a 41.2%
priority allocation to the LGI Member.

Home Sales

In accordance with ASC 360-2@Real Estate Salesevenues from home sales are recorded at theeiiwle home is closed, title and
possession are transferred to the buyer and there $ignificant continuing involvement of the Canp. Home sales proceeds are generally
received from the title company within a few dag@i closing. Home sales are reported net of sade®udnts and incentives granted to home
buyers which are primarily seller-paid closing sost

Cost of Sales

As discussed under Real Estate Inventory, abow afsales for homes closed include the constroaosts of each home and
allocable land acquisition and land developmentss@d other related common costs (both incumeldestimated to be incurred).

Selling and Commission Costs
Sales commissions are paid and expensed basedrasisold. Other selling costs are expensed indhiegincurred.

Advertising Costs

Advertising and direct mail costs are expensedasried. Advertising and direct mail costs were@3964 for the period ending
November 13, 2013. Advertising and direct mail sasere$591,255 and $11,218 for the years ended Decenih@032 and 2011,
respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company is a limited liability company whichtisated as a partnership for income tax purposédesleral income taxes on
taxable income or losses realized by the Compaayhar obligation of the individual members. Howevke Company is subject to certain
state taxes and fees, including the Texas marginmtaere applicable. There are no significant deféfincome taxes related to state income
taxes. Management of the Company has concludedhibie are no significant uncertain tax positictguiring recognition in the consolidal
financial statements, nor has the Company beesssdénterest or penalties by any major tax juctgmhis. State income taxes paid were
$59,833 for the period ended November 13, 2013réltvere no state income taxes paid for the yeagcdBi:cember 31, 2012 and the period
March 2, 2011 (inception) through December 31, 2011

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurementglefines fair value as “the price that would beereed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitgbi
in an orderly transaction between market partidipahthe measurement date” within an ergifyincipal market, if any. The principal mar
is the market in which the reporting entity wouldl she asset or transfer the liability with thegtest volume and level of activity, regardless
of whether it is the market in which the entity lwiltimately transact for a particular asset obility or if a different market is potentially
more advantageous. Accordingly, this exit pricecagrt may result in a fair value that may diffemfrthe transaction price or market price of
the asset or liability.

Under generally accepted accounting principlesfdirevalue hierarchy prioritizes inputs to valuatitechniques used to measure fair
value. Fair value measurements should maximizeiskeof observable inputs and minimize the use observable inputs, where possible.
Observable inputs are developed based on markebttained from sources independent of the rempeitiity. Unobservable inputs may be
needed to measure fair value in situations whexeetts little or no market activity for the assetiability at the measurement date and are
developed based on the best information availabike circumstances, which could include the répgrntity’s own judgments about the
assumptions market participants would utilize iicipg the asset or liability.

We utilize fair value measurements to account &tain items and account balances within our cadaigd financial statements. Fair
value measurements may also be utilized on a nomieg basis, such as for the impairment of lonvgdi assets. The fair value of our
financial instruments, including cash and cashwjants, accounts receivable, accounts payabletued liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts due to the short term nature eddtinstruments.
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Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the consolidated financial statgs of prior periods have been reclassified gaiceamounts were recorded
incorrectly. Management does not believe such ssiflaation adjustments were material to the cadated financial statements. The
reclassifications include, but are not limitedttee reclassification to cost of sales of rebatevipusly classified as other income and the
reclassification of certain indirect costs to cofssales previously classified as general and adinattive. These reclassifications had no
impact on the Company’s net income.

3. Real Estate Inventory

The Company purchases land and develops residsuabdivisions including roads, water and seweresyst These costs are included
in inventory and expensed as cost of sales on bpkasis as homes are sold.

Real estate inventory consists of the following:

November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Land and land under development $ 153,03( $ 830,95:
Sales office inventory 99,62¢ 122,26:
Homes in progress 1,188,08! 165,54
Completed homes 496,89 3,304,70:
Real estate inventory $ 1,937,64 $ 4,423,46.
4. Equipment
Equipment consists of the following:
November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Equipment $ 27,29: $ 57,44
Less: accumulated depreciation (20,319 (21,669
Equipment, net $ 6,97 $ 35,77¢
5. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisheffollowing:
November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Accrued liabilities $ 43,14¢ $ 88,51:
Customer deposits 17,94( 47,064
Accrued expenses and other liabilities $ 61,08¢ $ 135,57¢

Customer deposits are received upon signing a peecbontact and are typically $500 . Deposits aneglly refundable if the
customer is unable to obtain financing. Forfeitegidy deposits related to home sales are recoginizettier income (expense) in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operatiotge period in which it is determined that the/éuwill not complete the purchase of
the property and the deposit is nonrefundableeadthyer.

6. Related-Party Transactions

From time to time, the Company may engage in tretises with entities that are affiliated with ther@pany’s members. We believe
transactions with related parties are in the nomoatse of operations. Accounts payable due tee@tlparties represent amounts that are due
to LGI Homes Group, LLC and its affiliates for pally direct costs, management fees and warrantytiesg are allocated to the Company.
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Management and Warranty Fees

The Company has a Management Service AgreementL @ittHomes Services, LLC (Homes Services). The Camyds charged a
management fee of approximately 3% of home salema for administration, supervision, marketing] garious other services.
Management fees expensed under the agreement$8&8¢64 for the period ended November 13, 201%idgament Fees expensed were
$730,107 and $0 for the year ended December 32, 20d the period March 2, 2011 (inception) throDgltember 31, 2011, respectively.

The Company provides a Home Builder’s Limited Watyeo the buyer of each home and pays a warrasyf $250 to an affiliate of
the LGI Member upon the closing of the sale of daaime. The LGI Member is responsible for all watyaservice work performed after a
home is sold; accordingly, no warranty reserve asntained by the Company. Under the terms of tinédid liability company agreement, the
LGI Member is responsible for the full, timely aptbper performance, satisfaction and dischargapfaarranty claims asserted against the
Company, the GTIS Member or any affiliate ther&arranty fees expensed under the Management Ss&greement were $22,000r the
period ended November 13, 2013. Warranty fees esqzewere $44,750 and $0 for the year ended Dece3ih@012, and the period
March 2, 2011 (inception) through December 31, 20d4pectively.

7. Commitments and Contingencies
Contingencies

In the ordinary course of doing business, the Campjiecomes subject to claims or proceedings fram to time relating to the
purchase, development, and sale of real estateagdament of the Company believes that these claiohsde usual obligations incurred by
real estate developers in the normal course ofibasi In the opinion of management, these mattdrsathave a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, resafteperations or cash flows.

Commitments
The Company has land purchase option contracthéoright to purchase land or lots at a future pimirtime with predetermined

terms. We do not have title to the property andafligations with respect to the option contractsgenerally limited. The following is a
summary of our land purchase commitments:

November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Land deposits $ — % —
Commitments under the land purchase option costifitie purchases are
consummated (unaudited) $ 1,729,801 $ 409,20(
Lots under land purchase options contracts (unadylit 93 22

8. Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events thktargh 31, 2014, the date the consolidated finarst&kments were available to
be issued. We are not aware of any significant ®svetiers than those included herein that occisuédequent to the balance sheet date, but
prior to the completion of this report that woulaMe a material impact on the consolidated finarat@ements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
LGI-GTIS Holdings IV, LLC and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of LGI-GTIS Holdings IV, LLC and Subsiiia (the “Company”) as of
November 13, 2013 and December 31, 2012, and thtedeconsolidated statements of operations, mes’ equity, and cash flows for the
period from January 1, 2013 through November 13324hd the period from October 31, 2012 (Incepttbmugh December 31, 2012. Thi
consolidated financial statements are the respiibhgitf the Company’s management. Our respongibif to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on out.audi

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedxdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thestmbtain reasonable assurance about whetheptisolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. We were not engag@erform an audit of the Company’s internal colstover financial reporting. An audit
includes consideration of internal control oveafigial reporting as a basis for designing audit@dares that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audifudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stippdhe amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit alstuitles assessing the accounting principles usedignidicant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall dioladed financial statement presentation. We belighat our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegreferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of
LGI-GTIS Holdings IV, LLC and Subsidiaries at Novieer 13, 2013 and December 31, 2012, and the resuheir operations and their cash
flows for the period from January 1, 2013 throughvBimber 13, 2013 and the period from October 312ZMhception) through December
31, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generally accebéecounting principles.

/s/ Armanino LLP

San Ramon, California
March 31, 2014
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS 1V, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable, related parties
Real estate inventory
Equipment, net
Prepaid expenses
Total assets
Liabilities and Members’ Equity
Accounts payable
Accounts payable, related parties
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total liabilities
Members’ equity
Total liabilities and members’ equity

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

November 13, 2013

December 31, 2012

1,647,51 1,120,85
608,02 —
72,00 108,57
22,648,53 12,248,67
86,84 6,53:
101,23 190,22
25,164,15 13,674,86
2,979,48! 712,35!
345,63 331,73
464,61 3,68¢€
3,789,72! 1,047,781
21,374,42 12,627,08
25,164,15 13,674,86

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements

F-63




Table of Contents

LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS 1V, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues:
Home sales
Expenses:
Cost of sales
Selling expenses
General and administrative
Operating income (loss)
Other income, net
Net income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net income (loss)

Inception
For the Period January (October 31, 2012)
1 through November to December 31,
13, 2013 2012

$ 27,917,71 % —
21,087,34 —

2,817,03: 112,25:

1,426,11! 130,97(
2,587,22 (243,22))

7,758 —
2,594,97! (243,22)

(34,136 —
$ 2,560,83' $ (243,22)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS 1V, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS' EQUITY

Members’ equity—October 31, 2012 (Inception) $ =
Net loss (243,224
Contributions from members 12,870,31

Members’ equity—December 31, 2012 12,627,08
Net income 2,560,83!
Contributions from members 6,186,50!

Members’ equity—November 13, 2013 $ 21,374,42

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS 1V, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rmshcto net cash used in
operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Payables to related parties, net
Real estate inventory
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities
Investing activities:
Purchases of equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:
Contributions from members
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

For the Period January 1

through November 13,

Inception
(October 31, 2012)
to December 31,

2013 2012

2,560,83" (243,22
26,57 —
(608,029 —
50,46 223,16:
(10,399,85) (12,248,67)
88,99¢ (190,22
2,267,13 712,35t
460,92 3,68¢
(5,552,95) (11,742,92)
(106,88f) (6,539
(106,88() (6.539)
6,186,501 12,870,31
6,186,501 12,870,31
526,66( 1,120,85.
1,120,85. —
1,647,51 1,120,85.

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements
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LGI-GTIS HOLDINGS 1V, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Business
Organization and Description of Business

LGI-GTIS Holdings IV, LLC (the Company) is a joiménture that was formed on October 31, 2012 betwé&drHomes Group, LLC
(LGI Member) and GTIS US Residential Strategiesd;w# and LGI 1V Blocker, LLC (collectively, the GF Members). During 2013, the
GTIS Members assigned part of their interests twaffiliates, GTIS US Residential Strategies Fud LP and GTIS US Residential
Strategies Fund - B, LP.

The Company is engaged in the design and congirucfientry-level homes in high growth markets exas, Arizona and Florida. The
Company was considered a development stage estif@ecember 31, 2012. A development stage eistitye in which principal operatio
have not commenced or produced significant revenue.

On November 13, 2013, LGl Homes, Inc., an affiliatéhe LGl Member, completed an initial publicefing ("IPO"). Concurrent with
the IPO, the GTIS Members'’ Interests in LGI-GTISIdHogs IV, LLC were acquired by LGl Homes, Inc. aad a result, the Company has
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of LGl Homes, Inc.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include twwants of the Company and its wholly owned subsigls: LGl Homes - Blue Hills,
LLC, LGI Homes - Krenson Woods, LLC, LGI Homes -igpointe, LLC, LGI Homes - Oak Hollow Phase 6, LUGI Homes - Saltgrass
Crossing, LLC and LGI Homes - Luckey Ranch Partniet€.

The consolidated financial statements have bequaped in accordance with generally accepted acowuptinciples in the United
States (US GAAP) as contained within the Finan&adounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Stadsi&odification (ASC). All
intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated frarstatements in conformity with US GAAP requireanagement to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the consolidated financial statementsemzompanying notes. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Concentrations ofli€Risk

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as casmdndemand deposits with financial institutionsy ahort-term liquid investments
with an initial maturity date of less than threentits. The Company’s cash in demand deposit accomysexceed federally insurable limits.
The Company’s management monitors the cash balamdlesir operating accounts and adjusts the catinbes as appropriate; however,
these cash balances could be negatively impactad ifinderlying financial institutions fail or asabject to other adverse conditions in the
financial markets. To date, the Company has expeei@ no loss or diminished access to cash in tipgirating accounts.

Accounts Receivab

Accounts receivable consists primarily of procegds from title companies for sales closed priguedod end and are generally
collected within a few days from closing.

Real Estate Inventory

Inventory consists of land and land developmenssaffice inventory, homes in progress and coneplétomes. Inventory is stated at
cost unless the carrying amount is determinedmbetrecoverable, in which case inventory is writlewn to fair value.

Land, development and other project costs, inclygiroperty taxes incurred during development andéhoonstruction, are capitalized
to real estate inventory. Land development andratbmmon costs that benefit the entire communitgluding field construction supervision
and related direct overhead, are allocated to iddal lots or homes, as appropriate. The coststefdre transferred to homes in progress
when home construction begins. Home constructiatscand related carrying charges (principally priyp&xes) are allocated to the cost of
individual homes using the specific identificatiorethod.
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Inventory costs for completed homes are expensedsi®f sales as homes are sold. Changes to éstinedal development costs
subsequent to initial home closings in a commuaitygenerally allocated to the unsold homes irctilemunity on a pro-rata basis.

The life cycle of a community generally ranges friomo to five years, commencing with the acquisitafiand, continuing through the
land development phase, and concluding with thetcoction, sale, and delivery of homes. A considdtome is used as the community ¢
offices during the life of the community and therds Actual individual community lives will vary sad on the size of the community, the
sales absorption rate, and whether we purchasqutdiperty as raw land or finished lots.

In accordance with the provisions of ASC 3B@pperty, Plant, and Equipmenteal estate inventory is evaluated for indicatdrs
impairment by each community during each repontiagod. In conducting our review for indicatorsimipairment on a community level, we
evaluate, among other things, the margins on hdhasave been delivered, communities with slow imginventory, projected margins on
future home sales over the life of the communitgd the estimated fair value of the land. For indiidl communities with indicators of
impairment, additional analysis is performed taneate the community’s undiscounted future cash $lolfvthe estimated undiscounted future
cash flows are greater than the carrying valud@itbommunity group of assets, no impairment adjestns required. If the undiscounted ¢
flows are less than the community’s carrying vathe,asset group is impaired and is written dowitstéair value. The Company estimates
the fair value of its communities using a discodrtash flow model. As of November 13, 2013, anddbswer 31, 2012, the real estate
inventory is stated at cost; there were no invegnitmpairment charges recorded in the period JanLia®p13 through November 13, 2013 or
in the period October 31, 2012 (inception) throligtember 31, 2012.

Equipment

Equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated digicn. Depreciation expense is recorded in gerermd administrative expenses in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Opesatlpon sale or retirement, the costs and rektedmulated depreciation are
eliminated from the respective accounts and anyltieg gain or loss is included in other (incomgpense. Depreciation is generally
computed using the straight-line method over thienased useful lives of the assets, ranging froto 8 years. Maintenance and repair costs
are expensed as incurred.

Impairments of long-lived assets are determinedgally when indicators of impairment are preséhsuch indicators are present, the
determination of the amount of impairment is basedur judgments as to the future undiscountedatiper cash flows to be generated from
these assets throughout their remaining estimatefiillives. If these undiscounted cash flows ass than the carrying amount of the related
asset, an impairment is recognized for the excedgeaarrying value over its fair value. There &vap impairments of equipment recorded in
the period January 1, 2013 through November 133 20l the period October 31, 2012 (date of inceptiorough December 31, 2012.

Insurance Costs and Reserves

The Company has deductible limits under workerghpensation, automobile and general liability insgeapolicies, and records
expenses and liabilities for the estimated costsoténtial claims for construction defects. Theesscliability limits are $3 million per
occurrence and in the aggregate annually and apglycess of automobile liability, employer’s lilityi under workers compensation and
general liability policies. The Company generabbguires subcontractors and design professionatgleannify the Company for liabilities
arising from their work, subject to certain limitats.

Members’ Equity

The Company is a Delaware limited liability compahyaccordance with the limited liability compaagreement, the Company shall
be dissolved no later than December 31, 2062.

The LGI Member, as the managing member, has tiponasbility and authority to operate the Companyaatay-to-day basis subject to
the operating budget and business plan, whichpsoapd by both members. All major decisions reghth members’ consent. Major
decisions include, but are not limited to: the asijon or disposition of a project; capital cobutions; and changes, updates or amendments
to the operating budget or business plan.

Profits are allocated to the members based onrtgefermined formulas specified in the limited iliéocompany agreement for the
allocation of distributable cash. The GTIS Memlrrd the LGI Member are allocated 85% and 15% optbéts, respectively, (the Sharing
Percentages) until such time as the members recasfedistributions equal to their initial capitalestment plus a 15% internal rate of return
(First Tier Return). Subsequent allocations ofriistable cash and profits include a priority afiion of approximately 20% to 40% to the
LGl Member, depending on the amount of cash distidins achieved over the life of the Company. Upguidation of the LGl Member’s
interest in the Company, the managing member
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is required to restore any deficit balance in &pital account as provided for in the limited lidpicompany agreement. The performance of
the LGI Member and its affiliates under the limiteability company agreement and the Master Sendgeeement is guaranteed individually
and collectively, and on a joint and several basid, Gl Homes, Ltd. and LGl Homes Group, LLC, atwlsdubsidiaries: LGl Homes-Chateau
Woods, LLC, LGl Homes-Texas, LLC, LGl Homes-FW, LLIGGI Homes - Presidential Glen, LLC, LGl Homes-@&un, LLC, LGI
Homes-Woodland Creek, LLC, LGl Homes-Lakes of Mdgnd.LC, LGI Homes-Decker Oaks, LLC, LGl Hom&ewarts Forest, LLC, LC
Homes-Florida, LLC, LGl Homes-AZ Sales, LLC, LGI kes-AZ Construction, LLC, LGI Homes-Glennwilde, LL&d LGl Homes-San
Tan Heights.

As of November 13, 2013, the Company’s cumulataghcdistributions had not achieved the First-TietuRh.

Home Sales

In accordance with ASC 360-2@Real Estate Salesevenues from home sales are recorded at theeiiwle home is closed, title and
possession are transferred to the buyer and there $ignificant continuing involvement of the Canp. Home sales proceeds are generally
received from the title company within a few dag@i closing. Home sales are reported net of sade®udnts and incentives granted to home
buyers which are primarily seller-paid closing sost

Cost of Sales

As discussed under Real Estate Inventory, abow afsales for homes closed include the constroatosts of each home and
allocable land acquisition and land developmentss@d other related common costs (both incumeldestimated to be incurred).

Selling and Commission Costs
Sales commissions are paid and expensed basedrasisold. Other selling costs are expensed indhiedgincurred.

Advertising Costs

Advertising and direct mail costs are expensedasried. Advertising and direct mail costs wereZ8%3 for the period January 1,
2013 through November 13, 2013 and $11,926 fopéred October 31, 2012 (date of inception) throDgltember 31, 2012.

Income Taxes

The Company is a limited liability company whichtisated as a partnership for income tax purposédealeral income taxes on
taxable income or losses realized by the Compaayhar obligation of the individual members. Howevke Company is subject to certain
state taxes and fees, including the Texas margimtaere applicable. There are no significant deféfincome taxes related to state income
taxes. Management of the Company has concludedhibie are no significant uncertain tax positictguiring recognition in the consolidal
financial statements, nor has the Company beesssgénterest or penalties by any major tax juctgais. There were no state income taxes
paid for the period January 1, 2013 through NovemBe 2013, or for the period October 31, 2012¢ptmon) through December 31, 2012.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurementglefines fair value as “the price that would beereed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitgbi
in an orderly transaction between market partidipahthe measurement date” within an ergifyincipal market, if any. The principal mar
is the market in which the reporting entity wouldl she asset or transfer the liability with thegtest volume and level of activity, regardless
of whether it is the market in which the entity lwiltimately transact for a particular asset obility or if a different market is potentially
more advantageous. Accordingly, this exit pricecagrt may result in a fair value that may diffemfrthe transaction price or market price of
the asset or liability.

Under generally accepted accounting principlesfdirevalue hierarchy prioritizes inputs to valuatitechniques used to measure fair
value. Fair value measurements should maximizeiskeof observable inputs and minimize the use observable inputs, where possible.
Observable inputs are developed based on markebttained from sources independent of the rempeitiity. Unobservable inputs may be
needed to measure fair value in situations whexeetts little or no market activity for the assetiability at the measurement date and are
developed based on the best information availabike circumstances, which could include the répgrntity’s own judgments about the
assumptions market participants would utilize iicipg the asset or liability.

We utilize fair value measurements to account &tain items and account balances within our coda@d financial statements. Fair
value measurements may also be utilized on a nomieg basis, such as for the impairment of lonvgdi
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assets. The fair value of our financial instrumemsiuding cash and cash equivalents, accountsvwale, accounts payable and other
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts dae¢he short term nature of these instruments.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the consolidated financial statets of prior periods have been reclassified staioeamounts were recorded
incorrectly. Management does not believe such ssiflaation adjustments were material to the cddatéd financial statements. The
reclassifications include, but are not limitedtteg reclassification to cost of sales of rebatevipusly classified as other income and the
reclassification of certain indirect costs to cofssales previously classified as general and adtnattive. These reclassifications had no
impact on the Company’s net income.

3. Real Estate Inventory

The Company purchases land and develops residentdivisions including roads, water and seweresgst These costs are included
in inventory and expensed as cost of sales on bpkasis as homes are sold.

Real estate inventory consists of the following:

November 13, December 31,
2013 2012
Land and land development $ 11,851,96 $ 10,944,30
Sales office inventory 497,89t —
Homes in progress 6,011,87! 1,304,37.
Completed homes 4,286,79. —
Real estate inventory $ 22,648,553 $ 12,248,67
4. Equipment
Equipment consists of the following:
November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Furniture and fixtures $ 11341¢ $ 6,53:
Less: accumulated depreciation (26,57Y) —
Equipment, net $ 86,84: $ 6,53
5. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisheffbllowing:
November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Accrued liabilities $ 388,26¢( $ 3,68¢
Customer deposits 76,34 —
Accrued expenses and other liabilities $ 464,61. $ 3,68¢

Customer deposits are received upon signing a peecbontact and are typically $500 . Deposits aneglly refundable if the
customer is unable to obtain financing. Forfeitegidy deposits related to home sales are recogirizettier income (expense), net in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operatiotige period in which it is determined that the/éuwill not complete the purchase of
the property and the deposit is nonrefundableeadthyer.

6. Related-Party Transactions

From time to time, the Company may engage in tretitass with entities that are affiliated with ther@pany’s members. We believe
transactions with related parties are in the nomoatse of operations. Accounts payable due tteela
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parties represent amounts that are due to LG| H@nesp, LLC and its affiliates for payroll, direcbsts, management fees and warranty fees
that are allocated to the Company.

Management and Warranty Fees

The Company has a Master Service Agreement withHi@hes Services, LLC (Homes Services). The Comjmolgarged a
management fee of approximately 8#home sale revenue for administration, supermisioarketing and various other services. Manage
fees expensed under the agreement were $862,86@:fperiod January 1, 2013 through November 18328nd $- O - for the period
October 31, 2012 (date of inception) through Decem®d, 2012.

The Company provides a Home Builder’s Limited Watyeo the buyer of each home and pays a warraeyf $250 to an affiliate of
the LGI Member upon the closing of the sale of daaime. The LGI Member is responsible for all watyaservice work performed after a
home is sold; accordingly, no warranty reserve asntained by the Company. Under the terms of tinédid liability company agreement, the
LGI Member is responsible for the full, timely aptbper performance, satisfaction and dischargepfarranty claims asserted against the
Company, the GTIS Member or any affiliate ther&arranty fees expensed under the Management Sskgreement were $47,000r the
period January 1, 2013 through November 13, 2043 $8 for the period October 31, 2012 (date of jiom) through December 31, 2012.

7. Commitments and Contingencies
Contingencies

In the ordinary course of doing business, the Campjiecomes subject to claims or proceedings fram to time relating to the
purchase, development, and sale of real estateagdament of the Company believes that these claiohsde usual obligations incurred by
real estate developers in the normal course ofibasi In the opinion of management, these mattérsathave a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, resafteperations or cash flows.

Land Deposits

The Company has land purchase option contracthéoright to purchase land or lots at a future pmiriime with predetermined terms.
We do not have title to the property and our oliages with respect to the option contracts are gahelimited. The following is a summary
of our land purchase commitments:

November 13, 2013 December 31, 2012
Commitments under the land purchase option coistifitie purchases are
consummated (unaudited) $ 338,45¢ $ 1,518,001
Lots under land options and land purchase cont(aotsudited) 14 60

8. Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events thktargh 31, 2014, the date the consolidated finarst&kments were available to
be issued. We are not aware of any significant ®svetiers than those included herein that occisuédequent to the balance sheet date, but
prior to the completion of this report that woulaMe a material impact on the consolidated finarst@ements.

F-71




Table of Contents

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13t)lof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, thgsteant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtteereunto duly authorized.

LGI Homes, Inc.

Date: March 31, 2014 /sl Eric Lipar
Eric Lipar
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

March 31, 2014 /sl Charles Merdian
Charles Merdian
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed belptie following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
/sl Eric Lipar Board March 31, 2014
Eric T. Lipar (Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and

/sl Charles Merdian Treasurer March 31, 2014
Charles Merdian (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ Duncan Gage Director March 31, 2014

Duncan Gage

/s/ Bryan Sansbury Director March 31, 2014
Bryan Sansbury

/sl Steven Smith Director March 31, 2014
Steven Smith

/s/ Robert Vaharadian Director March 31, 2014
Robert Vaharadian
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of LGl Homes, Inc. ¢orporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Reagfiosn Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-190853) of LGI Homes, Iriled on August 28, 2013).

3.2 Bylaws of LGl Homes, Inc. (incorporated by referenc Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration Statement om#S-1 (File No. 333-
190853) of LGl Homes, Inc. filed on August 28, 2R13

10.1 Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dateidry 17, 2014, by and between Texas Capital Bdational
Association and (i) LGI Homes Group, LLC, (ii) L&lomes-Presidential Glen, LLC, (iii) LGI Homes-QuRilin, LLC, (iv)
LGl Homes-FW, LLC, (v) LGI Homes-San Tan Height&Q, (vi) LGl Homes-Texas, LLC, (vii) LGI Homes-DeekOaks,
LLC, (viii) LGI Homes AZ Construction, LLC, (ix) LGHomes-Woodland Creek, LLC, (x) LGI Homes-Lakesvdgnolia,
LLC, (xi) LGI Homes-Saltgrass, LLC, (xii) LGl HomesStewarts Forest, LLC, (xiii) LGl Homes — Glenftdg, LLC, (xiv)
LGl Homes-E San Antonio, LLC, (xv) LGI Homes-Windhttarms, LLC, (xvi) LGl HomedArizona, LLC, (xvii) LGl Homes
— Florida, LLC, (xviii) LGI Homes — Georgia, LLCxik) LGl Homes-Maple Leaf, LLC, (xx) LGI Homes Avdale, LLC,
(xxi) LGl Homes-Shale Creek, LLC, (xxii) LGl Hometerling Lakes Partners, LLC, (xxiii) LGI Crowleyahd Partners,
LLC, (xxiv) LGl Homes-Maple Park, LLC, (xxv) LGl Hoes — Sunrise Meadow, LLC, (xxvi) LGl Homes Corpiera LC,
(xxvii) LGl Homes Services, LLC, (xxviii) LGl HomeAZ Sales, LLC, (xxix) LGI Homes — New Mexico, LLCxxx) LGI
Homes NM Construction, LLC, (xxxi) LGI JV HoldingsLC, (xxxii) LGI Homes — Luckey Ranch, LLC, (xxKiLGI JV
Holdings Il, LLC, (xxxiv) LGl Homes —West Meadowd,.C, (xxxv) LGl JV Holdings Ill, LLC, (xxxvi) LGI Homes —
Sonterra, LLC, (xxxvii) LGI JV Holdings IV, LLC, @xviii) LGl Homes — Blue Hills, LLC, (xxxix) LGl Hmes — Krenson
Woods, LLC, (xI) LGl Homes — Northpointe, LLC, (KLLGI Homes — Oak Hollow Phase 6, LLC, (xlii) LugkBanch
Partners, LLC, and (xliii) LGI Fund Il Holdings,UC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1he Form 8-K of LGI
Homes, Inc. filed on February 5, 2014).

10.2 Employment Agreement, dated as of August 23, 2B&8yeen LGl Homes, Inc. and Eric Lipar (incorpoddby reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registration Statement on F&«+h (File No. 333-190853) of LGl Homes, Inc. filed August 28, 2013).

10.3 LGl Homes, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (incargted by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Amendment Nt the
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 338863) of LGI Homes, Inc. filed on September 20,3201

21.1* List of Subsidiaries of LGI Homes, Inc.

23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

23.2* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1* CEO Certification, Pursuant to Section 302 of taeb@nes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2* CFO Certification, Pursuant to Section 302 of theb&nes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1* Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarkes-@ct of 2002

32.2* Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350a@dopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarkesy-@ct of 2002

101.INST XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCHt  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CALYT XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docute

101.DEFT XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen

101.LABTt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

101.PRET  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin

* Filed herewith.

XBRL information is deemed not filed or a part afegistration statement or Annual Report for pugsosf Sections 11 and 12 of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is deerotfiled for purposes of Section 18 of the SecesitExchange Act of 1934, as
t amended, and otherwise is not subject to liabilitger such sections.



LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES OF LGI HOMES, INC.

LGl HOMES GROUP, LLC, a Texas limited liability com pany

LGl HOMES - DECKER OAKS, LLC, a Texas limited lidity company

LGl HOMES - E SAN ANTONIO, LLC, a Texas limited hdity company

LGl HOMES - FW, LLC, a Texas limited liability corapy

LGl HOMES - GEORGIA, LLC, a Georgia limited liakiyi company

LGl HOMES - LAKES OF MAGNOLIA, LLC, a Texas limitetlability company
LGl HOMES - PRESIDENTIAL GLEN, LLC, a Texas limitdability company

LGl HOMES - QUAIL RUN, LLC, a Texas limited liabtlf company

LGl HOMES - SALTGRASS, LLC, a Texas limited liatiylicompany

LGl HOMES - STEWARTS FOREST, LLC, a Texas limitéablility company

LGl HOMES - TEXAS, LLC, a Texas limited liabilityaanpany

LGl HOMES - WINDMILL FARMS, LLC, a Texas limited #bility company

LGl HOMES - WOODLAND CREEK, LLC, a Texas limitecalbility company

LGl HOMES AZ CONSTRUCTION, LLC, an Arizona limitdéability company
LGl HOMES AZ SALES, LLC, an Arizona limited liabflf company

LGl HOMES - ARIZONA, LLC, an Arizona limited liakity company

LGl HOMES - FLORIDA, LLC, a Florida limited liabity company

LGl HOMES - GLENNWILDE, LLC, an Arizona limited ltaility company

LGl HOMES - SAN TAN HEIGHTS, LLC, an Arizona limitkliability company
LGl HOMES - NEW MEXICO, LLC, a New Mexico limiteddbility company

LGl HOMES NM CONSTRUCTION, LLC, a New Mexico limiteliability company
LGl FUND Il HOLDINGS, LLC, a Texas limited liabili ty company

LGl CROWLEY LAND PARTNERS, LLC, a Texas limited bdity company

LGl HOMES AVONDALE, LLC, a Georgia limited liabiljt company

LGl HOMES - MAPLE PARK, LLC, a Georgia limited lidlty company

LGl HOMES - MAPLE LEAF, LLC, a Texas limited lialify company

LGl HOMES - SHALE CREEK, LLC, a Texas limited lidity company

LGl HOMES - STERLING LAKES PARTNERS, LLC, a Texasited liability company
LGl HOMES CORPORATE, LLC, a Texas limited liability company

LGl HOMES SERVICES, LLC, a Texas limited liabiligpmpany

LGl JV HOLDINGS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

LGl HOMES - LUCKEY RANCH, LLC, a Delaware limiteddbility company

LGl JV HOLDINGS II, LLC, a Delaware limited liabili ty company

LGI HOMES - MALLARD CROSSING, LLC, a Delaware lingtl liability company
LGl HOMES - WEST MEADOWS, LLC, a Delaware limiteidlbility company

LGl JV HOLDINGS llI, LLC, a Delaware limited liabil ity company

LGl HOMES - OAK HOLLOW, LLC, a Delaware limited lmlity company

LGl HOMES - SONTERRA, LLC, a Delaware limited liibf company

LGl JV HOLDINGS 1V, LLC, a Delaware limited liabili ty company

LGl HOMES - BLUE HILLS, LLC, an Arizona limited liaility company

LGl HOMES - KRENSON WOODS, LLC, a Delaware limitédbility company
LGl HOMES - NORTHPOINTE, LLC, a Delaware limitedbility company

LGl HOMES - OAK HOLLOW PHASE 6, LLC, a Delaware litad liability company
LGl HOMES - SALTGRASS CROSSING, LLC, a Delaware itied liability company
LUCKEY RANCH PARTNERS, LLC, a Delaware limited lidity company

LGl HOMES - CANYON CROSSING, Ltd., a Texas limited liability company
LGl HOMES - DEER CREEK, LLC, a Texas limited liabil ity company

LGI HOMES I, LLC, a Texas limited liability compan y

LGl HOMES - SUNRISE MEADOW, LLC, a Texas limited li ability company
RIVERCHASE ESTATES PARTNERS, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company

Exhibit 21.1



EXHIBIT 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 332460) pertaining to the LGI Homes, Inc. 2
Equity Incentive Plan of our report dated March 3114, with respect to the consolidated finandiaesnents of LGl Homes, Inc.
incorporated by reference in this Annual Reportriira0-K) for the year ended December 31, 2013.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Houston, Texas
March 31, 2014



EXHIBIT 23.2

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CONSENT

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRReggion Statement N&33-19246n Form S-8 of LGI Homes, Inc. our reports dated
March 31, 2014 for the following entities:

LGI-GTIS Holdings, LLC and Subsidiaries;
LGI-GTIS Holdings II, LLC and Subsidiaries;
LGI-GTIS Holdings Ill, LLC and Subsidiaries; and
LGI-GTIS Holdings IV, LLC and Subsidiaries

appearing in this Form 10-K of LGl Homes, Inc.

/s/ Armanino LLP
San Ramon, CA

March 31, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1
CEO CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES - OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Eric Lipar, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fK.Gl Homes, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report dag$aontain any untrue statement of a materialdacimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this Annual Report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in thisual Report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrang’ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)jHerRegistrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhgribsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this Annual Report is beimgpared;

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsatlisclosure controls and procedures and presantbs Annual Report our conclusic
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis Annual Report based on
such evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the Begt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the Registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Regdasi’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer ankave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluetimernal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetacaimmittee of Registrant’s Board of Directors f@rsons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inveadvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2014

By: /sl Eric Lipar
Eric Lipar
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of theaBb
LGl Homes, Inc.




EXHIBIT 31.2
CFO CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES - OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Charles Merdian, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fK.GIl Homes, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report da@¢saontain any untrue statement of a materialdacimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this Annual Report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in thisual Report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrang’ other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)jHerRegistrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidhgribsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this Annual Report is beimgpared;

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsatlisclosure controls and procedures and presantbs Annual Report our conclusic
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis Annual Report based on
such evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the Begt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the Registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fofigbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Regdasi’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer ankave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluetimernal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and thetacaimmittee of Registrant’s Board of Directors f@rsons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inveadvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 27, 2014

By: /sl Charles Merdian
Charles Merdian
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasur
LGI Homes, Inc.




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of LGI Hombx;. (the “Company”) on Form 1R-for the year ending December 31, 2013 as fileith

the Securities and Exchange Commission on thelgaof (the “Report”), 1, Eric Lipar, Chief Executi Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipot$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @2@hat to the best of my knowledge:

The Report fully complies with the requiremenit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or

1.
780(d)); and
The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the

2.
Company.

/sl Eric Lipar

March 31, 2014
Eric Lipar
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

LGI Homes, Inc.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of LGI Hombx;. (the “Company”) on Form 1R-for the year ending December 31, 2013 as fileith
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thelgaof (the “Report”), I, Charles Merdian, Chieh&ncial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, agptetbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OMewf 2002, that to the best of my

knowledge:
1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or
780(d)); and
2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the

Company.

/s/ Charles Merdian

Charles Merdian
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer

LGI Homes, Inc.

March 31, 2014



